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oil company focuspd on the acquisition, exploration, develgpment and production of natural gaé reserves.
PVA also owns approximately 82 percent of Penn Virginia GP Holdings, L.P (NYSE: PVG), the o'iwner of the
general partner a}xd the largest unitholder of Penn Vlrger:a IResource Partners, L.R (NYSE: PVR) a manager

of coal properties and related assets and the operator i a midstream natural gas gathering ; and pProcessing
business. For more information about PVA, visit the Company's website at www. pennvirginia.com.

» Financial Highlights

In millions except per share data m '

2005 2004 2003 2002

Financial Data

Net revenues® $ 4193 $ 3700  $ 2284 $ 181.3 $ 1110
Operating income R . 170.5 1 162.0 80.8 T o621 30.8
Net income 75.9 62.1 334 . 285 12.1
Net cash flows provided by operating activities 275.8 231.4 146.4 109.7 65.8

Common Share Data®

Net income, basic ($/share) $ 4.06 $ 3.35 $ 1.82 $ 159 $ 068
Net Income, diluted ($/share) $ 4.02 $ 331 $ 181 $ 1.58 $ 067
Dividends paid ($/share) ’ | $ 045 $ 045 $ 045 $ 045 $ 045
Weighted average shares outstanding, diluted 18,9 . 18.7 " 185 ) 18.1 17.9
Capitalization -

Long-term debt, excluding current portion $ 428.2 $ 3258 $ 1889 $ 154.3 $ 106.9
Minority interest in subsidiaries 438.4 313.5 18289 -~ . 190.5 192.8
Shareholder's equity 382.4 3103 ' 252.9 211.6 188.0
Total capitalization 1,249.0 949.6 624.7 : 556.4 487.7
Long-term debt as percent of total capitalization ’ 34% 34% 30% 28% 22%

Production Data .
Total oil and gas production (Befe) . 31.3 27.4 ’ 24.6 23.8 20.8

Natural gas (Bcf} . 29.0 25.6 221 20.1 18.7
Oil and condensate (MBbI) _ 382 302 396 625 349
Daily production {MMcfe) . 85.6 75 .3 .66.8 65.2 57.0
* Coal produced by lessees {millions of t_ons) 32.8 30.2 31.2 26.5 14,3
Daily plant inlet volumes (MMcf)® . 153 127 — — —
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Realized Prices and Margins

Qil and condensate ($/8bl) $ 5559 $ 45.67 $ 3375 26.91 $ 2363
Natural gas ($/McF) 7.35 .83 Pt 6.27 531 3.35
Coal royalties ($/ton) 2.99 2.74 2.23 1.90 2.20

Midstream processing margin ($/Mcf} 1.22 1.15 — — —

Estimated Reserves
Total proved oil and gas reserves (Bcfe) 487 377 354 . 323 273
Coal {millions of recoverable tons) 765 689 558 588 615

.............................................................................. R T I L L R R P PR R N

1) 2005 and 2006 revenues are shown net of cost of gas purchased.

(2) Amcunts per common share in 2001 through 2003 have been adjusted for the enect of a two-for-one stock split effective on June 3, 2004,
/2 Natursl gas midatroam roealte frnm date ol Cantera arniicitinn affactive March ? 90(’]"‘?




» Core Oil & Gas Producing Areas -

1. Appalachia - Conventional and Horizontal CBM (HCBM) Development/Devonian Shale Patential
2. Misslssippi/Selma Chalk - Selma Chalk Development -

3. East Texas/Cotton Valley - Cotton Valley Development/Bossier Potential

4. Mid-Continent - Hartshorne HCBM and Granite Wash Development/Fayetteville Shale Exploration

5. Gulf Coast - Onshore Conventional Oil and Gas Exploration and Development

....... L R L R R T P S R T L L L LTI

» 2006 Key Events

» Record operating and financial results from the oil and » $72 million Mid-Continent acquisition in June 2006
gas exploration and production, coal land management established a new core area for oil and gas production,
and natural gas midstream businesses development and exploration

» Record net income of $75.9 million and cash flow » PVR lessee ¢oal production increased nine percent
from operating activities of $275.8 million to 32.8 million tons and natural gas midstream

infet volumes increased 44 percent to 56.0 Bef,

» Qil and gas production increased 14 percent to or 153 MMcf per day

31.3 Bcfe, or 85.6 MMcfe per day
» PVR coal reserves increased 11 percent to 765 million

> Oil and gas proved reserves increased 29 percent to tons, primarily as the result of three reserve acquisitions

487 Bcfe, replacing 454 percent of 2006 production

» Completed the initial public offering of Penn Virginia
GP Holdings, L.R (NYSE: PVG) in December, creating a
publicly-traded entity to own the general partner, incentive
distribution rights and an approximate 42 percent limited
partner interest in PVR

» Approximately $266 million of il and gas exploration
and development capital expenditures to drill a
company-record 210 (151.8 net) wells and 200
(146.1 net}, or 95 percent, wells were successful

PVA 06 Annual Report (1)
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Chairman

t
We are pleased to report that 2006 was
another record year for PVA operationaliy
and financially. We set new company records
in @ number of categories, including:

» Qil and natural gas production increased
14 percent to a record 31.3 Bcfe

» Proved oil and gas reserves were up
29 percent to a record 487 Befe, with
reserve replacement of 454 percent

» Revenues, net of the cost of gas
purchased in our natural gas midstream
segment, increased 13 percent over
2005 to a record $419.3 million

» Operating iIncome increased five percent
over 2005 to a record $170.5 million

» Net income increased 22 percent to a
record $75.9 million

» Net cash provided by' operating activities
grew 19 percent to a record $275.8 million

During 20086, E&P expenditures, excluding
acquisitions, were $266 million and resulted
in record production and proved reserve
levels for 20086. Increases in production and
reserves came primarily from the east Texas
Cotton Valley play and the Selma Chalk play in
Mississippi, along with contributions from our
newly acquired Mid-Continent operations.

In June 2006, we added a new “platform” area
for E&P in the Arkoma and Anadarko Basins
in the Mid-Continent region with a $72 million
acquisition of 43 Bcfe of proved reserves. We
commenced a horizontal coalbed methane
drilling program in eastern Oklahoma during
20086, a development program we will expand
in 2007, along with the Fayetteville Shale and

» Dear Fellow Shareholders

2006 was a year of major accomplishments

for Penn Virginia Corporation l(PVA). Our oil and

gas (E&P} business achieved record levels of
production and reserves. Penn Virginia Resource
Partners, L.P (PV‘R), a coal and natural gas
midstream MLP which we control, set financial and
operational records. With the December launch of
Penn Virginia GP Holdings, L.P (PVG) we established
the market valug of our holdings in PVG.

Granite Wash plays in Arkansas and western
Oklahoma, respectively. The Mid-Continent
region has been a prolific natural gas and oil
production area and we believe it will present
future growth opportunities from acquisitions,
exploration and developrent.

In December, we successfully completed an
initial public offering of 18 percent of Penn

Virginia GP Holdings, L.® (NYSE: PVG) which
holds our ownership interests in PVR.

PVG is a new publicly traded limited
partnership formed to hold all of our interests
in PVR. These consist of PVYR’s two percent
general partner interest, approximately 42
percent of PVR's limited partner units and all
of the PVR incentive distribution rights (IDRs).
We believe the IPQ of PVG will make it easier
for analysts and investors to determine the
value of our interests in PVR and thereby to
more easily value each segment of the
Company. Our commitment to the continued
success of PVR was demonstrated by our
investment of proceeds from PVG's IPO in
additional limited partner units of PVR, thereby
allowing PVR to repay debt to facilitate future
growth. The distributions we expect from PVG
will be an important source of cash to redeploy
into our E&P activities.

In our coal land management business,
we expanded coal reserves by 96 million tons
to 765 million tons, replacing 332 percent

. of the record 32.8 million tons produced by

lessees during 2008. In addition, we saw
average coal royalty rates increase by nine
percent to $2.99 per ton during 2006. Driving
the growth in production and reserves were
acquisitions in Central Appalachia and the
lllinois Basin during 2005.




During its first full year of operations, our
natural gas midstream business experienced
a 44 percent increase in inlet volumes and a
52 percent increase in the gross midstream
processing margin compared to the ten-month
period in 2005. An acquisition of additional
natural gas gathering capacity in June 2008 as

well increased volumes from existing producing

fields contributed to the record results.

Going forward, we expect to continue to
expand all of these businesses. Qur focus in
the oil and gas business will be to continue to
capitalize on our expertise in unconventional
ptays. Our 2007 oil and gas business capital
budget is $334 million, a 26 percent increase
over the $266 million of capital expenditures in
2006, excluding the Mid-Continent acquisition.
Approximately 84 percent of this amount is
earmarked to develop reserves in our four core
areas of east Texas, Appalachia, Mid-Continent
and Mississippi. Exploration spending will focus
on our Gulf Coast prospect areas in south
Louisiana and south Texas, which we believe
provide the potential for meaningful reserve
and production additions, and on finding new
unconventional development plays in other
basins to increase our inventory of low-risk
development projects. We will also continue to
expand the coal and midstream businesses at
PVR through acquisitions and organic growth.
While acquisitions are not explicitly budgeted,
we continue to look for acquisition opportunities
in all three major business segments.

PVA's tag line, “Unique in Energy,” derives from
our exposure to three diverse energy segments.
We are committed to growth in each of these
areas as well as to finding ways to exploit the
synergies among them. As always, we greatly
appreciate the hard work and dedication of
Penn Virginia’s employees and the continued
loyalty and support of our shareholders.

Robert Garrett

Chairman

s Leadpe

A. James Dearlove
President and Chief Executive Officer
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Penn Virginia's exposure to natural gas, coal and natural gas
midstream is unique among energy companies and provides
multiple opportunities to achieve superior shareholder
returns. In 2001, we established Penn Virginia Resource
Partners, L.P (FVR), a tax-efficient structure to house our coal
and land assets. In 2005, we added natural gas midstream
assets to the partnership. As PVR has grown and increased
unitholder distributions, the value of its general partner
interests also increased. To better establish the overall value
of our holdings in PVR’s limited and general partnership
interests, we created a publicly traded partnership, Penn
Virginia GP Holdings, L.P (PVG), to hold these interests. -

With the value of our position in PVR clearly defined by

PVG, the market should find it easier to value each of our
business segments. With a portfolio of high quality assets
including E&R coal reserves and midstream operations, as
well as multiple currencies in various tax efficient structures,u
the Penn Virginia “family” is well positioned for future growth.

» Penn Virginia Organization

Penn Virginia Corporation (nyse:pva;

B

Midstream

(1) Penn Virginia GP Holdings, L.P. (NYSE:PVG)
(2) Penn Virginia Resource Partners, L.P. (NYSE:PVR)

PVA 06 Annual Report




OIL & GAS
PRODUCTION (Bcfe}

31.3
06
2006
Production
) {Befe) % Total
Appalachia/
Conventional 7.0 22%

Appalachia/CBM 5.8 19%

Mississippi/

Selma Chalk 6.4 20%
East Texas/

Cotton Valley 4.6 15%
Mig-Continent 1.2 4%
Gulf Coast 8.3 20%
Totals 313 100% .

PROVED OIL & GAS
RESERVES (8cfe)

© as7 _
a5y 317
323 .
3 E
02 03 04 05 06

12/31/2006
Proved Oil & Gas Reserves

) {Bcfe) % Total R

Appalachia/
Conventional 120.8 25%

Appalachia/CBM  35.2 7%

Mississippi/
Selma Chalk 120.6 25%

East Texas/
Cotton Valley 109.3  22%

Mid-Continent 515 11%

Gulf Coast 49.3 10%

Totals 486.7 100%
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2006 was a record year for our oil and gas exploration and

production (E&P) segment in terms of production and reserve
growth. We intend to build on this success in 2007 as evidenced
by our announced capital expenditures budget of $334 million,

excluding acquisitions.

During 2006, we added a new core operating
area in the Mid-Continent region {see page 8}
and we enjoyed strong growth from our east
Texas Cotton Valley play (see inset on next
page) and our Mississippi Selma Chalk play.
Qur horizontal CBM program continued to
be an important part of our portfolic despite
various operational challenges, which we
expect to resolve in 2007.

Qur strategy is to continue to focus on ‘
relatively low risk, uncenventional natural
gas oriented resource plays in our core
areas, complemented by our predominantly
Gulf Coast exploration program, which
exposes us to meaningful increases in

our production and proved reserves. The
relatively low risk plays include the Cotton
Valley program in east Texas, the Selma
Chalk in Mississippi and horizonta! coalbed
methane (HCBM) in Appatachia and in the
Mid-Continent. We are also assessing the
potential of various shale plays including
the Fayetteville Shale in Arkansas and -
Devonian Shale in Appalachia. Augmenting
our lower risk asset base, we continue to
exploit our Gulf Coast exploration expértise
by participating in drilling select onshaore
prospects in south Louisiana and south Texas,
many of which are internally generated.

Our increased E&P operating income and cash
flows in 2006 were the direct.result of record
drilling activity, which also led to impressive
reserve and production growth:

» We drilled 210 wells during 2006, including
190 development wells and 20 exploratory
wells. All but three of the development wells
were successful and 13 of the exploratory
wells were successful, for a 95 percent
overall success rate.

» Cil and gas production in 2006 was 31.3
billion cubic feet of natural gas equivalent
{Bcfe), a new Company record which
eclipsed the 27.4 Befe in 2005 by 14
percent. We expect production to grow
significantly in 2007.

» Our estimated proved reserves at the end
of 2006 were a Company record 487 Bcfe,
up 29 percent from 377 Befe at the end
of 2005, including new reserves from the
Mid-Continent acquisition. Natural gas
comprised approximately 94 percent of
year-end 2006 proved reserves, and 71
percent of reserves were proved developed.
Net of revisions, we added approximately
141 Bcefe of proved reserves primarily from
extensions, discoveries and acquisitions,
replacing approximately 454 percent of
2006 production.

_ Remaining consistent with our strategy to

exploit our expertise in relatively low risk,
unconventional plays, approximately 84
percent of our Company-record $334 million
oil and gas capital expenditures budget

for 2007 is devoted to drilling 335 wells in
our core development areas. We also plan
to spread our exploration spending among
projects in the Guif Coast and in each of our
other core areas, targeting various promising
ideas involving shales and tight sands. We
do not budget acquisitions, but continuously
review opportunities which would complement
our strategy. As part of our strategy, we
employ commodity hedges to protect our
budgeted cash flow.




i .

& The Cotton Valley Play of East Texas

In e%rly 2004, the Company entered into a joint
venture with GMX Resources, Inc. (NASDAQ: GMXR)

to drill development wells in the North Carthage
Field in east Texas.

The transaction provided the Company with drittling rights on
13,500 net acres on which we had expected to driil 80 to 100
wells, By the end of 2006, our acreage position had expanded to
38,000 net exploratory and development acres on which we had
an estimated 600 40-acre drilling locations. Through December
31, 2006, 103 welis have been drilled and we plan to drill 98
wells during 2007, Recently, the Texas Railroad Commission
approved 20-acre well spacing on the majority of our acreage.
Strong growth in production, the large number of potential
drilling locations and the high success rates all combine to fuel
our growing optimism about the Cotton Valley.

Rosewood Field

' Upshur

Marion

~

) Caddo

Woodlawn Field

Harrison

\ Cotton Valley
Operating Data
100% Penn S ] seerriiieicieaans eristasncebsaranne
Virginia Acreage
OIL & GAS
PRODUCTION (M#cie/d)

Bossier Webster

Halisville Field Waskom Field 4
Gregg :
= 3.0
[=]
:
GMX Joint Venture 2 '
Acreage n % 0
A Rusk Red River
. Pancla De Soto PROVED OIL & GAS
. RESERVES (5¢cfe)
Carthage Fieid
| Louisiana
_ Shelby :
. 67.6
T
it
£
Nacogdoches - o
. Sabine
Cherokee San.
L\ Augustine Sabine
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PROVEN AND PROVABLE
COAL RESERVES
(Millions of tons)

765
689
815
588 558
m |
02 03 04 05 06
2006
Production
. (MM tons} % Tolal
Central
Appalachia 202 82%
Northem
Appalachia 5.0 15%
lllinois Basin 2.5 8%

San Juan Basin 5.1 15%
Totals 328 100%

.......................................

COAL PRODUCED
BY PVR LESSEES
{Millions of tons)

312 449

265
14.3
0z 03 04 05

12/31/2008
Coal Reserves

i {MM tons) % Total

Central

328
06

Appalachia 5580 73k
Northern
Appalachia 360 5%

liinois Basin 112.6 15%
San Juan Basin  57.9 7%
Totals 7654 100%
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As of December 31, 2006, PVR owned or
controlled approximately 765 million tons
of proven and probable coal reserves, an
increase of 11 percent from the prior year
level. PVR's reserves are located in central
Appalachia, northern Appalachia, the San
Juan Basin and the lllinois Basin. Coal
production by PVR's lessees increased nine
percent to 32.8 million tons in 2006, from
30.2 million tons in 2005, primarily due to
acquisitions, with 1.2 million tons of the
increase attributable to central Appalachia
and 1.1 million tons of the increase
attributable to the lllinois Basin.

PVR completed three coal reserve
acquisitions during 2006, adding
approximately 96 million tons of coal

for a total acquisition cost of approximately
$76 million, Approximately 74 million of
those tons consist of high quality coal
located in central Appatachia.

Approximately 22 million tons of the coal

PVR acquired is in the western Kentucky
portion of the lilinois Basin. The lllinois Basin
acquisition complements the approximate
94 million tons of western Kentucky coal
PVR purchased in 2005. PVR believes that
production from the lllinois Basin will ‘
accelerate as environmental regulations
become more stringent and as technological
advances make it environmentally acceptable
to use the basin's high sulfur coal. As a
result, PVR plans to increase its position

in the lllinois Basin over time.

During 2006, worldwide and domestic
demand for coal and other hydrocarbons
continued to be strong, although coal
prices began to decline from their highs
during the fourth quarter. PVR believes the
decline in coal prices will primarily impact

.operators who have a high cost structure

and also operators who do not have
long-term contracts in place. In PVR's case,
most of its lessees are low-cost operators
who have long-term contracts with most

of their customers.

In 2006, approximately 70 percent of the
coal produced from PVYR’s properties was
subject to leases which required its lessees
to pay royalties based on a percentage of
the price they received for selling the coal.
Most of that coal is sold by PVR's lessees
under long-term contracts. Prices under
those contracts increased significantly -
for contracts renewed during 2006.

The rovalties PVR received on the other
30 percent of coal produced from PVR’s
properties were based on fixed rates

per ton, which escalate annually. PVR's
average royalty rates in 2006 increased
nine percent to $2.99 per ton from $2.74
per ton in 2005.

PVR will continue its efforts to build a
coal services and infrastructure business.
Currently, PVR owns and leases to various
operators who mine on PVR’s properties,
facilities that process and load coal onto
railroad cars. PVR also plans to add to its
coal handling business which serves the
end users of coal, such as power plants.




Through PVR Midstream, PVR owns and
operates natural gas midstream assets
that include approximately 3,631 miles of
natural gas gathering pipelines and three
natural gas processing plants, which have
160 milfion cubic feet per day (or MMcfd)
of total capacity.

PVR Midstream derives revenues primarily
from gas processing contracts with natural
gas producers and from fees charged for
gathering natural gas volumes and providing
other related services. PVR Midstream also
operates a natural gas marketing business,
which aggregates third-party volumes and
sells those volumes into intrastate pipeline
systems and at market hubs accessed

by various interstate pipelines.

PVR acquired its natural gas midstream
assets through the acquisition of Cantera
Gas Resources, LLC in March 2005. The
acquisition established a platform for future
growth and diversified PVR’s cash flows into
another long-lived asset base.

During 2006, inlet volumes at PVR's gas
processing plants and gathering systems,
including gathering-only volumes, were 56.0
hillion cubic feet (or Bef), or approximately
153 MMcfd, a 20 percent increase over

the 127 MMcfd average in 2005. Gross
midstream processing margin increased to
$68.1 millicn, or $1.22 per thousand cubic
feet {Mcf), for 2006 from the $44.7 million,
or $1.15 per Mcf, for the ten months in 2005
that PVR owned the midstream operations.
Midstream operating income in 2006 was
$29.4 million, or 29 percent of PVR's total.

Much of PVR's profitability depends on the
relationship between the price it receives
for the natural gas liquids (NGLs} it extracts
and sells at its pro¢cessing plants and the
price of natural gas it buys as feedstock.
The difference between these two prices,
the so-called “frac spread,” can be volatile
and difficult to predict. Therefore, PYR
employs various hedges to protect its
margins and help insure a steady,
predictable cash flow stream.
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- > Other 2006 Developments
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CROW CREEK ACQUISITION*

New platform for production and reserve growth,
and acquisitions in the Mid-Continent

E.E ....................................................................................... GRANITE WASH
FAYETTEVILLE SHALE

rreereeneines S TE TS . HARTSHORNE
COALBED METHANE (CBM)

» $72 million cash acquisition price, funded by s Other conventional plays - 47 percent of proved reserves
existing bank facili - '
g ) v _» Daily production of 6.2 MMcfe

» 30,000 acres; 23 percent held by production )
» 482 proved developed producing wells (110 operated

» 43 Bcefe of proved reserves wells) with a working interest in the wells of 69 percent
» Additional probable and possible reserves and » 180 Hartshorne CBM and Granite Wash drilling locations
drilling locations added to inventory
» Cash acquisition price of $1.67 per Mcfe of » Establishes a new core area and added a new
proved reserves, 61 percent proved developed regional office in Tulsa

and 85 percent natural gas . . o I
» Mid-Continent region is a large market for acquisitions

» Hartshorne CBM in the Arkoma Basin - 33 percent and development and exploratory plays, including the
of proved reserves . Fayetteville Shale in Arkansas

» Granite Wash in the Anadarko Basin - 20 percent .
of proved reserves * data as of the time of the acquisition, unless otherwise noted

asmnas assnnnms sasas emcsrapmasna sssna " scesmans

» Bayou Postillion — South Louisiana Exploratory Success

In October 2006, the Cotton Land Corp. #1 well {0.4 net to PVA) was
successfully brought on line at our Bayou Postillion Prospect in |beria
Parish, Louisiana. The initial gross sales flow rate was in excess of

10 million cubic feet of natural gas equivalent (MMcfe) per day, which
subsequently increased to approximately 15 MMcfe per day. The Marie
Snyder #1 well {0.1 net) and Cofton Land Corp. #3 well (0.5 net) were
successfully completed in late 2006 and early 2007 at Bayou Postillion.
To date, there have been six successful wells drilled in Bayou Postillion and
additional drilling is planned in 2007. ;Bayou Postillion is an example of the
benefit we receive from our higher risk, higher return exploration program
in the Guif Coast that comprises a smfall part of our capital budget but can
deliver disproportionate contributions to production and reserves.

PVA 06 Annual Report




UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d} OF THE
-SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006
Commission File Number: 1-13283

Penn Virginia Corporatlon

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Virginia .  23-1184320

(State or other jurisdiction of i (LR.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification Number)

Three Radnor Corporate Center, Suite 300 .
. 100 Matsonford Road
Radnor, Pennsylvania 19087

(Address of principal executive offices)

Reglstrant s telephone number, including area code: (610) 687-8900

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act: None

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: _
Title of each class . Name of exchange on which registéred

Common Stock, $0.01 Par Value New York Stock Exchange

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well known seasoned issuer, as defmed in Rule 405 of the Securities Act of
1933, Yes X] No [] . T ‘

Indicate by check mark if the reglstram is not required to file reports pursoant to Section 13 or Sectlon 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Actof 1934. Yes [J No

Indicate -by check mark whether the registrant (1) has. filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the
Exchange Act during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and
- (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.  Yes No []

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and
will not be contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference
in Part I of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. [T]

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a non-accelerated filer. See
definition of “accelerated filer and large accelerated filer” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check One)

Large accelerated filer ‘ Accelerated filer 7] Non-accelerated filer [

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange
Act). Yes [ ] No

The aggregate market value of common stock held by non-affiliates of the registrant was $1,289,572,927 as of June 30, 2006
(the last business day of its most recently completed second fiscal quarter), based on the last sale price of such stock as quoted on
the New York Stock Exchange. For purposes of making this calculation only, the registrant has defined affiliates as including all
directors and all executive officers of the registrant, but excluding any institutional shareholders. This determination is not
necessarily a conclusive determination for other purposes.

As of February 28, 2007, 18,791,869 shares of common stock of the registrant were issued and outstanding.
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PART 1

Item 1 Business
General

Penn Virginia Corporation is a Virginia corporation founded in 1882 whose common stock is traded on the
New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “PVA.” We are engaged in the exploration, development and
production of crude oil and natural gas primarily in the Appalachian, Mississippi, Mid-Continent and Gulf Coast
onshore areas of the United States. We also collect royalties on various oil and gas properties in which we own a

mineral fee interest. Unless the context requires otherwise, references to the “Company,” “we,” “us” or “our” in
this Annual Report on Form 10-K refer to Penn Virginia Corporation and its subsidiaries.

We are also indirectly involved in the businesses engaged in by Penn Virginia Resource Partners, L.P., or
PVR, a Delaware limited partnership whose-common units are traded on the New York Stock Exchange under
the symbol “PVR.” We own PVG GP, LLC, the sole general partner of Penn Virginia GP Holdings, L.P., or
PVG, a Delaware limited partnership whose common units are traded on the New York Stock Exchange under
the symbol “PVG.” We also own an approximately 82% limited partner interest in PVG. As of December 31,
2006, PVG owned approximately 44% of PVR, consisting of a 2% general partner interest and an approximately
42% limited partner interest in PVR. We directly own an additional 0.6% interest in PVR. As part of its
ownership of PVR’s general partner, PVG also own the rights, referred to as “incentive distribution rights,” to
receive an increasing percentage of. PVR's quarterly distributions of available cash from operating surplus after
certain levels of cash distributions have been achieved. See Item I, “Business—Partnership Distributions,” for
more information on incentive distribution rights.

PVR conducts operations in two business segments: coal and natural gas midstream. PVR does not operate
any coal mines, but rather leases its-coal reserves to various mining operators in exchange for royalty payments.
Additionally, PVR provides fee-based coal preparation and loading facilities to some of its lessees and to other
third party industrial end-users. With the acquisition of a natural gas midstream business in March 2005, PVR
entered the midstream gas gathering and processmg business with primary locations in the Mid-Continent area of
Oklahoma and the Texas panhandle.

Segments

We operate in three primary business segments. We are in the crude oil and natural gas exploration and
production business and, through our direct and indirect ownership interests in PVR, we are in the coal and
natural gas midstream businesses. In 2006, approximately 50% of our operating income was attributable to our
oil and gas segment, 43% was attributable to our coal segment and 17% was attributable to our natural gas
midstream segment, less a 10% operating loss related 1o corporate and other functions. See Note 20 in the Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements for financial information concerning our business segments.

Oil and Gas Segment Overview

In our oil and gas segment, we explore for, develop, produce and sell crude oil, condensate and natural gas
primarily in the Appalachian, Mississippi, Mid-Continent and Gulf Coast onshore regions of the United States.
At December 31, 2006, we had proved oil and natural gas reserves of approximately 5 million barrels of oil and
condensate and 457 billion cubic feet (or Bef) of natural gas, or 487 billion cubic feet equivalent (or Befe). Oil |
and natural gas production from ouvr properties increased to 31.3 Befe in 2006, an increase of 14% from 27.4
Bcfe produced in 2005. :

Our revenues, profitability and future rate of growth are highly dependent on the prevailing. prices for oil
and natural gas, which are affected by numerous factors that are generally beyond our control. Crude oil-prices
are generally determined by global supply and demand. Natural gas prices are influenced by national and
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regional supply and demand. A substantial or extended decline in the price of oil or natural gas could have a
materia) adverse effect on our revenues, profitability and cash flow and could, under certain circumstances, result
in an impairment of some of our oil and natural gas properties. Our future profitability and growth is also highly
dependent on the results of our exploratory and development drilling programs.

In addition to our conventional development program, we have continued to expand our development of
unconventional plays such as coal bed methane (or CBM) gas reserves in Appalachia and Mid-Continent and the
Cotton Valley play in east Texas. We are committed to ‘expanding our oil and gas reserves and production
primarily by developing our existing inventory of drilling'locations and by using our ability to internally generate
exploratory prospects and development drilling programs. - . :

_PVR Coal Segment Overview

- PVR’s coal segment. includes management and leasing of coal properties and subsequent collection of
royalties. Substantially all of PVR’s leases require the lessee to pay minimum rental payments to PVR in
monthly or-annual installments. PVR actively works with its lessees to develop efficient methods to exploit its
reserves and to maximize production from its properties. PVR also earns revenues from providing fee-based coal
preparation and transportation services to its lessees, which- enhance their production levels and generate
additional coal royalty revenues, and from industrial third party coal end-users by owning and operating coal
handling facilities through its-joint venture with Massey Energy Company, or Massey. In addition, PVR earns
revenues from oil and gas royalty interests it owns, from coal transportation, or wheelage, rights and from the
sale of standing timber on its properties.

As of December 31, 2006, PVR owned or controlled approximately 763 million tons of proven and probable
coal reserves in Central and Northern Appalachia, the San Juan Basin and the Illinois Basin. As of December 3 1,
2006, approximately 87% of PVR’s proven and probable coal reserves was “steam” coal used primarily by
electric generation utilities, and the remaining 13% was metallurgical coal used primarily by steel manufacturers.
PVR enters into long-term leases with experienced, third-party mine operators providing them the right to mine
its coal reserves in exchange for royalty payments. PVR does not operate any mines. In 2006, PVR’s lessees
produced 32.8 million tons of coal from its properties and paid to PVR coal royalty revenues of $98.2 million, for
an average gross coal royalty per ton of $2.99. Approximately 84% of PVR’s coal royalty revenues in 2006 and
83% of PVR’s coal royalty revenues in 2005 were derived from coal mined on its properties under leases
containing royalty rales based on the higher of a fixed base price or a percentage of the gross sales price. The
balance of PVR’s coal royalty revenues for the respective periods was derived from coal mined on its properties
undér teases containing fixed royalty rates that escalate annually. .

PVR’s management continues to focus on acquisitions that increase and diversify its sources of cash flow.
During 2006, PVR increased its coal reserves by 96 million tons, or 14%, from its coal reserves as of
December 31, 2005, by completing three coal reserve acquisitions with an aggregate purchase price of
approximately $76 million. For a more detailed discussion of PVR’s acquisitions, see ltem 7, “Managements’
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Acquisitions and Investments.”

PVR Natural Gas Midstream Segment Overview

. PVR owns and operates midstream assets that include approximately 3,631 miles of natural gas gathering
. pipelines'and three natural gas processing facilities located in Oklahoma and the panhandle of Texas, which have
160 million cubic feet per day (or MMcfd) of total capacity. PVR’s midstream business derives revenues
primarily from gas processing contracts with natural gas producers and from fees charged for gathering natural
gas volumes and providing other related services. PVR also owns a natural gas marketing business, which
aggregates third-party volumes and sells those volumes into intrastate pipeline systems and at market hubs
accessed by various interstate pipelines. PVR acquired its natural gas midstream assets from Cantera Gas
Resources, LLC, or Cantera, in March 2005. PVR’s management believes that this acquisition established a
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platform for future growth in the natural gas midstream sector and diversified its cash flows into another long-
lived asset base. Since acquiring these assets, PVR has expanded its nawral gas midstream business by adding
181 miles of new gathering lines.

For the year ended December 31, 2006, inlet volumes at PVR’s gas processing plants and gathering systems,
including gathering-only volumes, were 56.0 Bcf, or approximately 153 MMcfd. Two of PVR’s natural gas
midstream customers, ConocoPhillips Company and BP Canada Energy Marketing Corp., accounted for 32%
and 17% of PVR’s natural gas midstream revenues in 2006.

- .

Corporate and Other

Corporate and other primarily represents corporate functions,

Business Strategy
We intend to pursue the following business strategies: e

«  Focus on relatively low risk, unconventional natural gas-oriented resource plays. In addition to our
established core areas, such as the horizontal CBM play in Appalachia, the Cotton Valley play in east
Texas and north Louisiana and the Selma Chalk in Mississippl, we are assessing the potential to
establish new sustainable growth in organic shale and other unconventional plays in new areas, such as
the Williston and Illinois Basins. We work with established industry partners in several of these core
and potential new areas. ‘

[

« Generate and drill exploratory prospects. We intend to concentrate on exploratory prospects in south
Texas and south Louisiana, which could result in an increase in our proved reserves and production. As
compared to our lower risk unconventional plays, these prospects tend to have relatively higher risk
profiles and higher returns when successful, and we work with industry panners to better manage COosts
and risks.

*  Continue to grow coal reserve holdings through acquisitions and investments in PVR’s existing market
areas, as well as strategically entering new markets. During 2006, PVR increased its coal reserves by
96 million tons, or 14%, from its coal reserves as of December 31, 2005, by completing three coal
reserve acquisitions with an aggregate purchase price of approximately $76 million. While PVR
continues to build upon its core holdings in Appalachia, it also continues to monitor coal opportunities
in other areas. For example, in 2005 and 2006, PVR made investments in lllinois Basin coal reserves
because PVR views the Illinois Basin as a growth area, both because of its proximity to power plants
and because PVR expects future environmental regulations will require scrubbing of not only higher
sulfur Mlinois Basin coal, but most coals, including lower sulfur coals from other basins. PVR expects
to continue to diversify its coal reserve holdings into this and other domestic basins in the future.

' Expand PVR'’s coal services and infrastructure business on its properties. Coal infrastructure projecls
typically involve long-lived, fee-based assets that generally produce steady and predictable cash flows
and are therefore, attractive to publicly traded limited partnerships. PVR owns a number of such
infrastructure facilities and intends to continue to look for growth opportunities in this area of
operations. For example, PVR completed construction of a new preparation and loading facility in
September 2006 on property it acquired in 2005. Operauons at the facility commenced in the fourth
quarter of 2006. PVR’s joint venture with Massey is expected to prov1de other development
opportunities for coal-related infrastructure projects.

*  Expand PVR’s midstream operations through acquisitions of new gathering and processing related
assets and by adding new production to existing systems. PVR continvally seeks new. supplies of

- natural- gas both to offset the natural declines in production from the wells currently connected ‘1o its
systems and to increase throughput volume. New natural gas supplies are obtained for all of PVR’s
systems .by contracting for production from new wells, connecting. new wells drilled on dedicated
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acreage and by contracting for natural gas that has been released from competitors’ systems. In 2006,
PVR added approximately 181 miles of new gathering lines, allowing it to connect 158 new wells to its
systems.

»  Expand PVR's midstream operations by utilizing the advantages of PVR’s relationship with us. During
2006, PVR began marketing our natural gas production in Louisiana, Oklahoma and Texas, replacing a
third party marketing company and allowing us to realize higher prices for our oil and natural gas sold
in that region. We will continue to lock for ways to take advantage of our natural relationship with
PVR in mutually beneficial ways. '

*  Maintain financial discipline and flexibility. We, PVG and PVR operate with separate, independent
capital structures. We intend to continue to be fiscally conservative in all three entities and to manage
our capital structure for the long term, which means that we will continue to be cautious regarding debt
levels and dividend or distribution increases.

Contracts

Oil and Gas Segment

Transportation. The majority of our natural gas production is transported to market on three major pipeline
or transmission systems. NiSource Inc., Crossiex Energy Services L.P. and Gulf South Pipeline Company, L.P
transported 32%, 20% and 19% of our 2006 natural gas production. The remainder of our natural gas production
was transported by several pipeline companies in Louisiana, Texas and West Virginia.-In almost all cases, our
natural gas is sold at interconnects with transmission pipelines.

We have entered into contracts which provide firm transportation capacity rights for specified volumes per
day on a pipeline system for terms ranging from one to 15 years. The contracts require us to pay transportation
demand charges regardless of the amount of pipeline capacity we use. We may sell excess capacity to third
parties at our discretion.

Marketing. We generally sell our natural gas using spot market and short-term fixed price physical
contracts. For the year ended December 31, 2006, three customers of our oil and gas segment, Crosstex Gulfcoast
Marketing, Dominion Field Services and Amerada Hess Corporation, accounted for approximately 24%, 22%
and 11% of our natural gas and oil and condensate revenues of $234.2 million,

I;VR C’oal Segment

PVR earns most of its coal royalty revenues under long-term leases that generally require its lessees to make
royalty payments to it based on the higher of a percentage of the gross sales price or a fixed price per ton of coal
they sell. The balance of PVR’s coal royalty revenues are earned under two long-term leases with affiliates of
Peabody Energy Corporation (NYSE: BTU), or Peabody, that require the lessees to make royaity payments to
PVR based on fixed royalty rates which escalate annually. A typical lease either expires upon exhaustion of the
leased reserves, which is the case with the two Peabody leases, or has a five to ten-year base term, with the lessee
having an option to extend the lease for at least five years after the expiration of the base term.

Substantially all of PVR’s leases require the lessee to pay minimum rental payments in moﬁlh]y or annual
installments, even if no mining activities are ongoing. These minimum rentals are recoupable, usually over a
period from one to three years from the time of payment, against the production royalties owed to PVR once coal
production commences. : ' ' '

In addition to the terms described above, substantially all of PVR’s leases impose obligations on the lessees
to diligently mine the leased coal using modern mining techniques, indemnify PVR for any damages it incurs in
connection with the lessee’s mining operations, including any damages it may incur due to the lessee’s failure to
fulfill reclamation or other environmental obligations, conduct mining operations in compliance with all
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applicable laws, obtain our written consent prior to assigning the lease and maintain commercially reasonable
amounts of general liability and other insurance. Substantially all of the leases grant PVR the right to review all
lessee mining plans and maps, enter the leased premises to examine mine workings and conduct audits of lessees’
compliance with lease terms. In the event of a default by a lessee, substantially al} of the leases give PVR the
right to terminate the lease and take possession of the leased premises.

PVR Natural Gas Midsiream Segment

PVR’s natural gas midstream segment is engaged in providing gas processing, gathering and other related
natural gas services. PVR’s midstream business generates revenues primarily from gas purchase and processing
contracts with natural gas producers and from fees charged for gathering natural gas volumes and providing other
related services. During the year ended December 31, 2006, PVR’s natural gas midstream business generated a
majority of its gross margin from two types of contractual arrangements under which its margin is exposed to
increases and decreases in the price of natural gas and natural gas liquids {or NGLs): (i) percentage-of-proceeds
and (ii) keep-whole arrangements. In 2006, approximately 50% of PVR’s natural gas volumes were processed
under gas purchase/keep-whole contracts, 25% were processed under percentage of proceeds contracts, and 25%
were processed under fee-based gathering contracts. A majority of the gas purchase/keep-whole and percentage
of proceeds contracts include fee-based components such as gathering and compression charges. There is also a
processing fee floor included in many of the gas purchase/keep-whole contracts that ensures a minimum
processing margin should the actual margins fall below the floor.

Gas purchasetkeep-whole arrangements. Under these arrangements, PVR generally purchases natural gas at
the wellhead at either (i) a percentage discount to a specified index price, (ii) a specified index price less a fixed
amount or (iil) a combination of (i} and (ii). PVR then gathers the natural gas to one of its plants where it is
processed to extract the entrained NGLs, which are then sold to third parties at market prices. PVR resells the
remaining natural gas to third parties at an index price which typically corresponds to the specified purchase
index. Because the extraction of the NGLs from the natural gas during processing reduces the British thermal
unit (or BTU) content of the natural gas, PVR retains a reduced volume of gas to sell after processing.
Accordingly, under these arrangements, PVR’s revenues and gross margins increase as the price of NGLs
increases relative to the price of natural gas, and its revenues and gross margins decrease as the price of natural
gas increases relative to the price of NGLs. PVR has generally been able to mitigate its exposure in the latter case
by requiring the payment under many of its gas purchase/keep-whole arrangements of minimum processing
charges which ensures that PVR receives a minimurn amount of processing revenue. The gross margins that PVR
realizes under the arrangements described in clauses (i) and (iii) above also decrease in periods of low natural gas
prices because these gross margins are based on a percentage of the index price.

Percentage-of-proceeds arrangements. Under percentage-of-proceeds arrangements, PVR generally gathers
and processes natural gas on behalf of producers, sells the resulting residue gas and NGL volumes at market
prices and remits to producers an agreed upon percentage of the proceeds of those sales based on either an index
price or the price actually received for the gas and NGLs. Under these types of arrangements, PYR’s revenues
and gross margins increase as natural gas prices and NGL prices increase, and its revenues and gross margins
decrease as natural gas prices and NGL prices decrease.

Fee-based arrangements. Under fee-based arrangements, PVR receives fees for gathering, compressing and/
or processing natural gas. The revenue PVR earns from these arrangements is directly dependent on the volume
of natural gas that flows through its systems and is independent of commodity prices. To the extent a sustained
decline in commodity prices results in a decline in volumes, however, PVR’s revenues from these arrangements
would be reduced due to the related reduction in drilling and development of new supply.

In many cases, PVR provides services under contracts that contain a combination of more than one of the
arrangements described above. The terms of its contracts vary based on gas quality conditions, the competitive
environment at the time the contracts were signed and customer requirements. The contract mix and, accordingly,
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exposure to natural gas and NGL prices, may change as a result of changes in producer preferences, expansion in
regions where some types of contracts are more common and other market factors.

PVR is also engaged in natural gas marketing by aggregating third-party volumes and selling those volumes
into interstate and intrastate pipeline systems such as Enogex and ONEOK and at market hubs accessed by
various interstate pipelines. The largest third-party customer is Chesapeake Energy Corp. with volumes
contracted through 2007. Revenue from this business does not generate qualifying income for a master limited
partnership, but PVR does not expect it to have an impact on its tax status, as it does not represent a significant
percentage of its operating income. For the year ended December 31, 2006, this business generated $2.2 million
in net revenue. : |

Commodity Derivative Contracts

QOur oil and gas and natural gas midstream segments utilize costless collars, three-way coliars and swap
derivative contracts to hedge against the variability in cash flows associated with forecasted oil and gas revenues
and natural gas midstream revenues and cost of midstream gas purchased. While the use of derivative
instruments limits the risk of adverse price movements, their use also may limit future revenues or cost savings
from favorable price movements. With respect to a costless collar contract, the counterparty is required to make a
payment to us if the settlement price for any settlement period is below the floor price for such contract. We are
required to make payment to the counterparty if the settlement price for any settlement period is above the ceiling
price for such contract. Neither party is required to make a payment to the other party if the settlement price for
any setilement period is equal to or greater than the floor price and equal to or less than the ceiling price for such
contract. A three-way collar contract consists of a collar contract as described above plus a put option contract
sold by us with a price below the floor price of the collar, This additional put requires us to make a payment to
the counterparty if the settlement price for arny settlement period is below the put option price. By combining the
collar coniract with the additional put option, we are entitled to a net payment equal to the difference between the
floor price of the collar contract and the additional put option price if the settlement price is equal to or less than
the additional put option price. 1f the settlement price is greater than the additional put option price, the result is
the same as it would have been with a collar contract only. This strategy enables us to increase the floor and the
ceiling price of the collar beyond the range of a traditional collar contract while defraying the associated cost
with the sale of the additional put option. With respect to a swap contract, the counterparty is required to make a
payment to us if the settlement price for any settlement period is less than the swap price for such contract, and
we are required to make a payment to the counterparty if the settlement price for any settlement period is greater
than the swap price for such contract. See Note 10 in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for a
description of our derivative program.




Corporate Structure

Because we control the general partner of PVG, the financial résults of PVG are included in our
consolidated financial statements, Because PVG controls the general partner of PVR, the financial results of PVG
include those of PVR. However, PVG and PVR function with a capital structure that is independent of each other
and us, with each having publicly traded common units and PVR having its own debt instruments. PVG does not
currently have any debt instruments. The following diagram depicts our ownership of PVG and PVR as of
December 31, 2006 (after giving effect to the exercise of the underwriters’ option to purchase additional PVG
common units granted in connection with PVG’s initial public offering, or the. PVG 1PO):

Penn Virginia Corporation
and ita Affillates
{NYSE; PVA)
32,087,424 PVG Cammon Units 1
304,888 PVR Common Units £2% Limited
- Partner snierest

100% Ownigrship Interest

18% Limited Hor-econpmic Gereral
Partner Interest ——| Partner Interest

|
Penn Virginia GP HoldIngs, L.P.
and its Aftlliates 0.6% Limited
.+ [NYSE: PVG} Partnet Intecest © -
15,541,738 PVR Common Units

4045311 PYR Class B Units  « 42% Limited
Pariner inigrest
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1
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Pann Vlrginia Resource
ug
PVR Incanm Disinbsnm Rignts
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¥
Barnar Irterest 2% Genezal Partner Interest
A |

Pubtic Unitholders

Penn Virglnia Resource Partners, L.P.
and its Subsidiaries

{NYSE: PVR} : i

45,108,285 Units Qutstanding

Partnership Distributions
PVG Cash Distributions

. PVG paid a cash distribution of $0.07 per common unit on February 14, 2007, which represented a $0.96
per unit distribution on an annualized basis that was prorated for the period beginning on December 5, 2006, the
initial trading date of PVG’s common units on the New York Stock Exchange, and ending on December 31,
2006. We received total distributions from PVG of $2.2 million in February 2007. For the remainder of 2007,
PVG expects to make quarterly distributions of $0.24 ($0. 96 on an annualized basis) or more per common unit,

PVR Cash Distributions

PVR' paid cash distributions of $1.475 per common and subordinated unit during the year ended
December 31, 2006. In the first quarter of 2007, PVR paid a quarterly distribution of $0.40 ($1.60 on an
annualized basis) per unit with respect to the fourth quarter of 2006. For the remainder of 2007, PVR-expects to
pay quarterly distributions of $0.40 ($1.60 on an annualized basis) or more per common and Class B unit.




Prior to the PVG IPO in December 2006, we indirectly owned common units representing an approximately
37% limited partner interest in PVR, as well as the sole 2% general partner interest and all of the incentive
distribution rights in PVR. We received total distributions from PVR of $28.3 million and $21.2 million in 2006
and 2005, as shown in the following table (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2006 2005
Limited PAMNEr UNGLS . ... ..o oo $22,799  $19,281
General partner interest (2%)........ e 1,254 1,021
Incentive distribution rights . ......... ... ... .. ... ... 4,273 910
Total . $28,326 $21,212

In conjunction with the PVG PO, we contributed our limited partner interest and general partner interest,
including our incentive distribution rights, in PVR to PVG in exchange for a limited partner interest and the
general partner interest in PVG. PVG also purchased additional common units and Class B units of PVR with the
proceeds of the PVG IPO. Consequently, PVG is currently entitled to receive certain cash distributions payable
with respect to the common and Class B units of PVR, the 2% general partner interest in PVR and the incentive
distribution rights in PVR.

PVR Incentive Distribution Rights

A wholly owned subsidiary of PVG is the general partner of PVR and, as such, holds certain incentive
distribution rights which represent the right to receive an increasing percentage of quarterly distributions of
available cash from operating surplus after PYR has paid minimum quarterly distributions and certain target
distribution levels have been achieved. The minimum quarterly distribution is $0.25 per unit ($1.00 per unit on
an annualized basis). PVR’s general partner currently holds [00% of the incentive distribution rights, but may
transfer these rights separately from its general partner interest to an affiliate (other than an individual) or to
another entity as part of the merger or consolidation of the general partner with or into such entity or the transfer
of all or substantially all of the general partner’s assets to another entity without the prior approval of PVR’s
unitholders if the transferee agrees to be bound by the provisions of PYR’s partnership agreement. Prior to
September 30, 2011, other transfers of incentive distribution rights will require the affirmative vote of holders of
a majority of PVR’s outstanding common units and subordinated units, voting as separate classes, On or after
September 30, 2011, the incentive distribution rights will be freely transferable. The incentive distributions rights
are payable as follows:

If for any quarter:

«  PVR has distributed available cash from operating surplus to its common, subordinated and Class B
unitholders and in an amount equal to the minimum quarterly distribution; and

* PVR has distributed available cash from operating surplus on outstanding common units in an amount
necessary to eliminaté any cumulative arrearages in payment of the minimum quarterly distribution;
then, PVR will distribute any additional available cash from operating surplus for that quarter among the
unitholders and our general partner subsidiary in the following manner:

+  First, 98% to all unitholders, and 2% to the general partner, uniil each unitholder has received a total of
$0.275 per unit for that quarter;.

* Second, 85% to all unitholders, and 15% to the general pariner, unti! each unitholder has received a
total of $0.325 per unit for that quarter; - .

* Third, 75% to all unitholders, and 25% to the general partner, until each unitholder has received a total
of $0.375 per unit for that quarter; and

» Thereafter, 50% to all unitholders and 50% to the general partner.
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Subordinated Units

Until November 14, 2006, PVR had a separate class of subordinated units representing of limited partner
interests in PVR, and the rights of holders of subordinated units to participate in distributions to limited partners
were subordinated to the rights of the holders of PVR’s common units. On November 14, 2006, all of PVR’s
subordinated units converted into common units-on a one-for-one basis and no subordinated units remain
outstanding.

Class B Units

PVR currently has a separate ‘class of units representing limited partner interests in PVR called Class B
units. Each Class B unit is currently entitled to receive 100% of the quarterly cash distribution paid in respect of
each common unit except that the Class B units are subordinated to the common units with respect to the
payment of the minimum quarterly distribution and any arrearages with respect to the payment of the minimum
quarterly distribution. PVR is required to submit to a vote of its unitholders, as promptly as practicable, a
proposal to change the terms of the Class B units in order to provide that the Class B units will convert into
common units, on a one-for-one basis, immediately upon the approval by PVR's unitholders. Holders of the
Class B units will not be entitled to vote upon the proposal to change the terms of the Class B units, but otherwise
will vote with the common units as a single class on each matter with respect to which the common units are
entitled to vote. If PVR’s unitholders do not approve the proposal to change the terms of the Class B units before
_December 8, 2007, then each Class B unit will be entitled to receive 115% of the quarterly amount PVR
distributes in respect of each common unit on a subordinated basis to the payment of the minimum quarterly
distribution on the common units.

Upon the dissolution and liquidation of PVR, each Class B unit is currently entitled to receive 100% of the
amount distributed on each common unit, but only after each common unit has received an amount equal to its
capital account, plus the minimum quarterly distribution for the quarter in which the liquidation occurs, plus any
arrearages in the minimum quarterty distribution with respect to prior quarters. If, however, PVR’s unitholders
do not approve the proposal to change the terms of the Class B units to make them convertible into common
units, then each Class B unit will be entitled upon liquidation to receive 115% of the amount distributed in
respect of each common unit, but only after each common unit has received an amount equal to its capital
account, plus the minimum quarterly distribution for the quarter in which the liquidation occurs, plus any
arrearages in the minimum quarterly distribution with respect to prior quarters on a subordinated basis to
liquidating distributions on the common units,

Competition
Oil and Gas Segment

The oil and natural gas industry is very competmve and we compete with a substantial number of -other
companies that are large, well-established and have greater financial and operational resources than we do, which
may adversely affect our ability to compete or grow our business. Many such companies not only engage in the
acquisition, exploration, development and production of oil and natural gas reserves, but also carry on refining
operations, electricity generation and the marketing of refined products. Competition is particularly intense in the
acquisition of prospective oil and natural gas properties and oil and gas reserves. Our competitive position
depends on our geological, geophysical and engineering expertise, our financial resources, our ability to develop
properties and our ability to select, acquire and develop proved reserves. We compete with other oil and natural
gas companies to secure drilling rigs and other equipment necessary for the drilling and completion of wells and
recruiting and retaining qualified personnel, including geologists, geo-physicists, engineers and other specialists.
Such equipment and labor may be in short supply from time to time. Shortages of equipment, labor or materials
may result in increased costs or the inability to obtain such resources as needed. We also compete with major and
independent oil and gas companies in the marketing and sale of oil and natural gas, and the oil and natural gas
industry in general competeq with other industries supplying energy and fuel to industrial, commercial and -
‘individual consumers. « - i :




PVR Coal Segment

The coal industry is intensely competitive primarily as a result of the existence of numerous producers.
PVR’s lessees compete "with both large and small coal producers in various regions of the United States for
domestic sales. The industry has undergone significant consolidation which has led to some of the competitors of
PVR’s lessees having significantly larger financial and operating resources than most of PVR’s lessees. PVR’s
lessees compete on the basis of coal price at the mine, coal quality (including sulfur content), transportation cost
from the mine to the customer and the reliability of supply. Continued demand for PVR's coal and the prices that
PVR’s lessees obtain are also affected by demand for electricity, demand for metallurgical coal, access to
transportation, environmental and government regulations, technological developments and the availability and
price of alternative fuel supplies, including nuclear, natural gas, oil and hydroelectric power. Demand for PVR’s
low sulfur coal and the prices PVR’s lessees will be able to obtain for it will also be affected by the price and
availability of high sulfur coal, which can be marketed in tandem with emissions allowances which permit the
high sulfur coal to meet federal Clean Air Act requirements.

PVR Midstream Segment

The ability to offer natural gas producers competitive gathering and processing arrangements and
subsequent reliable service is fundamental to obtammg and keeping gas supplies for PVR’s gathering systems.
The primary concerns of the producer are:

* the pressure mamtamed on the systern at the point of receipt;

* the relative volumes of gas consumed as fuel and lost;

» the gathering/processing fees charged;

= the timeliness of well connects;

« the customer service orientation of the gatherer/proclessor; and

 the reliability of the ,field' services provided.

PVR experiences competition in all of its midstream markets: PVR’s competitors include major integrated
oil companies, interstate and intrastate pipelines and companies that gather, compress, process, transport and
market natural gas. Many of PVR’s competitors have greater financial resources and access to larger natural gas
supplies than PVR does.

Government Regulation and Environmental Matters

The operations of our oil and segment and PVR’s coal segment and natural gas midstream segment are
subject to envirenmental laws and regulations adopted by various governmental authorities in the jurisdictions in
which these operations are conducted.

Oil and Gas Segment

State Regulatory Matters. Various aspects of our o1l and natural gas operations are regulated by
administrative agencies under statutory provisions of the states where such operations. are conducted. All of the
jurisdictions in which we own or operate producing crude oil and natural gas properties have statutory provisions
regulating the exploration for and production of crude oil and natural gas. These provisions include permitting
regulations regarding the drilling of wells, maintaining bonding: requirements to drill or operate wells, locating
wells, the method of drilling and casing wells, the surface use and restoration of properties upon which wells are
drilled and the piugging and abandoning of wells. Our operations are also subject to various conservation laws
and regulations. These include the regulation of the size of drilling and spacing units or proration units, the
number of wells that may be drilled in an area and the unitization or pooling of crude 6il and natural gas
properties. [n addition, state conservation laws establish maximum rates of production from crude oil and natural
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gas wells, generally prohibit the venting or flaring of natural gas and impose certain requirements regarding the
ratability or fair apportionment of production from fields and individual wells. The effect of these regulations is
to limit the amounts of crude oil and natural gas we can produce from our wells and to limit the number of wells
or the locations at which we can drill.

Federal Energy Regulaiory Commission. The Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (or the FERC)
regulates the transportation and sale for resale of natural gas in interstate commerce under the Natural Gas Act of
1938 (or the NGA) and the Natural Gas Policy Act of 1978 (or the NGPA). In the past, the federal government
has regulated the prices at which oil and gas could be sold. The Natural Gas Wellhead Decontrol. Act of 1989
removed all NGA and NGPA price and nonprice controls affecting producers’ wellhead sales of natural gas
effective January 1, 1993. While sales by producers of their own natural gas production ang all sales of crude oil,
condensate and natural gas liquids can currently be made at market prices, Congress could reenact price controls
in the future,

-Commencing in April 1992, the FERC issued Order Nos. 636, 636-A, 636-B and 636-C (or Order No. 636),
which require interstate pipelines. to provide transportation separate, or “unbundled,” from the pipelines’ sale of
gas. Also, Order No. 636 requires pipelines to provide open-access transportation on a basis that is equal for all
gas supplies. Although Order No. 636 does not directly regulate gas producers like us, the FERC has stated that it
intends for Order No. 636 to foster increased competition within al} phases of the natural gas industry. The courts
have largely affirmed the significant features of Order No. 636 and numerous related orders pertaining to the
individual pipelines, although certain appeals remain pending and the FERC continues to review and modify its
open access regulations, In particular, the FERC has issued Order Nos. 637, 637-A and 637-B which, among
other things, (i) permit pipelines to charge different maximum cost-based rates for peak and off-peak periods,
(i) encourage auctions for pipeline capacity, (iii} require pipelines to implement imbalance management services
and (iv) restrict the ability of pipelines to impose penalties for imbalances, overruns and non-compliance with
operational flow orders,

The Energy Policy Act of 2005 amended the NGA and the NGPA and gave the FERC the authority to assess
civil penalties of up to $1 million per day per violation for violations of rules, regulations, and orders issued
under these acts. In addition, the FERC has issued regulations that make it unlawful for any entity in connection
with the purchase or sale of natural -gas or the purchase or sale of transportation services subject to the
jurisdiction of the FERC to use any manipulative or deceptive device or contrivance, '

While any additional FERC action on these matters would affect us only indirectly, these changes are
intended to further enhance competition in, and prevent manipulation of, nawral gas markets. We cannot predict
what further action the FERC will take on these matters, nor can we predict whether the FERC’s actions will
achieve its stated goal of increasing competition' in, and preventing manipulation of, natural gas markets.
However, we do not believe that we will be treated materially differently than other natural gas producers with
which we compete. ‘

Environmental Maziters. Extensive federal, state -and local laws govern oil and natural gas operations,

_regulate the discharge of materials into the environment or otherwise relate to the protection of the environment,

Numerous governmental departments issue rules and regulations to implement and enforce such laws that are
often difficult and costly to comply with and which carry substantial administrative, civil and even criminal
penalties for failure to comply. Some laws, rules and regulations relating to protection of the environment may,
in certain circumstances, impose “strict liability” for environmental contamination, rendering a person liable for
environmental and natural resource damages and cleanup costs without regard to negligence or fault on the pan
of such person. Other laws, rules and regulations may restrict the rate of oil and natural gas production below the
rate that would otherwise exist or even prohibit exploration or production activities in sensitive areas. In addition,
state 'laws often require some form of remedial action to prevent pollution from former operations, such as
closure of inactive pits and plugging of abandoned wells. The regulatory burden on the oil and natural gas
industry increases its cost of doing business and consequently affects its profitability. These laws, rules and
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regulations affect our operations, as well as the oil and gas exploration and production industry in general. We
believe that we are in substantial compliance with current applicable environmental laws, rules and regulations
and that continued compliance with existing requirements will not have a material adverse impact on us,
Nevertheless, changes in existing environmental laws or the adoption of new environmental laws have the
potential to adversely affect our operations.

OSHA. We are subject to the requirements of the Occupational Safety and Health Act (or OSHA) and
comparable state laws that regulate the protection of the health and safety of workers. In addition, the OSHA
hazard communication standard requires that information be maintained about hazardous materials used or
produced in our operations and that this information be provided to employees, state and local government
authorities and citizens )

PVR Coal Segment

General Regulation Applicable to Coal Lessees. PVR’s lessees are obligated to conduct mining operations
in compliance with all applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations. These laws and regulations
include matters involving the discharge of materials into the environment, employee health and safety, mine
permits and other licensing requirements, reclamation and restoration of mining properties after mining is
completed, management of materials generated by mining operations, surface subsidence from underground
mining, water pollution, legistatively mandated benefits for current and retired coal miners, air quality standards,
protection of wetlands, plant and wildlife protection, limitations on land use, storage of petroleum products and
substances which are regarded as hazardous under applicable laws and management of electrical equipment
containing polychlorinated biphenyls (or PCBs). Because of extensive and comprehensive regulatory
requirements, violations during mining operations are not unusual in the industry and, notwithstanding
compliance efforts, PVR does not believe violations by its lessees can be eliminated completely. However, none
of the violations to date, or the monetary penalties assessed, have been material to us, PVR or, to our knowledge,
to PVR’s lessees. PVR does not currently expect that future compliance will have a material adverse effect on
PVR.

While it is not possible to quantify the costs of compliance by PVR’s lessees with all applicable federal,
state and local laws and regulations, those costs have been and are expected to continue to be significant. The
lessees post performance bonds pursuant to federal and state mining laws and regulations for the estimated costs
of reclamation and mine closing, including the cost of treating mine water discharge when necessary. We do not
accrue for such costs because PVR’s lessees are contractually liable for all costs relating to their mining
operations, including the costs of reclamation and mine closure. However, PVR does require some smaller
lessees to deposit into escrow certain funds for reclamation and mine closure costs or post performance bonds for
these costs. Although the lessees typically accrue adequate amounts for these costs, their future operating results
would be adversely affected if they later determined these accruals to be insufficient. Compliance with these laws
and regulations has substantially increased the cost of coal mining for all domestic coal producers.

In addition, the utility industry, which is the most significant end-user of coal, is subject to extensive
regulation regarding the environmental impact of its power generation activities which could affect demand for
coal mined by PVR’s lessees. The possibility exists that new legislation or regulations may be adopted which
have a significant impact on the mining operations of PVR’s lessees or their customers’ ability to use coal and
may require PVR, its lessees or their customers. to change operations significantly or incur substantial costs,

Alr Emissions. The federal Clean Air Act and corresponding state and local laws: and regulations affect all
aspects of PVR’s business. The Clean Air Act directly impacts PVR’s lessees’ coal mining and processing
operations by imposing permitling requirements and, in some cases, requirements to install certain emissions
control equipment, on sources that emit various hazardous and non-hazardous air pollutants. The Clean Air Act
also indirectly affects coal mining operations by extensively regulating the air emissions of coal-fired electric
power generating plants. There have been a series of recent federal rulemakings that are focused on' emissions
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from coal-fired electric generating facilities. Installation of additional emissions control technology and
additional measures required under U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (or the EPA) laws and regulations
will make it more costly to operate coal-fired.power plants and, depending on the requirements of individual state
implementation plans, could make coal a less attractive fuel alternative in the planning and building of power
plants in the future, Any reduction in coal’s share of power generating capacity could negatively impact PVR’s
lessees’ ability to sell coal, which could have a material effect on PVR’s coal royalty revenues.

The EPA’s Acid Rain Program, provided in Title 1V of the Clean Air Act, regulates emissions of sulfur
dioxide from electric generating facilities. Sulfur dioxide is a by-product of coal combustion. Affected facilities
purchase or are otherwise allocated sulfur dioxide emissions allowances, which must be surrendered annually-in
an amount equal to a facility’s sulfur dioxide emissions in that year, Affected facilities may sell or trade excess
allowances to other facilities that require additional allowances to offset their sulfur dioxide emissions. In
addition to purchasing or trading for additional sulfur dioxide allowances, affected power facilities can satisfy the
requirements of the EPA’s Acid Rain Program by switching to lower sulfur fuels, installing pollution control
devices such as flue gas desulfurization’systems, or “scrubbers,” or by reducing electricity generating levels.

The EPA has promulgated rules, referred to as the “NQOx SIP Call,” that require coal-fired power plants and
other large stationary sources in 21 eastern states and Washington D.C. to make substantial reductions in nitrogen
oxide emissions in an éffort to reduce the impacts of ozone transport between states. Additionally, in March
2005, the EPA issued the final Clean Air Intérstate Rule (or CAIR), which will permanently cap nitrogen oxide

and sulfur dioxide emissions in 28 eastern states and Washington, D.C beginning in 2009 and 2010, respectively.

CAIR requires these states to achieve the required emission reductions by requiring power plants to either
participate in an EPA-administered “cap-and-trade” program that caps emission in two phases, or by meeting an
individual state emissions budget through measures established by the state.

In March 2005, the EPA finalized the Clean Air Mercury Rule (or CAMR), which establishes a two-part,
nationwide cap on mercury emissions from coal-fired power plants beginning in 2010. While currently the
subject of extensive controversy and litigation, if fully implemented, CAMR would permit states to implemént
their own mercury control regulations or participate in an interstate cap-and-trade program for mercury emission
allowances.

. : . , A

The EPA has adopted new, more stringent national air quality standards for ozone and fine pa‘niculate
matter. As a result, scme states will be required to amend their existing state implementation plans to attain and
maintain compliance with the new air quality standards. For example, in December 2004, the EPA designated
specific areas in the United States as in *“non-attainment” with the new national ambient air quality standard for
fine particulate matter. In November 2005, the EPA published proposed rules addressing how states would
implement plans to bring applicable non-attainment regions into compliance with the new air quality standard.
Under the EPA’s proposed ru]eméking, states would have until April 2008 to submit their implementation plans
to the EPA for approval. Because coal mining operations and coal-fired electric generating facilities emit
particulate matter, PVR’s lessees’ mining operations and their customers could be affected when the new
standards are implemented by the applicable states.

In June 2005, the EPA announced final amendments to its regional haze program originally developed in
199% to improve visibility in national parks and wilderness arcas. As part of the new rules, affected states must
develop implementation plans by December 2007 that, among other things, identify facilities that will have to
reduce emissions and comply with stricter emission limitations. This program may restrict construction of new
coal-fired power plants where emissions are projected to reduce visibility in protected areas. In addition, this
program may require certain existing coal-fired power plants to- install emissions control equipment to reduce
haze-causing emissions such as sulfur dioxide, nitrogen oxide and particulate matter,

The U.S. Department of Justice, on behalf of the EPA, has: filed lawsuits against a number of coal-fired
electric generating facilities alleging violations of the new source review provisions of the Clean Air Act. The
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EPA has alleged that certain modifications have been made to these facilities without first obtaining certain
permits issued under the new source review program. Several of these lawsuits have settled, but others remain
pending. Depending on the ultimate resolution of these cases, demand for PVR’s coal could be affected, which
could have an adverse effect on PVR’s coal royalty revenues.

Carbon Dioxide Emissions. The Kyoto Protocol to the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate
Change calls for developed nations to reduce their emissions of greenhouse gases to 5% below 1990 levels by
2012. Carbon dioxide, which is a major byproduct of the combustion of coal and other fossil fuels, is subject to
the Kyoto Protocol. The Kyoto Protocol went into effect on February 16, 2005 for those nations that ratified the
treaty. .

In 2002, the United States withdrew its support for the Kyoto Protocol. Since the Kyoto Protocol became
effective, there has been increasing international pressure on the United States to adopt mandatory restrictions on
carbon dioxide emissions. The United States Congress has considered bills in the past that would regulate
domestic carbon dioxide emissions, but such bills have not yet received sufficient Congressional support for
passage into law. Several states have also either passed legislation or announced initiatives focused on decreasing
or stabilizing carbon dioxide emissions associated with the combustion of fossil fuels, and many of these
measures have focused on emissions from coal-fired electric generating facilities. For example, in December
2005, seven northeastern states agreed to implement a regional cap-and-trade program to stabilize carbon dioxide
emissions from regional power plants beginning in 2009. This initiative aims to reduce emissions of carbon
dioxide to levels roughly corresponding to average annual emissions between 2000 and 2004. Recently, in
February 2007, Massachusetts and Rhode Island agreed to join this group. Maryland is required to join the group
by June 2007, but implementing regulations have not been finalized as of yet.

It is possible that future federal and state initiatives to control carbon dioxide emissions could resuit in
increased costs associated with coal consumption, such as costs to install additional controls to reduce carbon
dicxide emissions or costs to purchase emissions reduction credits to comply with future emissions trading
programs. Such increased costs for coal consumption could result in some customers switching to alternative
sources of fuel, which could negatively impact PVR’s lessees’ coal sales, and thereby have an adverse affect on
PVR’s coal royalty revenues.

Surface Mining Controf and Reclamation Act of 1977. The Surface Mining Control and Reclamation Act of
1977 (or SMCRA) and similar state statutes impose on mine operators the responsibility of restoring the land to
its original state and compensating the landowner for types of damages occurring as a result of mining
operations, and require mine operators to post performance bonds to ensure compliance with any reclamation
obiigations. Regulatory authorities may attempt to assign the liabilities of PVR’s coal lessees to it if any of those
lessees are not financially capable of fulfilling those obligations, In conjunction with mining the property, PVR's
coal lessees are contractually obligated under the terms of their leases to comply with all state and local laws,
including SMCRA, with obligations including the reclamation and restoration of the mined areas by grading,
shaping and reseeding the soil. Upon completion of the mining, reclamation generally is completed by seeding
with grasses or planting trees for use as pasture or timberland, as specified in the approved reclamation plar.

Hazardous Materials and Wastes. The Federal Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and
Liability Act (or CERCLA or the Superfund law), and analogous state laws, impose liability, without regard to
fault or the legality of the original conduct, on certain classes of persons that are considered to have contributed
to the release of a “hazardous substance” into the environment. These persons include the owner or operator of
the site where the release occurred and companies that disposed or arranged for the disposal of the hazardous
substances found at the site. Persons who are or were responsible for releases of hazardous substances under
CERCLA may be subject to joint and several liability for the costs of cleaning up the hazardous substances that
have been released into the environment and for damages to natural resources,

Some products used by coal companies in operations generate waste containing hazardous substances. PVR
could become liable under federal and state Superfund and waste management statutes if PVR’s lessees are

14




unable to pay environmental cleanup costs. CERCLA authorizes the EPA and, in some cases, third parties, to
take actions in response to threats to the public health or the environment and to seek recovery from the
responsible classes of persons the costs they incurred in connection with such response. It is aot uncommon for
neighboring landowners and other third parties to file claims for personal injury and property damage allegedly
caused by hazardous substances or other wastes released into the environment.

Water Discharges. PVR’s coal tessees’ operations can result in discharges of pollutants into waters, The
Clean Water Act and analogous state laws and regulations impose restrictions and strict controls regarding the
discharge of pollutants into waters of the United States or state waters. The unpermitted discharge of pollutants
such as from spill or leak incidents is prohibited. The Clean Water Act and regulations implemented thereunder
also prohibit discharges of fill material and certain other activities in wetlands unless authorized by an
appropriately issued permit. .

PVR’s lessees” mining operations are strictly regulated by the Clean Water Act, particularly with respect fo

the discharge of overburden and fill material into jurisdictional waters, including wetlands. Recent federal district’
court decisions in West Virginia, and related litigation filed in federal district court in Kentucky, have created
uncertainty regarding the future ability to obtain certain general permits authorizing the construction of valley
fills for the disposal of overburden from mining operations. A July 2004 decision by the Southern District of
West Virginia in Ohio Valley Environmental Coalition v. Bulen enjoined the Huntington District of the U.S.
Army Corps of Engineers from issuing further permits pursuant to Nationwide Permit 21, which is a general
permit issued by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers to streamline the process for obtaining permits under
Section 404 of the Clean Water Act. While the decision was vacated by the Fourth Circuit Court of Appeals in
November 2005, a similar lawsuit has been filed in federal district court in Kentucky that seeks to enjoin the
issuance of permits pursuant to Nationwide Permit 21 by the Louisville District of the U.S. Army Corps of
Engineers. In the event similar lawsuits prove to be successful in adjoining Jurlsdxcuons PVR’s lessees may be
required to apply for individual discharge permits pursuant to Section 404 of the Clean Water Act in areas where
they would have otherwise utilized Nationwide Permit 21. Such a change could result in delays in PVR's lessees
obtaining the required mining permits to conduct their operations, which could in turn have an adverse effect on
PVR’s coal royalty revenues. Moreover, such individual permits are also subject to challenge. Alex Energy, Inc.,
a PVR lessee operating the Republic No. 2 Mine in Kanawha County, West Virginia, is currently a defendant in
Ohio Valley Environmental Coalition vs. U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, a lawsuit in the Southern District of
West Virginia in which environmental groups challenged the issuance of mdmdual valley fi filt permits to multiple
coal operators in the state. On June 13, 2006, the Corps of Engineers suspended the valley fill permits at issue in
the case, including the permit under which PVR’s lessee operates. The .court has since stayed all proceedings .
pending further action by the Corps on these permits. Allthobgh portions of the Republic No. 2 Mine continue to
operate under separate authorizations, delays in securing additional permit authorization for the areas affected by
the aforementioned permit withdrawal could have an adverse effect on PVR’s coal royalty revenues. .

The Clean Water Act also requires states to develop anti-degradation policies to ensure non- -impaired
waterbodies in the state do not fall below applicable water quality standards. These and other regulatory
developments may restrict PVR's lessees” ability to develop new mines or could require its lessees to modify -
existing operations, which could have an adverse effect on PVR’s coal business.

The Federal Safe Drinking Water Act (or the SDWA) and its state equivalénts affect coal mining operations
by imposing requirements on the underground injection of fine coal shurries, fly ash and flue gas scrubber sludge,
and by requiring permits to conduct such underground injection activities. In addition to establishing. the
underground injection control program, the SDWA also imposes regulatory requirements on owners and
operators of “public water systems.” This regulatory program could impact PVR’s lessees’ reclamation
operations where subsidence or other mining-related problems require the provision of drinking water to affected
adjacent homeowners.

Mine Health and Safery Laws. The operations of PVR’s lessees are subject to stringent health and safety
standards that have been imposed by federal legislation since the adoption.of.the Mine Health and Safety Act of
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1969. The Mine Health and Safety Act of 1969 resulted in increased operating costs and reduced productivity.
The Mine Safety and Health Act.of 1977, which significantly expanded the enforcement of health and safety
standards of the Mine Health and Safety Act of 1969, imposes comprehensive health and safety standards on all
mining operations. In addition, as part of the Mine Health and Safety Acts of 1969 and 1977, the Black Lung
Acts require payments of benefits by all businesses conducting current mining operations to coal miners with
black lung or pneumoconiosis and to some beneficiaries of miners who have died from this disease.

Recent mining accidents in West Virginia and Kentucky have received national atiention and instigated
responses at the state and national level that are likely to result in increased scrutiny of current safety practices
and procedures ‘at all mining operations, particularly underground mining operations. In January 2006, West
Virginia passed a law imposing stringent new mine safety and accident reporting requirements and increased
civil and criminal penalties for violations of mine safety laws. On March 7, 2006, New Mexico Governor Bill
Richardson signed into law an expanded miner safety program including more stringent requirements for
accident reporting and the installation of additional mine safety equipment at underground mines. Similarly, on
April 27, 2006, Kentucky Governor Emie Fletcher signed mine safety legislation that includes requirements for
increased inspections of underground mines and additional mine safety equipment and authorizes the assessment
of penalties of up to $5,000 per incident for violations of mine ventilation or roof control requirements.

On June 15, 2006, the President signed new mining safety legislation that mandates similar improvements in
mine safety practices, increases civil and criminal penalties for non-compliance, requires the creation of
additional mine rescue teams, and expands the scope of federal oversight, inspection and enforcement activities.
Earlier, the federal Mine Safety Health Administration announced the promulgation of new emergency rules on
mine safety that took effect immediately upon their publication in the Federal Register on March 9, 2006. These
rulés address mine safety equipment, training, and emergency reporting requirements. Implementing and
complying with these new laws and regulations could adversely affect PVR’s lessees’ coal production and could
therefore have an adverse affect on PVR's coal royaity revenues.

Minfng Permits and Approvals. Numerous governmental permits or approvals are required for mining
operations.'In connecnon with obtaining these permits and approvals, PVR’s lessees may be required to prepare
and present to federal, state or local authorities data pertaining to the effect or impact that any proposed
production of coal may have upon. the environment. The requirements imposed by any of these authorities’ may
be costly and time consummg and may delay commencement or continuation of mining operations.

In order to obtain mining permits and approvals from state regulatory authorities, mine operators including
PVR’s lessees, must submn a reclamation plan for restoring, upon the completion of mining operations, the
mined property to its prior condition, productive use or other permitted condition. Typically, PVR’s lessees
submit the necessary permit applications between 12 and 24 months before they plan to begin mining a new area.
In PVR’s experience, permits generally are approved within 12 months after a completed application is
submitted. In the past, PVR’s lessees have generally obtained their mining permits without significant delay.
PVR's lessees have obtained or applied for permits to mine a majority of the reserves that are currently planned
to be mined over the next five years. PVR’s lessees are also in the planning phase for obtaining permits for the
additional reserves planned to be mined over the following five years. However, there are no assurances that they
will not experience difficulty in obtaining mining pcrrmts in the future. See “—PVR Coal Segment—Water
Discharges.”

OSHA. PVR’s lessees'and its own b_ﬁsiness are subject to OSHA, See “—Qil and Gas Segment—OSHA.”

PVR Natural Gas Midstream Segment

General Regulation, PVR’s natural gas gathering facilities generally are exempt from the FERC's
jurisdiction under the NGA, but FERC regulation nevertheless could significantly affect PVR’s gathering
business and the market for its services. In recent years, the FERC has pursued pro-competitive policies in its
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regulation of interstate natural gas pipelines into which PVR’s gathering pipelines deliver. However, we cannot
assure you that the FERC will continue this approach as it considers matters such as pipeline rates and rules and
policies that may affect rights of access to natural gas transportation capacity.

For example, the FERC will assert jurisdiction over an affiliated gatherer that acts to benefit its pipeline
affiliate in a manner that is contrary to the FERC's policies concerning jurisdictional services adopted pursuant to
the NGA. In addition, natural gas gathering may receive greater regulatory scrutiny at both the state and federal
levels now that the FERC has taken a less stringent approach to regulation of the gathering activities of interstate
pipeline transmission companies and a snumber of such companies have transferred gathering facilities to
unregulated affiliates. PVR’s gathering operations could be adversely affected should they be subject in the
future to the application of state or federal regulation of rates and services. PVR’s gathering operations also may
be or become subject to safety and operational regulations relating to the design, installation, testing,
construction, operation, replacement and management of gathering facilities. Additional rules and legislation
pertaining to these matters are considered or adopted from time to time. We cannot predict what effect, if any,
such changes might have on PVR’s midstream operations, but the industry could be required to incur additional
capital expenditures and increased costs depending on future legislative and regulatory changes.

In Texas, PVR’s gathering facilities are subject to regulation by the Texas Railroad Commission, which has
the authority to ensure that rates, terms and conditions of gas utilities, including certain gathering facilities, are
just and reasonable and not discriminatory. PVR’s operations in Oklahoma are regulated by the Oklahoma
Corporation Commission, which prohibits PVR from charging any unduly discriminatory fees for its gathering
services. PVR cannot predict whether its gathering rates will be found to be un]ust unreasonable or unduly
discriminatory..

PVR is subject to ratable take and-common purchaser statutes in Texas and Oklahoma. Ratable take statutes
generally require gatherers to take, without undue discrimination, natural gas production that may be tendered to
the gatherer for handling. Similarly, common purchaser statutes generally require gatherers to purchase without
undue discrimination as to source of supply or producer. These statutes have the effect of restricting PVR’s right
as an owner of gathering facilities to decide with whom it contracts to purchase or transport natural gas. Federal
law leaves any economic regulation of natural gas gathering to the states, and Texas and Oklahoma have adopted
complaint-based regulation that generally allows natural gas producers and shippers to file complaints with state
regulators in an effort to resolve grievances relating to natural gas gathering rates-and access. We cannot assure
you that federal and state authorities w1|l retain their current regulatory policies in the future. "

Texas and Oklahoma administer fcdcral pipeline safety standards under the Natural Gas Pipeline Safety Act
of 1968, as amended (or the NGPSA), which requires certain pipelines 1o comply with safety standards in
constructing and operating the pipelines, and subjects pipelines to regular inspections. In response to recent
pipeline accidents, Congress and the U.S. Department of Transportation have recently instituted heightened
pipeline safety requirements. Certain of PVR’s gathering facilities are exempt from these federal pipeline safety

- requirements under the rural gathering exemption. We cannot assure you that the rural gathering exemption will
be retained in its current form in the future. ‘

Failure to comply with applicable regulations under the NGA, the NGPSA and certain state laws can resuit
in the imposition of administrative, civil and criminal remedies.

Air Emissions. PVR’s midstream operations are subject to the Clean Air Act and comparable state laws and
regulations. See “—PVR Coal Segment—Air Emissions.” These laws and regulations govern emissions of
pollutants into the air resulting from the activities of PVR’s processing plants and compressor stations and also
impose procedural requirements on how PVR conducts its midstream operations. Such laws and reguiations may
include requirements that PVR obtain pre-approval for the construction or modification of certain projects or
facilities expected to produce air emissions, strictly comply with the emissions and operational limitations of air
emissions permits PVR is required to obtain or utilize specific equipment or technologies to control emissions.
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PVR's failure to comply with these requirements could subject PVR to monetary penalties, injunctions,
conditions or restrictions on operations, and potentially criminal enforcement actions. PVR will be required to
incur certain capital expenditures in the future for air pollution control equipment in connection with obtaining
and maintaining operating permits and approvals for air emissions.

Hazardous Materials and Wastes. PVR’s midstream operations could incur liability under CERCLA and
comparable state laws resulting from the disposal or other release of hazardous substances or wastes originating
from properties PVR owns or operates, regardless of whether such disposal or release occurred during or prior to
PVR’s acquisition of such properties. See “—PVR Coal Segment—Hazardous Materials and Waste.” Although
petroleum, including natural gas and NGLs are generally excluded from CERCLA’s definition of “hazardous
substance,” PVR's midstream operations do generate wastes in the course of ordinary operations that may fall
within the definition of a “hazardous substance.” ‘ \

PVR’s midstream operations generate wastes, including some hazardous wastes, that are subject to the
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (or RCRA) and comparable state laws. However, RCRA currently
exempls many natural pas gathering. and field processing wastes from classification - as hazardous waste.
Specifically, RCRA excludes from the definition of hazardous waste produced waters and other wastes
associated with the exploration, development or production of crude oil, natural gas or geothermal energy.
Unrecovered petroleum product wastes, however, may still be regulated under RCRA as solid waste. Moreover,
ordinary industrial wastes such as paint wastes, waste solvents, laboratory wastes and waste compressor oils may
be regulated as hazardous waste. The transportation of natural gas and NGLs in pipelines may also generate some
hazardous wastes. Although PVR believes it is unlikely that the RCRA exemption will be repealed in the near
future, repeal would increase costs for waste disposal and environmental remediation at PVR'’s facilities.

PVR currently owns or leases numerous properties that for many years have been used for the measurement,
gathering, field compression and processing of natura) gas and NGLs. Although we believe that the operators of
such properties used operating and disposal practices that were standard in the industry at the time, hydrocarbons
or wastes may have been disposed of or released on or under such properties or on or under other locations where
such wastes have been taken for disposal, These properties and the substances disposed or released on them may
be subject to CERCLA, RCRA and analogous state laws. Under such.laws, PVR could be required to remove or
remediate previously disposed wastes (including waste disposed of or released by prior owners or operators) or
property contamination (including groundwater contamination, whether from prior owners-or operators or other
historic activities or spills) or to perform remedial plugging or pit closure operations to prevent future
contamination. PVR has ongoing remediation projects underway at several sites, but it does not believe that the
costs associated with such cleanups will have a material adverse impact on PVR’s operations or revenues.

Water Discharges. PVR’s midstream operations are subject to the Clean Water Act. See “—PVR Coal
Segment—Water Discharges.” Any unpermitted release of poliutants, including NGLs or condensates, from
PVR’s systems or facilities could result in fines or penalties as well as significant remedial obligations.

OSHA. PVR midstream’s operations are subject to OSHA. See “—Oil and Gas Segment—OSHA.”.

Employees and Labor Relations

We and our subsidiaries had a total of 282 employees at December 31, 2006, including 122 employees who
directly provide services for PVR. We consider our current employee relations to be favorable.

Available Information

Our internet address is www.pennvirginia.com. We make available free of charge on or through our internet
website our Corporate Governance Principles, Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, Executive and Financial
Officer Code of Ethics, Audit Committee Charter, Nominating and Governance Commitiee Charter and
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Compensation and Benefits Committee Charter, and we will provide copies of such documents to any
shareholder who so requests. We also make available free of charge on or through our website our Annual Report
on Form-10-K, Quarterly Reports.on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports
filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (or the Exchange
Act) as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such material with, or fumnish it to, the
Securities’and Exchange Commission {or the SEC). ’ :

Executive 'Ofﬁ(;ers of the Company

The following table sets forth information concerning our executive officers. Each.officer is. elected
annually by the Board of Directors and serves at-the pleasure of the Board of Directors.

Name M Pasition with the Company

A. James Dearlove ...... 2. 59  President and Chief Executive Officer .

KeithD.Horton .......... 53 Executive Vice President S
Ronald K. Page ........... 56 Vice President” . , ‘ <
Frank A. Pici ..:.......... 51 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer ; .
Nancy M. Snyder ......... 53 Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary. .

H. Baird Whitehead ....... 56 Executive Vice President

" A. James Dearlove has served as our President and Chief Executive Officer since May 1996 and as a
director since February 1996, as our President and Chief Operating Officer from 1994 to May 1996, as our
Senior Vice President from 1992 to 1994 and as our Vice President from 1986 to 1992, Mr. Dearlove has also
served as Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of PVG GP, LLC, the general partner of Penn
Virginia GP Holdings, L.P., since September 2006 and as Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of
Penn Virginia Resource GP, LLC, the general partner of Penn Virginia Resource Partners, L.P., since July 2001
and December 2002. Mr. Dearlove also serves as a director of the National Council of Coal Lessors.

Keith D. Horton has served as our Executive Vice President and as a director since December 2000, as Vice
President—Eastern Operations from February 1999 to December 2000, as Vice President from February 1996 to
February 1999, as President of Penn Virginia Coal Company from February 1996 to October 2001, as Vice
President of Penn Virginia Coal Company from March 1994 to February 1996, as Vice President of Penn
Virginia Resources Corporation from January 1990 to December 1998 and as Manager, Coal Operations of Penn
Virginia Resources Corporation from July 1982 to December 1989. Mr. Horton has also served as Co-President
and Chief Operating Officer—Coal of Penn Virginia Resource GP, LLC since May 2006 and as President and
Chief Operating Officer of Penn Virginia Resource GP, LLC from July 2001 to May 2006. Mr. Horton has also
served as President of Penn Virginia Operating Co., LLC since September 2001. Mr. Horton serves as a director
of the Virginia Mining Association, the Powell River Project and the Eastern Coal Council.

" Ronald K. Page has served as our Vice President since May 2005 and as our Vice President, Corporate
Development from July 2003 to May 2005. Mr. Page has also served as Co-President and Chief Operating
Officer—Midstream of Penn Virginia Resource GP, LLC since May 2006 and as Vice President, Corporate
Development of Penn Virginia Resource GP, LLC from July 2003 to May 2006. Mr. Page has also served as
President of PVR Midstream LLC since January 2005. From January 1998 to May 2003, Mr. Page served in
various positions with El Paso Field Services Company, including Vice President of Commercial
Operations—Texas Pipelines and Processing from 2001 to 2003, Vice President of Business Development from
2000 to 2001 and Director of Busmess Development from 1999 to 2000.

Frank A, Pici has served as our Executlve Vice President and Chief Financial Officer since September 2001.
Mr, Pici has also served as Vice President and Chief Financial Officer and as a director of PVG GP, LLC since
September 2006 and as Vice President and Chief Financial Officer and as a director of Penn Virginia Resource
GP, LLC since September 2001 and October 2002, From 1996 to 2001, Mr. Pici served as Vice
President—-Finance and Chief Financial Officer of Mariner Energy, Inc., or Mariner, a Houston, Texas-based oil
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and gas exploration and production company, ‘where he managed all financial aspects of Mariner, including
accounting, tax, finance, banking, investor relations, planning and budgeting and information technology. From
1994 to 1996, Mr. Pici served.as Corporate Controller of Cabot Oil & Gas Corporation, or Cabot an oil and gas
exploration and producnon company, from 1984 to 1989,

Nancy M. Snyder has served as our Execunve Vice President since May 2006, as our Senior Vice President
from February 2003 to May 2006, as our Vice President from December 2000 to February 2003 and as our
General Counsel and Corporate Secretary since 1997. Ms. Snyder has also served as Vice President and General
Counsel and as a director of PVG GP, LLC since September 2006 and as Vice President and General Counsel
and as a director-of Penn Virginia Resource GP, LLC since July 2001. From 1993 to 1997, Ms. Snyder was a
solo practitioner representing clients generally in connection with mergers and acquisitions and general corporate
matters.

H. Baird Whitehead has served as our Executive Vice President since January 2001 and as President of Penn
Virginia Oil & Gas Corporation since January 2001, Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Whitehead served in
various positions with Cabot, From 1998 to 2001, Mr. Whitehead served as Senior Vice President during which
time he oversaw Cabot’s drilling, production and exploration activity in the Appalachian, Rocky Mountain,
Mid-Continent and Gulf Coast areas. From 1992 to 1998, Mr. Whitehead served as Vice President and Regional
Manager of Cabot’s Appalachian business. From 1989 to 1992, Mr. Whitehead served as Vice President and
Regional Manager of Cabot’s Anadarko business unit,

Common Abbrev:atlons and Definitions

The following terms have the meanings indicated below when used in this Annual Report on Form 10- K

Bbl—, . . . a standard barrel of 42 U.S. gallons liquid volume
Bef— one biltion cubic feet
Befe— one billion cubic feet equivalent with one barrel of oil or condensate

converted to six thousand cubic feet of natural gas based on the
estimated relative energy content

BTU— : British thermal unit
CBM— - - coalbed methane
Developed acreage— - lease acreage that is allocated or ass1gnable to producing wells or wells

capable of production

Development well— a well drilled within the proved area of an oil or gas reservoir to the
depth of a stratigraphic horizon known to be productive

Dry hole— a well found to be incapable of preducing either oil or gas in sufficient
quantities to justify completion of the well

Exploratory or exploration well— a wel! drilled to find and produce oil or gas in an unproved area, to
find a new reservoir in a field previously found to be productive of oil
or gas in another reservoir, or to extend a known reservoir

Gross acre or well— an acre or well in which a working interest is owned
Mbbl— - one thousand barrels '

Mbf— one thousand board feet

Mef— Co : " one thousand cubic feet

Mcfe— ' one thousand cubic feet equivalent

MMbbl— one million barrels

MMbf— one million board feet
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MMbtu—
MMcf—
MMcfe—

Net acre or well—

NGL—
NYMEX—

Present value of proved reserves—

Probable coal reserves—

Productive wells—

Proved developed reserves—

Proved reserves—

Proved undeveloped reserves—

Proven coal reserves—

Standardized measure—

Undeveloped acreage—

Working interest—

one million British thermal units

one million cubic feet

one million cubic feet equivalent

2ross acres or wells multiplied by the owned working interest in those
gross acres or wells

natural gas liquid

New York Mercantile Exchange

the present value (discounted at 10%) of estimated future cash flows
from proved oil and natural gas reserves, as estimated by our

independent engineers, reduced by additional estimated future
operating expenses, development expenditures and abandonment costs

~ {net of salvage value) associated therewith (before income taxes)

those reserves for which quantity and grade and/or quality are
computed from information similar to that used for proven reserves,

" but the sites for inspection, sampling and measurement are farther

apart or are otherwise less adequately spaced. The degree of assurance,
although lower than that for proven reserves, is high enough to assume
continuity between points of observation ’

wells that are producing oil or gas or that are capable of production

reserves that can be expected to be recovered through existing wells
with existing equipment and operating methods

those estimated quantities of crude oil, condensate and natural gas that
geological and engineering data demonstrate with reasonable certainty
to be recoverable in future years from known oil and gas reservoirs
under existing economic and operating conditions at the end of the
respective years

reserves that are expected to be recovered from new wells on undrilled
acreage, or from existing wells where a relatively major expenditure is
required for recompletion

those reserves for which; (a) quantity is computed from dimensions
revealed in outcrops, trenches, workings or drill holes; grade and/or

'

quality are computed from the results of detailed sampling; and (b) the

sites for inspection, sampling and measurement are spaced so closely,
and the geologic character is so well defined, that the size, shape,
depth and mineral content of reserves are well-established

present value of proved reserves further reduced by the present value
(discounted at 10%) of estimated future income taxes on cash flows -
using prices in effect at a fiscal year end and estimated futire costs as *
of that fiscal year end. Prices are held constant throughout the life of
the properties except where SEC guidelines permit alternate treatment,
including the use of fixed and determinable contractual price
escalations. )

lease acreage on which wells have not been dritled or completed to a
point that would permit the production of commercial quantities of oil
or gas, rega}dless of whether such acreage contains estimated net
proved reserves

a cost-bearing interest under an oil and gas lease that gives the holder
the right to develop and produce the minerals under the lease
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Ttem 1A Risk Factors

Qur business and operations are subject to a. number of risks and uncertainties as described below.
However, the risks and uncertainties described below are not the only ones we face. Additional risks and
uncertainties that we are unaware of, or that we may currently deem immaterial, may become important factors
that harm our business, financial condition or results of operations. If any of the following risks actually occur,
our business, financial condition or results of operations could suffer.

Risks Related to our il and Gas Business o

Natural gas and crude oil prices are volan[e, and a sub.stamtal or extended decline in prices would hurt our
profitability and financial condition.

Our revenues, operating results, cash flow, profitability, future rate of growth and the carrying value of our
oil and gas properties depend heavily on prevailing market prices for natural gas and crude oil. Historically,
natural gas and crude oil prices have been volatile, and they are likely to continue to be volatile. Wide
fluctuations in natural gas and crude oil prices may result from relatively minor changes in the supply of and
demand for oil and gas, market uncertainty and other factors that are beyond our control, including:

« domestic and foreign supplies of oil and natural gas;
. politiéél and economic conditions in oil or gas producing regions;
* overall domestic and foreign economic conditions; '
_.+ prices and availability of alternative fuels; ) "

» the availability of transportation facilities;

« weather conditions; and ’

» domestic and foreign governmental regulation,

Some of our projections and estimates are based on assumptions as to the future prices of natural gas and
crude oil. These price assumptions are used for planning purposes. We expect our assumptions will change over
time and that actual prices in the future will likely differ from our estimates. Any substantial or extended decline
in the actual prices of natural gas or crude oil would have a material adverse effect on our financial position and
results of operations (including reduced cash flow and borrowing capacity), the quantities of natural gas and
crude oil reserves that we can economically produce, the quantity of estimated proved reserves that may be
attributed to o'ur\ properties and our ability to fund our capital program.

¥

Our future performance Jepends on our ability to find or acquire additional oil and gas reserves that are
economically recoverable ' :

Unless we successfully replace the reserves that we produce, our reserves will decline, eventually resulting in a
decrease in oil and gas production and lower revenues and cash flows from operations. We have historically
succeeded in substantially replacing reserves through acquisitions, exploration and development. We have

. conducted such activities on our existing oil and gas properties as well as on newly acquired properties. We may not
be able to continue to replace reserves from such activities at acceptable costs. Lower oil and gas prices may further
limit the types of reserves that can be developed at acceptable costs. Lower prices also decrease our cash flows and
may cause us to reduce capital expenditures. The business of exploring for, developing or acquiring reserves is
capital intensive. We may not be able to make the necessary capital investments to maintain or expand our oil and
gas reserves if cash flows ' from operatlons are reduced and external sources of capital become limited or
unavailable. In addition, exploration and development activities involve numerous risks that may result in dry holes,
the failure to prdducq oil and gas in commercial quantities and the inability to fully produce discovered reserves.

We are continually identifying and evaluating acquisition opportunities, including acquisitions that would
be significantly larger than those we have consummated to date. However, competition for producing oil and gas
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properties is intense and many of our competitors have financial and other resources substantially greater than
those available to us. We cannot ensure that we will successfully consummate any acquisition, that we will be
able to acquire producing oil and gas properties that contain economically recoverable reserves or that any
acquisition will be profitably integrated into our operations.

We may not be able to fund our planned capital expenditures.

We make, and will continue to make, substantial capital expenditures to find, acquire, develop, exploit and
produce oil and natural gas reserves. Our capital expenditures for oil and gas properties were $338.5 million for
2006, and we have budgeted total capital expenditures of $310 million to $345 million in 2007. If oil and gas
prices decrease or we encounter operating difficulties that result in our cash flow from operations being less than
expected, we may have to reduce the capital we can spend unless we raise additional funds through debt or equity
financing. Debt or equity financing, cash generated by operations or borrowing capacity may not be available to
us in sufficient amounts or on acceptable terms 1o meet these requirements.

Future cash flows and the availability of financing will be subject to a number of variables, such as:
« our success in locating and producing new reserves;
* the level of production from existing wells; and
= prices of oil and natural gas.
Issuing equity securities to satisfy our financing requirements could cause substantial dilution to existing

shareholders. Debt financing could lead to us being more vulnerable to competitive pressures and economic
downturns. : "

If our revenues were to decrease due to lower oil and natural gas prices, decreased production or other
reasons, and if we could not obtain capital through our credit facitity or otherwise, our ability to execute our
development plans, replace our reserves or maintain production levels could be greatly limited.

Exploration und development drilling may not result in commercially productive reserves.

_ Oil and gas drilling and production activities are subject to numerous risks, including the risk that no
" commercially productive natural gas or oil reserves will be found. The costs of drilling, completing and operating
wells are often uncertain, and drilling operations may be curtailed, delayed or canceled as a result of a variety of
factors, many of which are beyond our control. These factors include:

+ unexpected drilling conditions;

*  pressure or irregularities m formations;

* equipment failures or accidenfs;

* shortages or delays in the availability of drilling rigs and the delivery of equipment;

» shortages in experienced labor; ' )

« failure to secure necessary regulatory approvals and permits;

+ fires, explosions, blow-outs and surface cratering; and

« adverse weather conditions.

The prevailing prices of oil and gas also affect the cost of and the demand for drilling rigs, production

equipment and related services. The availability of drilling rigs can vary significantly from region to region at
any particular time. Although land drilling rigs can be moved from one region to another in response to changes

in levels of demand, an undersupply of rigs in any region may result in drilling delays and higher drilling costs
for the rigs that are available in that region.
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Another significant risk inherent in our drilling plans is the need to obtain drilling permits from state, local
and other governmental authorities. Delays in obtaining regulatory approvals and drilling permits, including
delays which jeopardize our ability to realize the potential benefits from leased properties within the applicable
lease periods, the failure to obtain a drilling permit for a well or the receipt of a permit with unreasonable
conditions or costs could have a material adverse effect on our ability to explore on or develop our properties.

The wells we drill may not be productive and we may not recover all or any portion of our investment in
such wells. The seismic data and other technologies we use do not allow us to know conclusively prior to drilling
a well that natural gas or oil is present or may be produced economically. The cost of drilling, completing and
operating a well is often uncertain, and cost factors can adversely affect the economics of a project. Drilling
activities can result in dry wells or wells that are productive but do not produce sufficient net revenues after
operating and other costs to cover initial drilling costs. '

Qur future drilling activities may not be successful, nor can we be sure that our overall drilling success rate
or our drilling success rate for activity within a particular area will not decline. Unsuccessful drilling activities
could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition. Also, we may not be
able to obtain any options ot lease rights in potential drilling locations that we identify. Although we have
identified numerous potential drilling locations, we may not be able to economically produce oil or natural gas
from all of them. ’

Our business involves many operating risks that may result in substantial losses for which insurance may be
unavailable or inadequate.

Our operations are subject to all of the risks and hazards typically associated with the exploitation,
development and exploration for, and the production and transportation. of oil and natural gas. These operating
risks include:

* fires, explosions, blowouts, cratering and casing collapses;

* formations with abnormal pressures;

* pipeline ruptures or spills;

* uncontrollable flows of cil, natural gas or well fluids;

« environmental hazards such as natural gas leaks, oil spills and discharges of toxic gases; and

+ natural disasters.

Any of these risks could result in substantial losses resulting from injury or loss of life, damage to or
destruction of property, natural resources and equipment, pollution and other environmental damages, clean-up
responsibilities, regulatory investigations and penalties and suspension of operations. In addition, under certain
circumstances, we may be liable for environmental damage caused by previous owners or operators of properties
that we own, lease or operate. As a result, we may incur substantial liabilities to third parties or governmental
entities, which could reduce or eliminate funds available for exploration, development or acquisitions or cause us
to incur losses. .

In accordance with industry practice, we maintain insurance against some, but not all, of the risks described
above. We cannot assure you that our insurance will be adequate to cover losses or liabilities. Also, we cannot
predict the continued availability of insurance at premium levels that justify its purchase. No assurance can be
given that we will be able to maintain insurance in the future at rates we consider reasonable. The occurrence of a
significant event, not.fully insured or indemnified against, could have a material adverse affect on our financial
condition and operations. '

.




Our business depends on transportation facilities owned by others.

We deliver substantially all of our oil and natural gas production through pipelines that we do not own. The
marketability of our production depends upon the availability, proximity and capacity of these pipelines as well
as gathering systems and processing facilities. The unavailability of or lack of available capacity on these
systems and facilities could result in the shut-in of producing wells or the delay or discontinuance of
development plans for properties. Federal, state and local regulation of oil and natural gas production and
transportation, tax and energy policies, changes in supply and demand, pipeline pressures, damage to or
destruction of pipelines and general economic conditions could adversely affect our ability to produce, gather and
market our oil and natural gas,

Estimates of oil and natural gas reserves are not precise.

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains estimates of our proved oil and gas reserves and the estimated
future net cash flows from such reserves. These estimates are based upon various assumptions, including
assumptions required by the SEC relating to oil and natural gas prices, drilling and operating expenses, capital
expenditures, taxes and availability of funds. The process of estimating oil and natural gas reserves is complex.
This process requires significant decisions and assumptions in the evaluation of available geological,
geophysical, engineering and economic data for each reservoir. These estimates are dependent on many variables
and, therefore, changes often occur as these variables evolve and commodity prices fluctuate.

+  Actual future production, oil and gas prices, revenues, taxes, development expenditures, operating expenses
and quantities of recoverable oil and gas reserves will most likely vary from those estimated. Any significant
variance could materially affect the estimated quantities and present value of reserves disclosed by us. In
addition, we may adjust estimates of proved reserves to reflect production history, results of exploration and
development, prevailing oil and gas prices and other factors, many of which are beyond our control.

At December 31, 2006, approximately 29% of our estimated proved reserves were proved undeveloped.
Estimation of proved undeveloped reserves and proved developed non-producing reserves is based on volumetric
calculations and adjacent reserve performance data. Recovery of proved undeveloped reserves requires
significant capital expenditures and successful drilling operations. Production revenues from proved developed
non-producing reserves will not be realized until some time in the future, The reserve data assumes that we will
make significant capital expenditures to develop our reserves. Although we have prepared estimates of our
reserves and the costs associated with these reserves in accordance with industry standards, these estimated costs
may not be accurate, development may not occur as scheduled and actual results may not occur as estimated.

You should not assume that the present value of estimated future net cash flow referred to herein is the'
current fair value of our estimated oil and gas reserves. In accordance with SEC requirements, we base the
estimated discounted future net cash flows from our proved reserves on prices and costs on the date of the
estimate. Actual current and future prices and costs may be materially higher or lower than the prices and costs as
of the date of the estimate. As a result, net present value estimates using actual prices and costs may be
significantly less than the SEC estimate that is provided herein. In addition, the 10% discount factor, which is
required by the SEC to be used in calculating discounted future net cash flows for reporting purposes, is not
necessarily the most accurate discount factor for us.

We have limited control over the activities on properties we do not ope}argz_.

. .
Other companies operate a portion of our net production. In 2006, other companies operated approximately
28% of our net production. Our success in properties operated by others will depend upon a number of factors
outside of our control, including timing and amount of capital expenditures, the operator’s expertise and financial
resources, approval of other participants in drilling wells, selection of technology and maintenance of safety and
environmental standards. We have limited ability to influence or control the operation or future development of
these non-operated properties or the amount of capital expenditures that we are required-to fund for their
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operation. Qur dependence on the operator and other working interest owners for these projects and our limited
ability to influence or control the operation and future development of these properties could have a material
adverse effect on the realization of our targeted returns or lead to unexpected future costs.

Our producing property acquisitions carry significant risks.

Acquisition of producing oil and gas properties is a key element of maintaining and growing reserves and
production. Competition for these assets has been and will continue to be intense. The success of any acquisition
will depend on a number of factors, many of which are beyond our control. These factors include the purchase
price, future il and gas prices, the ability to reasonably estimate or assess the recoverable volumes of reserves,
rates of future production and future net revenues attainable from reserves, future operating and capital costs,
results of future exploration, exploitation and development activities on the acquired properties and future
abandonment and possible future environmental or other liabilities. There are numerous uncertainties inherent in
estimating quantities of proved oil and gas reserves, actual future production rates and associated costs and
potential liabilities with respect to prospective acquisition targets. Actual results may vary substantiaily from
those assumed in the estimates. A customary review of subject properties will not necessarily reveal all existing
or potential problems.

Additionaliy, significant acquisitions can change the nature of our operations and business depending upon
the character of the acquired properties if they have substantially different operating and geological
characteristics or are in different geographic locations than our existing properties. To the extent that acquired
properties are substantially different than our existing properties, our ability to efficiently realize the expected
economic benefits of such transactions may be limited.

Integrating acquired businesses and properties involves a number of special risks. These risks include the
possibility that management may be disiracted from regular business concerns by the need to integrate operations
and systems and that unforeseen difficultiés can arise in integrating operations and systems and in retaining and
assimilating employees. Any of these or other similar risks could lead to potential adverse short-term or long-
term effects on our operating results, and may cause us to not be able to realize any or all of the anticipated
benefits of the acquisitions.

Responses to recent coal mining accidents could have an adverse effect on our operations.

Our conventional and CBM drilling operations in Appalachia take place in close proximity to coal mining
operations. Recent coal mining disasters in West Virginia and Kentucky have received state and national
attention that is resulting in increased scrutiny of current safety practices and procedures at and around coal
mining operations. This scrutiny could result in the promulgation of more stringent regulations for the permitting
of oil and gas wells in close proximity to coal mining operations, which could make it more difficult, time
consuming and costly for us to obtain such permits and could adversely affect our natural gas production and
reduce our oil and natural gas revenues.

Hedging 1ransactions may limit our potential gains and involve other risks.

In order to manage our exposure to price risks in the marketing of our oil and natural gas, we periodically
enter into oil and gas price hedging arrangements with respect to a portion of our expected production, Qur
hedges are limited in duration, usually for periods of two years or less. While intended to reduce the effects of
volatile oil and natural gas prices, such transactions may limit our potential gains if oil or natural gas prices were
to rise over the price established by the hedging arrangements. In trying to maintain an appropriate balance, we
may end up hedging too much or too little, depending upon how oil or natural gas prices fluctuate in the future.
We cannot assure you that our hedging transactions will reduce the risk or minimize the effect of any decline in
oil or natural gas prices.
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In addition, hedging transactions may expose us to the risk of financial loss in certain circumstances,
including instances in which:

* our production is less than expected;

» there is a widening of price basis differentials between delivery points for our production and the
delivery point assumed in the hedge arrangement; '

« the counterparties to our futures contracts fail to perform under the contracts; or

« asudden, unexpected event materially impacts oil or natural gas prices.

In addition, hedging transactions using derivative instruments involve basis risk. Basis risk in a hedging
contract occurs when the index upon which the contract is based is more or less variable than the index upon
which the hedged asset is based, thereby making the hedge less effective. For example, a NYMEX index used for
hedgmg certain volumes of production may have more or less vanablhly than the reglonal price index used for
the sale of that production.

We are subject to complex laws and regulations that can adversely affect the cost, manner or feasibility of
doing business.

Exploration, development, production and sale of oil and gas are subject to extensive federal, state and local
laws and regulations, including complex environmental laws. Future laws or regulations, any adverse changes in
the interpretation of existing laws and regulations, inability to obtain necessary regulatory approvals or a failure
to comply with existing legal requirements may harm our business, results of operations and financial condition.
We may be required to make large expenditures to comply with environmental and other governmental
regulations. Failure to comply with these laws and regulations may result in the suspension or termination of
operations and subject us to administrative, civil and criminal penalties. Matters subject to regulation include
discharge permits for drilling operations, drilling bonds, spacing of wells, unitization and pooling of properties,
environmental protection and taxation. Gur operations create the risk of environmental liabilities to the
government or third parties for any unlawful discharge of oil, gas or other pollutants into the air, soil or water. In
the event-of environmental -violations, we may be charged with remedial costs. Laws and regulations protecting
the environment have become more stringent in recent years, and may, in some circumstances, result in liability
for environmental damage regardless of negligence or fault. In addition, pollution and similar environmental
risks generally are not fully insurable. These liabilities and costs'could have a material adverse effect on our
financial condition and results of operations. See Item 1, “Business—Government Regutation and Enuronmemal
Matters—Oil and Gas Segment—Environmental Matters.” . :

Risks Related to our Ownership Interests in PVG and PVR

PVG’s ability to make distributions 1o us is entirely dependent upon PVG’s receiving distributions from PVR;
and the amount of cash that PVR will be able o distribute to its unitholders. including PVG, principally
depends upon the amount of cash it can generate from its coal and natural gas midstream businesses.

If PVG had completed its initial public offering on January 1, 2006, assuming its current distribution level,
we would have received $30.8 million of distributions from PVG in 2006. PVG’s eamjngs and cash flow consist
exclusively of cash distributions from PVR. Consequently, a significant decline in PVR’s earnings or cash
distributions would have a negative impact on us. The amount of cash that PVR will be able to distribute to its
partners, including PVG, each quarter principally depends upon the amount of cash it can generate from its coal
and natural gas midstream businesses. The amount of cash that PVR will generate will fluctuate from quarter to
quarter based on, among other things:

+ the amount of coal its lessees are able to produce;

+ the price at which its lessees are able to sell the coal; ST .
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+ the lessees’ timely receipt of payment from their customers;

e the amount of natural gas transported in its gathering systems;

* the amount of throughput in its processing plants

* the price of natural gas;

+ the priee of NGLs:

» the relationship between natural gas and NGL prices:

« the fees it charges and the margins it realizes for its midstream services; and

v its hedging aelivilies. .
In addition, the actual amount of cash that PVR will have available for d:strlbuuon will depend on other
factors, some of which are beyond its control, including:

» the level of capital expenditures it makes;

* the cost of acquisitions, if any; ;
= its debt service requirements;

. 'ﬂiJCtuation_'s in its working capital needs;

. restﬁctipns on distributions contained in its debt agreements;

. prevallmg econemic condmons and

+ the amount of cash reserves established by its general partner in its sole discretion for the proper
conduct of its business.

Because of these factors, PVR may not have sufficient available cash each gquarter to countinue paying
distributions at their current level or at all. If PVR reduces its per unit distribution, PVG will have less cash
available for distribution to its unitholders, including us, and would probably be required to reduce its per unit
distribution to its unitholders, including us. You should also be aware that the amount of cash that PVR has
available for distribution depends primarily upon PVR’s cash ftow, including cash flow from financial reserves
and working capital borrowings, and is not solely a function of profitability, which will be affected by non-cash
items, As a result, PVR may make cash distributions during periods when it recoerds losses and may not make
cash distributions during periods when it records profits.

In addition, the timing and amount, if any, of an increase or decrease in distributions by PVR to its
unitholders will not necessarily be comparable to the timing and amount of any changes in distributions made by
PVG. PVG's ability to distribute cash recéived from PVR to its unitholders, including us, is limited by a number
of factors, including:

« restrictions on distributions contained in any future debt agreements:

« PVG’s estimated general and administrative expenses, mcludmg expenses it will incur as a result of

being a public company as well as other operating expenses;
N

+ expenses of PVR’s general partner and PVR;

¢ reserves necessary for PVG to make the necessary capital contributions to maintain’ its 2% general
partner interest in PVR, as required by PVR’s partnership agreement upon the issuance of additional
partnership securities by PVR; and :

* reserves PVG’s general partner believes prudent for PVYG to maintain the proper conduct of its business
or to provide for future distributions by PVG.
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A portion of PVG's partnership interests in PVR are subordinated 1o PVR's common units, which would result
in decreased distributions by PVR to PVG and, consequently, could result in decreased distributions from
PVG 1o its unitholders, including us, if PVR is unable to meet its minimum quarterly distribution.

PVG owns 19,587,049 units representing limited partner interests in PVR, of which approximately 79.3%
are common units and 20.7% are Class B units. Currently, the Class B units will not receive :iny distributions in a
quarter until PVR has paid the minimum quarterly distribution of $0.25 per PVR unit, plus any arrearages in the
payment of the minimum quarterly distribution from prior quarters, on all of the outstanding PVR common units.
Distributions on the Class B units are, therg:fore, more uncertain than distributions on PVR’s common units.
Furthermore, no distributions may be made on the incentive distribution rights until the minimum quarterly
distribution has been paid on all outstanding PVR units. Therefore, distributions with respect to the incentive
distribution rights are even more uncertain than distributions on the Class B units. Neither the Class B units nor
the incentive distribution rights are entitled to any arrearages from prior quarters.

N

A reduction in PVR’s distributions will disproportionately affect the amount of cash distributions to which
PVG is currently entitled, and, consequently, will affect the amount of cash distributions P VG is able to make
to its unitholders, including us.

PVG’s ownership of the incentive distribution rights in PVR, through PVG’s ownership mteresls in PVR’s
general partner, the holder of the incentive distribution rights, entitles PVG to receive its pro rata share of
specified percentages of total ‘cash distributions made by PVR with respect to any particular quarter only in the
event that PVR distributes more than $0.275 per unit for such quarter. As a result, the holders of PVR’s common
units and Class B units have a priority over the holders of PVR’s incentive distribution rights to the extent of
cash distributions by PVR up to and including $0.275 per unit for any quarter. .

PVG’s incentive distribution rights entitle it to receive increasing percentages, up to 48%, of all cash
distributed by PVR, Because PVG is at the maximum target cash distribution level on the incentive distribution
rights, future growth in distributions PVG receives from PVR, and in distributions we receive from PVG, will not
result from an increase in the target cash distribution level associated with the incentive distribution rights.
Furthermore, a decrease in the amount of distributions by PVR to less than $0.375 per unit per quarter would
reduce PVG’s percentage of the incremental cash distributions above $0.325 per common unit per quarter from
48% to 23%, consequently, resulting in less cash available to PVG to distribute to its unitholders, including us.

PVR may issue additional limited partner interests or other equity securities, which may increase the risk that
PVR will not have sufficient available cash to maintain or increase its cash distribution level, which in turn
may reduce the available cash that PVG has to distribute to its unitholders, including us.

PVR has wide latitude to issue additional limited partner interests on the terms and conditions established by
its general partner. PVG receives cash distributions from PVR on the general partner interests, incentive
distribution rights and the limited partner interests that PVG holds. Because a majority of the cash PVG receives
from PVR is attributable to PVG’s ownership of the mcentwe distribution rights, payment of distributions on
additional PVR limited partner interests may increase the risk that PVR will be unable to maintain or increase its
quarterly cash distribution per unit, which in tun may reduce the amount of incentive distributions PVG receives
and the available cash that PVG has to distribute to its unitholders, including us.

Our ability to sell our common units of PVG, and PVG’s ability to seH its parmership mrerests in PVR, may be
limited by securities law restrictions and liquidity constraints.

We own 32,087,424 common units of PVG and PVG owns 15,541,738 common units and 4,045,311 Class
B units of PVR, all of which are unregistered and restricted securities within the meaning of Rule 144 under the
Securities Act of 1933. Unless we or PVG were to register these units, we or PVG are limited to seiling into the
market in any three-month period an amount of PVG common units or PVR common units that does not exceed
the greater of 1% of the total number of common units outstanding or the average weekly reported trading
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volume of the common units for the four calendar weeks prior to the sale. Furthermore, there is no public market
for PVR’s Class B units and we do not expect one to develop. If PVG were required to sell Class B units for any
reason, it likely would receive a discount to the current market price of PVR’s common units, and that discount
may be substantial. In addition, PVG faces contractual litnitations on its ability to sell its general partner interest
and incentive distribution rights in PVR and the market for such interests is illiquid.

Risks Related to PYR’s Coal Business

If PVR’s lessees do not manage their operations well, their production volumes and PVR’s coal royalty
revenues could decrease, ’ '

PVR depends on its lessees to effectively manage their operations on its properties. PVR’s lessees make
their own business decisions with respect to their operations, including decisions relating to:

* the method of mining;
» credit review of their customers;”
* marketing of the coal mined,;
* coal transportation arrangements;
* negotiations with unions;
» employee wages;
*  permitting; o ' . .
* surety bonding; and
* mine closure and reclamation.
If PVR’s lessees do not manage their operations well, théir production could be reduced, which would result

in lower coal royalty revenues to PVR and could adversely affect PVR’s ability to make its quarterly
distributions.

The coal mining operations of PVR's lessees are subject to numerous operational risks that could result in
lower coal royalty revenues.

PVR’s coal royalty revenues are largely dependent on the level of production from its coal reserves
achieved by its lessees. The level of PVR’s lessees’ production is subject to operating conditions or events that
may increase PVR’s lessees’ cost of mining and delay or halt production at particular mines for varying lengths
of time and that are beyond their or its control, including:

* the inability to acquire necessary permits;

* changes or variations in geologic conditions, such as the thickness of the coal deposits and the amount
of rock embedded in or overlying the coal deposit;

» changes in governmental regulation of the coal industry;

* mining and processing equipment failures and unexpected maintenance problems;
= adverse claims to title or existing defects of title;

» interruptions due to power outages;

+ adverse weather and natural disasters, such as heavy rains and flooding;

* labor-related interruptions;

* employee injuries or fatalities; and

» fires and explosions.




Any interruptions to the production of coal from PVR’s reserves could reduce its coal royalty revenues and
adversely affect its ability to make its quarterly distributions. In addition, PVR’s coal royalty revenues are based
upon sales of coal by its lessees to their customers. If PVR’s lessees do not receive payments for delivered coal
on a timely basis from their customers, their cash flow would be adversely affected, which could cause PVR’s
cash flow to be adversely affected and could adversely affect PVR’s ability to make its quarterly distributions.

A substannal or extended decline in coal prices ‘could reduce PVR’s coal royalty revenues and the value of -
PVR’s coal reserves.

A substantial or extended decline in coal prices from recent levels could have a material adverse effect on
PVR’s lessees’ operations and on the quantities of coal that may be economically produced from its properties.
This, in turn, conld reduce PVR’s coal royalty revenues, its coal services revenues and the valve of its coal
reserves. Additionally, volatility in coal prices could make it difficult to estimate with precision the value of
PVR’s coal reserves and any coal reserves that PVR may consider for acquisition. : ‘

PVR depends on a limited number of primary operators for a significant portion of its coal royalty revenues
and the loss of or reduction in production from any of PVR's major lessees could reduce its coal royalty
revenues.

PVR depends on a limited number of primary operators for a significant portion of its coal royalty revenues,
During 2006, five primary operators, each with multiple leases, accounted for 78% of PVR’s coal royalty
revenues and 12% of our total consolidated revenues. If any of these operators enters bankruptcy or-decide to
cease operations or significantly reduce its production, PVR’s coal royalty revenues could be reduced.

A failure on the part of PVR's lessees to make coal royalty payments could give PVR the right to terminate
the lease, repossess the property or obtain liquidation damages and/for enforce payment obligations under the
lease. If PVR repossessed any of its properties, PVR would seek to find a replacement lessee. PVR may not be
able to find a replacement lessee and, if it finds a replacement lessee, PYR may not be able to enter into a new
lease on favorable terms within a reasonable period of time. In addition, the oitgoing lessee could be subject to
bankruptcy proceedings that could further delay the execution of a new lease or the assignment of the existing
lease to another operator. If PVR enters into a new lease, the replacemem operator might not achieve the same
levels of production or sell coal at the same price as the lesiee it replaced. In addition, it may be difficult for PVR
to secure new or replacement lessees for small or isolated coal reserves, since industry trends toward
consolidation favor larger- sca]e hlgher technology mining operations to mcrease productlwly rates.

+

PVR’s coal business will be adversely affected if PVR is unable to replace or increase its coal reserves
through acquisitions. . ) v LT

Because its reserves decline as its lessees mine its coal, PVR’s future success and growth depends, in part,
upon its ability to acquire additional coa! reserves that are economically recoverable. If PVR is unable to
negotiate purchase contracts to replace or increase its coal reserves on acceptable terms, its coal royalty revenues
will decline as its coal teserves are depleted. In addition, if PVR is unable to successfully integrate the
companies, businesses or properties it is able to acquire, its coal royalty revenues m_ziy decline and PVR could,
therefore, experience a material adverse effect on its business, financial condition or results.of operations. If PVR
acquires additional coal reserves, there is a possibility that any acquisition could be dilutive to earnings and
reduce its ability to make distributions to unitholders, including us, or to pay interest on, or the principal of, its
debt obligations. Any debt PVR incurs to finance an acquisition may similarly affect its ability to make
distributions to unitholders, including us, or to pay interest on, or the principal of, its debt obligations. PVR's
ability to make acquisitions in the future also could be limited by restrictions under its existing or future debt
agreements, competition from other coal companies for- attractive properties or the lack of suitable acquisition
candidates. : .

31




PVR's lessees could satisfy obligations to their customers with coal from properties other than PVR's,
depriving PVR of the ability to receive amounts in excess of the minimum royalty payments.

PVR does not control its lessees’ business operations. Its lessees’ customer supply contracts do not
generally require its lessees to satisfy their obligations to their customers with coal mined from PVR’s reserves.
Several factors may influence a lessee’s decision to supply its customers with coal mined from properties PVR
does not own or lease, including the royalty rates under the lessee’s lease with PVR, mining conditions,
transportation costs and availability and customer coal specifications. If a lessee satisfies its obligations to its
customers with coal from properties PVR does not own or lease, production under its lease will decrease, and
PVR will receive lower coal royalty revenues.

Fluctuations in transportation costs and the availability or reliability of transportation could reduce the
production of coal mined from PVR’s properties.

Transportation costs represent a significant portion of the total cost of coal for the customers of PVR’s
lessees. Increases in transportation costs could make coal a less competitive source of energy or could make coal
produced by some or all of PVR’s lessees less competitive than coal produced from other sources. On the other
hand, significant decreases in transportation costs could result in increased competition for PVR’s lessees from
coal producers in other parts of the country.

PVR's lessees depend upon rail, barge, trucking, overland conveyor and other systems to deliver coal to
their customers.. Disruption of these transportation services due to weather-related problems, strikes, lockouts,
bottlenecks and other events could temporarily impair the ability of PVR’s lessees to supply coal to their
customers. PVR's lessees’ transportation providers may face difficulties in the future and impair the ability of its
lessees to supply coal to their customers, thereby resulting in decreased coal royalty revenues to PVR.

PVR’s lessees could experience labor disruptions, and PVR's lessees’ workforces could become mcreasmgly
unionized in the furure g

Two of PVR’s lcssees each have one mine operated by unionized employees. One of these mines was
PVR’s second largest mine on the basis of coal production as of December 31, 2006. All of PVR’s lessees could
become increasingly unionized in the future. If some or all of PVR's lessees’ non-unionized operations were to
become unionized, it could adversely affect their productivity and increase the risk of work stoppages. In
addition, PVR’s lessees’ operations may be adversely affected by work stoppages at unionized companies,
particularly if union workers were to orchestrate boycotts against its lessees’ operations. Any further unionization
of PVR’s lessees’ employees could adversely affect the stability of production from its reserves and reduce its
coal royalty revenues.

PVR’s coal reserve estimates depend on many assumptions that may be inaccurate, which could materially
. adversely affect the quantities and value of PVR's coal reserves.

PVR’s estimates of its coal reserves may vary substantially from the actual amounts of coal its lessees may
be able to economically recover. There are numerous uncertainties inherent in estimating quantities of reserves,
including many-factors"beyond PVR’s control. Estimates of coal reserves necessarily depend upon a number of
variables and assumptions, any one of which may, if incorréct, resuolt in an estimate that varies considerably from
actual results. These factors and assumpuons relate to:

. geologncal and mmmg conditions, which may not be fully identified by available exploration data;
.- the amount of u]tlmalely recoverable coal in the ground;

* the effects of regulation by govemmentzll'l agencies; and
. = future coal prices, operating costs, capital expenditures, severance and excise taxes and development

and reclamation costs.
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Actual production, revenues and expenditures with respect to PVR’s coal reserves will likely vary from
estimates, and these variations may be material. As a result, you should not place uadue reliance on the coal
reserve data pr0v1ded by PVR.

Any change in fuel consumption patterns by electric power generators away from the use of coal could affect
the ability of PVR’s lessees to sell the coal they produce and thereby reduce PVR’s coal royalty revenues.

According to the U.S. Department of Energy, domestic electric power generation accounts for
approximately 90% of domestic coal consumption, "The amount of coal consumed for domestic electric power
generation is affected primarily by the overall demand for electricity, the price and availability of competing
fuels for power plants such as nuclear, natural gas, fuel oil and hydroelectric power and environmental and other
governmental regulations. PVR believes that most new power plants will be built to produce electricity during
peak periods of demand. Many of these new power plants will likely be fired by natural gas because of lower
construction costs compared. to coal-fired plants and because natural gas is a cleaner buming fuel. The
increasingly stringent requirements of the Clean Air Act may result in more electric power generators shifling
from coal to natural gas-fired power plants. See Ilem 1, “Business—Government Regutation and Environmental
Matters—PVR Coal Segment—Air Emissions.”

Extensive environmental laws and regulatmns affecting electric power generators could have corresponding
effects on the ability of PVR’s lessees to sell the coal they produce and thereby reduce PVR's coal royalty
revenues.

Federal, state and local laws and regulations extensively regulate the amount of sulfur dioxide, particulate
matter, nitrogen oxides, mercury and other compounds emitted into the air from electric power plants, which are
the ultimate consumers of the coal PVR’s lessees produce. These laws and regulations can require significant
emission control expenditures for many coal-fired ‘power plants, and various new and proposed laws and
regulations may require further emission’ reductions and associated emission control expenditures. There is also
continuing pressure on state and federal regulators to impose limits on carbon dioxide emissions from electric
power plants, particularly coal-fired power plants. As a result of these current and proposed laws, regulations and
trends, electricity generators may elect to switch to other fuels that generate less of these emissions, possibly
further reducing demand for the coal that PVR's lessees produce and thereby reducing its coal royalty revenues.
See ltem 1, “Business—Government Regulation and Environmental Matters—PVR Coal Segment—Air
Emissions.” - ’

Delays in PVR’s lessees obtaining mining permits and approvals, or the inability to obtain required permits
and approvals, could have an adverse effect on PVR’s coal royalty revenues.

Mine operators, including PVR’s lessees, must obtain numerous permits and approvals that impose strict
conditions and obligations relating to various environmental and safety matters in connection with coal mining.
The permitting rules are complex.and can change over time, The public has the right to comment on permit
applications and otherwise participate in the permitting process, including through court intervention.
Accordingly, permits required by PVR’s lessees to conduct operations may not be issued, maintained or renewed,
or may not be issued or renewed in a timely fashion, or may involve requirements that restrict its lessees’ ability
to economically conduct their mining operations. Limitations on PVR’s lessees’ ability to conduct their mining
operations due to the inability to obtain or renew necessary permits could have an adverse effect on its coal
royalty revenues. See Item 1, “Business—Government Regulation and Environmental Matters—PVR Coal
Segment—Mining Permits and Approvals.”

PVR's lessees’ mining operations are subject to extensive and costly laws and regulations, which could
increase operating costs and limit its lessees’ ability to produce coal, which could have an adverse effect on
PVR'’s coal royalty revenues.

PVR’s lessees are subject to numerous and detailed federal, state and local laws and regulations affecting
coal mining operations, including laws and regulations pertaining to employee health and safety, permitting and
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licensing requirements, air quality standards, water pollution, plant and wildlife protection, reclamation and
restoration of mining properties after mining is completed, the discharge of materials into the environment,
surface subsidence from underground mining and the effects that mining has on groundwater quality and
availability. Numerous governmental permits and approvals are required for mining operations. PVR’s lessees
are required to prepare and present to federal, state or local authorities data pertaining to the effect or impact that
any proposed exploration for or production of coal may have upon the environment. The costs, liabilities and
requirements associated with these regulations may be significant and time-consuming and may delay
commencement or continuation of exploration or production operations. The possibility exists that new laws or
regulations {or judicial interpretations of existing laws and regulations) may be adopted in the future that could
materially affect PVR’s lessees’ mining operations, either through direct impacts such as new requirements
impacting its lessees’ existing mining operations, or indirect impacts such as new laws and regulations that
discourage or limit coal consumers’ use of coal. Any of these direct or indirect impacts could have an adverse
effect on PVR’s coal royalty revenues. See Item 1, “Business—Government Regulauon and Environmental
Matlers—PVR Coal Segment.”

Because of extensive and comprehensive regulatory requirenients, violations during mining operations are
not unusual in the industry and, notwithstanding compliance efforts, PVR does not believe violations by its
lessees can be eliminated completely. Failure to comply with these laws and regulations may result in the
assessment of administrative, civil and criminal penalties, the imposition of cleanup and site restoration costs and
liens and, to a lesser extent, the issuance of injunctions to limit or cease operations, PVR’s lessees may also incur
costs and liabilities resulting from claims for damages to property or injury to persons arising from their
operations. If PVR’s lessees are required to pay these costs and liabilities and if their financial viability is
affected by doing so, then their mining operations and, as a result, PVR’s coal royalty revenues and its ability to
make distributions, could be adversely affected.

Recent mining accidents in West Virginia and Kentucky have received national attention and instigaied
responses at the state and national level that are likely to result in increased scrutiny of current safety practices
and procedures at all mining operations, particularly underground rilining operations. See Item 1, “Business—
Government Regulation and Environmental Matters—PVR Coal Segment—Mine Health and Safety Laws,” for a
more detailed discussion of recently enacted legislation that addresses mine safety equipment, training and
emergency reporting requirements. Implementing and complying with these new laws and regulations could
adversely affect PVR’s lessees’ coal production and could therefore have an adverse affect on PVR’s coal royalty
revenues and its ability to make distributions.

Risks Related to PYR’s Natural Gas Midstream Business

The success of PVR's natural gas midstream business depends upon its ability to find and contract for new
sources of natural gas supply.

In order to maintain or increase throughput levels on PVR’s gathering sirstems and asset utilization rates at
its processing plants, PVR must contract for new natural gas supplies. The primary factors affecting PVR’s
ability to connect new supplies of natural gas to its gathering systems include the level of drilling activity
creating new gas supply near its gathering systems, PVR’s success in contracting for existing natural gas supplies
that are not committed to other systems and PVR’s ability to expand and increase the capacity of its systems.
PVR may not be able to obtain additional contracts for natural gas supplies.

Fluctuations in energy prices can greatly affect production rates and investments by third parties in the
development of new oil and natural gas reserves. Drilling activity generally decreases as oil and natural gas
prices decrease. PVR has no control over the level of drilling activity in its areas of operations, the amount of
reserves underlying the wells and the rate at which production from a well will decline. In addition, PVR has no
control over producers or their production decisions, which are affected by, among other things, prevailing and
projected energy prices, demand for hydrocarbens, the level of reserves, geologlcal considerations, governmental
regulation and the availability and cost of capital.
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PVR’s midstream assets, including its gathering systems and processing plants, are connected to natural gas
reserves and wells for which the production will naturally decline over time. PVR’s cash flows associated with
these systems will decline unless it is able to access new supplies of natural gas by connecting additional
production to these systenis A material decrease in natural gas production in PVR’s areas of operation, as a
result of depressed commaodity prices or otherwise, would result in a decline in the volume of natural gas PVR'
handles, which would reduce its revenues and operating income. In addition, PVR's future growth will depend,
in part, upon whether it can contract for additional supplies at a greater rate than the rate of natural decline in
PVR’s currently connected supplies.

The profitability of PVR's natural gas midstream business is dependent upon prices'and market derﬁand for
natural gas and NGLs, which are beyond PVR's control and have been volmr!e '

PVR is subject to significant risks due to fluctuations in natural gas commodlty prices. During 2006, PVR
generated a majority of its gross margin from two types of contractual arrangements under which its margin is
exposed 1o increases and decreases in the price of natural gas and NGLs—percentage-of-proceeds and keep-
whole arrangements. See ltem 1, “Business—Contracts—PVR Natural Gas Midstream Segment.”

Virtually all of the naturil gas gathered on PVR’s Crescent System and Hamlin System is contracted under
percentage-of-proceeds arrangements, The natural gas gathered ont PVR’s Beaver System is contracted primarily
under either percentage-of proceeds or gas purchase/keep-whole arrangements. Under both types of
arrangements, PVR provides gathering and processing services for natural gas received. Under
percentage-of:proceeds arrangements, PVR generally sells the NGLs produced from' the processing operations
and the remaining residue gas at market prices and remits to the producers an agreed upon percentage of the
proceeds based upon an index price for the gas and the price received for the NGLs. Under these
percentage-of-proceeds arrangements, revenues and gross margins decline when natural gas prices and NGL
prices decrease. Accordingly, a decrease in the price of natural gas or NGLs could have a material adverse effect
on PVR’s results of operations. Under gas purchase/keep-whole arrangements, PVR generally buys natural gas
from producers based upon an index price and then sells the NGLs and the remaining residue gas to third parties
at market prices. Because the extraction of the NGLs from the natural gas during processing reduces the volume
of natral gas available for sale, profitability is dependent on the value of those NGLs being higher than the value
of the volume of gas reduction or “shrink.” Under these arrangements, revenues and gross margins decrease
when the price of natural gas increases relative to the price of NGLs. Accordingly, a change in the relaticnship
between the price of natural gas and the price of NGLs could have a material adverse effect on PVR’s results of
operations.
~ In the past, the prices of natural gas and NGLs have been extremely volatile, and PVR expects this volatility
to continue. The markets and prices for residue gas and NGLs depend upon factors beyond PVR’s control. These
factors include demand for oil, natural gas and NGLs, which fluctuates with changes in market and economic
conditions, and other factors, including:

= the impact of weather on the demand for oil and natural gas;

» the level of domestic oil and natural gas production;

* the availability of importe'd oil and natural gas;

* actions taken by foreign oil and gas producing nations;

+ the availability of local, intrastate and interstate transportation systems;
» the availability and marketing of competitive fuels;

= the impact of energy conservation efforts; and

= the extent of governmental regulation and taxation. -
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. Acquisitions and expansions may affect PVR's business by substantially increasing the level of its indebtedness
and contingent liabilities and increasing the risks of being unable to effectively integrate these new operations.

From time to time, PVR evaluates and acquires assets and businesses that it believes compliment its existing
operations. PVR may encounter difficulties integrating these acquisitions with its existing businesses without a
loss of employees or customers, a loss of revenues, an increase in operating or other costs or other difficulties. In
addition, PVR may not be able to realize the operating efficiencies, competitive advantages, cost savings or other
benefits expected from these acquisitions. Future acquisitions may require substantial capital or the incurrence of
substantial indebtedness. As a result, PVR’s capitalization and results of operations may change significantly
following an acquisition, and you will not have the opportunity to evaluate the economic, financial and other
relevant information that PVR will consider in determining the application of these funds and other resources.
Future PVR acquisitions might not generate increases in PYR’s pro forma available cash per unit, and may not
increase cash distributions to PVR’s unitholders.

N Expanding PVR’s natural gas midstream business by constructing new gathering systems, pipelines and
‘processing facilities subjects it to construction risks.

One of the ways PVR may grow its midstream business is through the construction of additions to existing
gathering, compression and processing systems. The construction of a new gathering system or pipeline, the
expansion of an existing pipeline through the addition of new pipe or compression and the construction of new
processing facilities involve numerous regulatory, environmental, political and legal uncertainties beyond PVR's
control and require the expendlture of significant amounts of capital. If PVR undertakes these projects, they may
not be completed on schedule, or at all, or at the budgeted cost. Moreover, PVR's revenues may not increase
immediately upon the expenditure of funds on a particular project. For example, the construction of gathering
facilities requires the expenditure of significant amounts of capital, which may exceed PVR’s estimates.
Generally, PVR may have only limited natural gas supplies committed to these facilities prior to their
construction. Moreover, PVR may construct facilities to capture anticipated future growth in production in a
region in which anticipated production growth does not materialize. As a result, there is the risk that new
facilities may not be able to attract enough natural gas to achieve PVR’s expected investment return, which could
adversely affect its financial position or results of operations and its ability to make distributions.

If PVR is unable to obtain new rights-of-way or the cost of renewing existing rights-of-way increases, then it
may be unable to fully execute its growth strategy and its cash flows could be reduced.

The construction of additions to PVR’s existing gathering assets may require it to obtain new rights-of-way
before constructing new pipelines. PVR may be unable to obtain rights-of-way to connect new natural gas
supplies to its existing gathering lines or capitalize on other attractive expansion opportunities. Additionally, it
may become more expensive for PVR to obtain new rights-of-way or to renew existing rights-of-way. If the cost
of obtaining new rights-of-way or renewing existing rights-of-way increases, then PVR’s cash flows could be
reduced. :

PVR is'exposed to the credit risk of its midstream customers, and nonpayment or nonperformance by PVR’s
customers could reduce its cash flows.

PVR is subject to risk of loss resulting frem nonpayment or nonperformance by its midstream customers.
PVR depends on a limited number of customers for a significant portion of its midstream revenue. For 2006, two
customers represented 49% of total natural gas midstream revenues and 26% of our total consolidated revenues,
Any nonpaymeni or nonperformance by our midstream customers could reduce our cash flows.

'

Any reduction in the capacity of, or the allocations to, PVR in interconnecting third-party pipelines could
cause a reduction of volumes processed, which would adversely affecr its revenues and cash flow.

PVR is dependent upon connections to third-party pipelines to receive and deliver residue gas and NGLs.
Any reduction of capacities of these interconnecting pipelines due to testing, line repair, reduced operating
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pressures or other causes could result in reduced volumes gathered and processed in its midstream facilities.
Similarly, if additional shippers begin transporting volumes of residue gas and NGLs on interconnecting
pipelines, PVR’s allocations in these pipelines would be reduced. Any reduction in volumes gathered and
processed in PVR’s facilities would adversely affect its revenues and cash flow.

Natural gas he_d_ging transactions may limit PVR's potential gains and involve other risks.

In order to manage PVR’s exposure to price risks in the marketing of its natural gas and NGLs, PVR
periodically enters into natural gas and NGL price hedging arrangements with respect to a portion of its expected
production. PVR’s hedges are limited in duration, usually for periods of two years or less. However, in
connection with acquisitions, sometimes PVR's hedges are for longer periods. These transactions may limit
PVR’s potential gains if natural gas or NGL prices were to rise over the price established by the hedging
arrangements. In trying to maintain an appropriate balance, PVR may end up hedging too much or too little,
depending upon how natural gas or NGL prices fluctuate in the future. PVR’s hedging transactions may not
reduce the risk or minimize the effect of any decline in nataral gas or NGL prices.

In addition, hedging transactions may expose PVR to the risk of financial loss in certain circumstances,
including instances in which:

* its production is less than expected;

« there is a widening of price basis differentials between delivery points for its production and the
delivery point assumed in the hedge arrangement; . '

* the counterparties to its futures contracts fail to perform under the contracts; or

* asudden, unexpected event materially impacts natural gas or NGL prices.

In addition, hedging transactions using derivative instruments involve basis risk. Basis risk in a hedging
contract occurs when the index upon which the contract is based is more or less variable than the index upon
which the hedged asset is based, thereby making the hedge less effective. For example, a NYMEX index used for
hedging certain volumes of production may have more or less variability than the regional price index used for
the sale of that production. ‘ '

PVR's natural gas midstream business involves many hazards and operational risks, some of which may not be
Jully covered by insurance. : . : .

PVR’s midstream operations are subject 1o the many hazards inherent in the gathering, compression,
treating, processing and transportation of natural gas and NGLs, including:

» damage to pipelines, related equipment and surrounding properties caused by hurricanes, tornadoes,
.floods, fires and other natural disasters and acts of terrorism,;

» inadvertent damage from construction and farm equipment;
* leaks of natural gas, NGLs and other hydrocarbons; and

* fires and explosions,

These risks could result in substantial losses due to personal injury or loss of life, severe damage to and
destruction of property and equipment and pollution or other environmental damage and may result in
curtailment or suspension of PVR’s related operations. PVR’s midstream operations are concentrated in Texas
and Oklahoma, and a natural disaster or other hazard affecting these areas could have a material adverse effect on
its operations. PVR is not fully insured against all risks incident to its midstream business. PVR does not have
property insurance on all of its underground pipeline systems that would cover damage to the pipelines. PVR is
not insured against all environmental accidents that might occur, other than those considered to be sudden and -
accidental. If a significant accident or event occurs that is not fully insured, it could adversely affect PVR’s
operations and financial condition.
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Federal, state or local regulatory measures could adversely affect PVR’s natural gas midstream business.

PVR owns and operates an 11-mile interstate natural gas pipeline that, pursuant to the NGA, is subject to the
jurisdiction of the’ FERC. The FERC has granted PVR waivers of various requirements otherwise applicable to
conventional FERC-jurisdictional pipelines, including the obligation to file a tariff governing rates, terms and
conditions of open access transportation service. The FERC has determined that PVR will have to comply with
the filing requirements if the natural gas company ever desires to apply for blanket transportation authority to
transport third-party gas on the 11-mile pipeline. The FERC may revoke these waivers at any time.

PVR’s natural gas gathering facilities generally are exempt from the FERC’s jurisdiction under the NGA,
but FERC regulation nevertheless could change and significantly affect PVR’s gathering business and the market
for its services. For a more detailed discussion of how regulatory measures affect PVR’s natural gas gathering
systems, see Item 1, “Business—Government Regulation and Environmental Matters—PVR Natural Gas
Midstream Segment.”

Failure to comply with applicable federal and state laws and regulations can result in the imposition of
administrative, civil and criminal remedies. . .

PVR'’s natural gas midstream business is subject to extensive environmental regulation.

Many of the operations and activities of PVR’s gathering systems, plants and other facilities are subject to
significant federal, state and local environmental laws and regulations. These include, for example, laws and
regulations that impose obligations related to air emissions and dlscharge of wastes from PVR’s facilities and the
cleanup of hazardous substances that may have been released at propemes curremly or previously owned or
operated by Cantera or locations to which it has sent wastes for disposal. These laws and regulations can restrict
or impact PVR’s business activities in many ways, including restricting the manner in which it disposes of
substances, requiring pre-approval for the construction or modification of certain projects or facilities expected to
praduce air emissions, requiring remedial action to remove or mitigate contamination, and reqniring capital
expenditurés to comply with control requirements. Failure to comply with these laws and regulations may trigger
a variety of administrative, civil and criminal enforcement measures, including the assessment of monetary
penalties, the imposition of remedial requirements and the issuance of orders enjoining future operations. Certain
environmental statutes impose strict, joint and several liability for costs required to clean up and restore sites
where substances and wastes have been disposed or otherwise released. Moreover, it is not-uncommon for
neighboring landowners and other third parties to-file claims for personal injury and property damage allegedly
caused by the release of substances or wastes into the environment. o

There is inherent risk of the incurrence of environmental costs and liabilities in PVR’s midstream business
due to its handling of natural gas and other petroleum products, air emissions related to its midstream operations,
historical industry operations, waste disposal practices and Cantera's’ prior use of natural gas flow meters
containing mercury. For example, an accidental release from one of PVR’s pipelines or processing facilities
could subject it to substantial liabilities arising from environmental cleanup, restoration costs and natural
resource damages, claims made by neighboring*landowners and other third parties for personal injury and
property damage, and fines or penalties for related violations of environmental laws or regulations. Moreover, the
possibility exists that stricter laws, regulations or enforcement policies could significantly increase PVR’s
compliance costs and the cost of any remediation that may become necessary. PVR may incur material
environmental costs and liabilities. Insurance may not provide sufficient coverage in the event an environmental
claim is made, See Item !, “Business—Government Regulation and Env1r0nmental Matters—PVR Natural Gas
Midstream Segment.” ‘

Item 1B Unresolved Stajf Comments

We received no written comments from the SEC staff regarding our periodic or current reports under the
Exchange Act within 180 days before the end of our fiscal year ended December 31, 2006.
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Item2  Properties
Title to Properties
The following map shows the general locations of our oil and gas production and exploration, PVR’s coal

reserves and related infrastructure investments and PVR’s natural gas gathering and processing systems:
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We believe that we have satisfactory title to all of our properties and the associated oil, natural gas and coal
reserves in accordance with standards generally accepted in the oil and natural gas, coal and natural gas
midstream industries. '

Facilities

We are headquartered in Radnor, Pennsylvania, with additional offices in Oklahoma, Tennessee, Texas and
West Virginia. All of our office facilities are leased, except for PVR’s West Virginia office, which it owns. We
believe that our properties are adequate for our current needs.

Oil and Gas Properties

As is customary in the oil and gas industry, we make only a cursory review of title to farmout acreage and to
undeveloped oil and gas leases upon execution of any contracts. Prior to the commencement of drilling
operations, a thorough title examination is conducted and curative work is performed with respect to significant
defects. To the extent title opinions or other investigations reflect defects, we cure such title defects. If we were
unable to remedy or cure any title defect of a nature such that it would not be prudent to commence drilling
operations on a property, we could suffer a loss of our investment in the property. Prior to completing an
acquisition of producing oil and gas assets, we obtain title opinions on all material leases. Our oil and gas
properties are subject to customary royalty interests, liens for current taxes and other burdens that we believe do
not materially interfere with the use or materially affect the value of such properties. :
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Production and Pricing

The following table sets forth production, average sales prices and production costs with respect to our oil
and gas properties for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004:

. 2006 2005 2004
Productien
Oil and condensate (MBbIS) . .. ... . i e 382 302 396
Natural gas (MMcf) ................... e 28,968 25,550 22,079
Total production (MMcfe) ............. oo 31,260 27,362 24,455
Average realized prices
Natural gas ($/Mcf):
Natural gas revenue, asreported .. ... ... i $ 735 $ 831 § 627
Derivatives (gains) losses included in natural gas revenues .......... (0.02) 0.55 0.17
Natural gas revenue before impact of derivatives ............... e 7.33 8.86 6.44
Cash settlements on natural gas derivatives . ...................... 0.37 {0.55) .17
Natural gas revenues, adjusted for derivatives . . ................... $§ 770 $ 831 § 627
Crude oil ($/Bbl):
Crude oil revenue, asreported .. ...t $ 5559 §$ 45.67 § 33.75
Derivatives (gains) losses included in oil and condensate revenues .. .. - 1.20 2.84 5.34
Qil and condensate revenue before impact of derivatives .. .......... 56.79 48.51 39.09
Cash seitlements on crude oil derivatives ... ... . ... . ... (0.52) {2.84) (5.34)
0Oil and condensate revenues, adjusted for derivatives .............. $ 5627 $ 4567 3 3375
Production expenses ($/Mcfe) '
Lease OPEFAtIIE . ..ottt ettt it e e e e e e $ 083 % 063 $ 057
Taxes other than iINCOME ... ... . it e et eae e 0.38 0.48 0.38
General and administrative . ... ... ... ... e 0.41 0.34 0.34

Total production EXPenses .. ........ooovveeeiniiniainnniannns $ 166 $ 145 § 129




Proved Reserves * : . ol

The followmg table presents certain information regarding our proved reserves as of December 31, 2006,
2005 and 2004. The proved reserve estimates presented below were prepared by Wright and Company, Inc.,
independent petroleum engineers. For additional information regarding estimates of proved reserves, the
preparation of such estimates by Wright and Company, Inc. and other information about our oil and gas reserves,
see Note 23 in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. Our estimates of proved reserves in the table
below are consistent with those filed by us with other federal agencies.

Natural :
Oil and Natural %}gsm Standardized Year-end -
Condensate Gas Equivalents  Measure(l) Prices Used
(MMbbls) {Bcf) (Befe) ($ millions) $/Bbl  $/MMbiu
2006
Developed ..................... 3.0 326 345 $ 545
Undeveloped ................... - 19 131 - 142 T 60
Total ....... ... .. f1_9 457 fﬂ $ 605 56105 % 5.64
2005 .
Developed ..................... 2.0 267 279 $ 833
Undeveloped ................... 0.9 92 98 203
Total, .............. 29 @ ﬁ $1,036 $61.04 510.08
2004 - o
‘ Developed ................ PR 29 243 261 § 469
Undeveloped .......... o 34 3 93 121
Total ........ ... g ﬁ 354 $ 590 $4346 $ 6.18

(1) Standardized measure consists of future net cash flows, discounted at 10%. For information on the changes
in the standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows, see Note 23 in the Notes (0 Consolidated
Financial Statements,

In accordance with the SEC's guidelines, the engineers’ estimates of future net revenues from our properties
and the standardized measure thereof are based on oil and natural gas sales prices in effect as of December 31,
2006, and estimated future costs as of December 31, 2006. The prices are held constant throughout the life of the
properties except where such guidelines permit alternate treatment, including the use of fixed and determinable
contractual price escalations. Prices for oil and gas are subject to substantial seasonal fluctuations as well as
fluctuations resulting from numerous other factors. See ftem 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”

Proved reserves are the estimated quantities of natural gas, crude oil and condensate that geological and
engineering data demonstrate with reasonable certainty to be recoverable in future years from known reservoirs
under existing economic and operating conditions. Proved developed reserves are proved reserves that can be
expected to be recovered through existing wells with existing equipment and operating methods. There are
numerous uncertainties inherent in estimating quantities of proved reserves and in projecting future rates of
production and timing of development expenditures, including many factors beyond our conirol. Reserve
engineering is a subjective process of estimating underground accumulations of oil and natural gas that cannot be
measured in an exact manner, and the accuracy of any reserve estimate is a function of the quality of available
data and of engineering and geological interpretation and judgment. The quantities of crude oil and natural gas
that are ultimately recovered, production and operating costs, the amount and timing of future development
expenditures and future crude oil and natural gas sales prices may all differ from those assumed in these
estimates. Therefore, the standardized measure amounts shown above should not be construed as the current
market value of the estimated oil and natural. gas reserves attributable to our properties, The information set forth
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in the foregoing tables includes revisions of certain volumetric reserve estimates attributable to proved properties
included in the preceding year’s estimates. Such revisions are the result of additional information from
subsequent completions and production history from the properties involved or the resuit of a decrease (or
increase) in the projected economic life of such properties resuiting from changes in production prices.

Acreage

The following table sets forth our developed and undeveloped acreage at December 31, 2006. The acreage is
located primarily in the Appalachian, Mississippi, Mid-Continent and Gulf Coast onshore areas of the United
States.

Gross Net
Acreage Acreage

(in thousands)

Developed ................. ....... 653 517

Undeveloped ... ... . it 829 550

o) Y 1,482 1,067
Wells Drilled

The following table sets forth the gross and net numbers of exploratory and development wells we drilled
during the last three years. The number of wells drilled refers to the number of wells reaching total depth at any
time during the respective year. Net wells equals the number of gross wells multiplied by our working interest in
each of the gross wells. Productive wells represent either wells which were producing or which were capable of
commercial production.

2006 2005 2004
' Gross Net Gross Net Gross  INet
Development

Productive .. ... .. oo e 187 1389 163 1308 134 3897
Non-Productive . ... ... . it e i __?1 24 3 3.0 __] _0_3
Total development . ....... ... ... ... iiinan, 190 1413 166 1338 135 90.0

Exploratory :
Productive . ... 13 72 6 2.9 7 1.5
Non-productive . . . .. S 6 23 3 3.0 7 44
Underevalvation-............ ... onn e b 1o 3 25 3 26
Total exploratory ........... ... ... ... .. 20 105 12~ 84 17 85
178 1422 152 985

I

Total ......oooueien.. P L2010 1518

The exploratory well under evaluation at the end of 2006 was a Cotton Valley well in Texas. We expect to
determine the commercial viability of this well during 2007. At December 31, 2006, we had capitalized costs of
$1.1 million related to this well.

The three exploratory wells under evaluation at the end of 2005 included two New Albany Shale wells in
Illinois and a Bakken Dolomite horizontal oil well in Montana. In 2006, we determined that these wells were not
commercially viable, resulting in a $3.8 million write-off.

The three exploratory wells under evaluation at the end of 2004 included a horizontal Devenian shale well
in West Virginia, a CBM well in Mississippi and an horizontal CBM well in Virginia. In 2005, we determined
that these wells were not commercially viable, resulting in a $3.3 million write-off.
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Productive Wells

The number of productive oil and gas wells in which we had a working interest at December 31, 2006 is set
forth below. Productive wells are producing wells or wells capable of commercial production.

Operated Wells Non-Operated Wells Total
Gross Net Gross Net Gross Net
1,192 1,092.8 847 128.0 2,039 o 1,220.8

In addition to the above working interest wells, we own royalty interests in 2,876 gross wells.

Coal Reserves and Production

As of December 31, 2006, PVR owned or controlled approximately 765 million tons of proven and probable
coal reserves located on approximately 379,000 acres (including fee and leased acreage) in Kentucky, New
Mexico, Virginia and West Virginia. PVR’s coal reserves are in various surface and underground mine seams
located on the following properties;

*  Central Appalachia Basin: properties, located in Buchanan, Lee and Wise Counties, Virginia; Floyd,
Harlan, Knott and Letcher Counties, Kentucky; and Boone, Fayette, Kanawha, Lincoln, Logan and
Raleigh Counties, West Virginia;

+ Northern Appalachia Basin: properties located in Barbour, Harrison, Lewis, Monongalia and Upshur
Counties, West Virginia;

*  San Juan Basin: propernties located in McKinley County, New Mexico; and

» Hlinois Basin: properties located in Henderson and Webster Counties, Kentucky.

Coal reserves are coal tons that can be economically extracted or produced at the time of determination
considering legal, economic and technical limitations. All of the estimates of PVR’s coal reserves are classified
as.proven and probable reserves. Proven and probable reserves are defined as follows:

Proven Coal Reserves. Proven coal reserves are coal reserves for which: (i) quantity is bomputed from
dimensions revealed in outcrops, trenches, workings or drilt holes; (ii) grade and/or quality are computed from
the results of detailed sampling; and (iii) the sites for inspection, sampling and measurement are spaced so
closely, and the geologic character is so well defined, that the size, shape, depth and mineral content of reserves
are well-established.

Probable Coal Reserves. Probable coal reserves are reserves for which quantity and grade and/or quality are
computed from information similar to that used for proven coal reserves, but the sites for inspection, sampling
and measurement are more widely spaced or are otherwise less adequately spaced. The degree of assurance,
although lower than that for proven coal reserves, is high enough to assume continuity between points of
observation..

In areas where geologic conditions indicate potential inconsistencies related to coal reserves, PVR performs
additionat exploration to ensure the continuity and mineability of the coal reserves. Consequently, sampling in
those areas involves drill holes or channel samples that are spaced closer together than those distances cited
above. '

Coal reserve estimates are adjusted annually for production, unmineable areas, acquisitions and sales of coal
in place. The majority of PVR’s reserves are high in energy content, low in sulfur and suitable for either the
steam or metallurgical market. :

The amount of coal that a lessee can profitably mine at any given time is subject to several factors and may
be substantially different from “proven and probable coal reserves.” Included among the factors that influence
profitability are the existing market price, coal quality and operating costs.
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The following tables set forth production data and reserve information with respect to each of PVR’s
properties:

Year Ended December 31,

Property ) 2006 , 2005 2004

. . (tons in millions)

Central Appalachia .. .......covtvrerinenn.. e PP . 202 190 20.1

Northern Appalachia .. .......... . . e 5.0 5.0 5.6
IMlinois Basin ........ ..o i S 25 14 —

SanJuan Basin . ........ ... . . e s e e 5.1 438 55

10 Y ;52_8 30.2 il_
Proven and Probable Reserves at
December 31, 2006
Under- :
Property ground Sorface Total Steam Metallurgical Total
(tons in millions)

Central Appalachia ........................... ... 4253 1336 S589 459.0 99.9 5589
Northern Appalachia .......... e - 338 2.2 360 360 — 36.0
Mlinois Basin ......... .o iiiriiiiiainnann P 99.6 13.0 1126 1126 — 112.6
SanJuanBasin.............. e — 579 5719 579 - 579
999 7654

Total ... ..o 558.7 2067 7654 665.5

The following table sets forth the coal reserves PVR owns and leases with respect to each of its coal
properties as of December 31, 2006: o '

Property : . . Owned Leased Total
.. ’ : (tons in millions)
Central Appalachia .............. e e e e e e s 4227 1362 5589
Northern Appalachia . . ... o e 360 — 36.0
Illinois Basin . . ... U 1126 — 1126
San Juan Basin . ... ... e e e 540 - 39 579

Total L. vt e 6253 140.1 7654

PVR’s coal reserve estimates were prepared from geological data assembled and analyzed by PVR’s general
partner’s geologists and engineers. These estimates are compiled using geological data taken from thousands of
drill holes, geophysical logs, adjacent mine workings, outcrop prospect openings and other sources. These
estimates also take into account legal, qualitative, technical and economic limitations that may keep coal from
being mined. Codl reserve estimates will change from time to time due to mining activities, analysis of new
engineering and geological data, acquisition or divestment of reserve holdings, modification of mining plans or
mining methods and other factors.

Coal Preparation and Loading Facilities

PVR generates coal services revenues from fees it charges to its lessees for the use of its coal preparation and
loading facilities. The facilities provide efficient methods to enhance lessee production levels and exploit PVR’s
reserves. Historically, the majority of these fees have been generated by PVR’s unit train loadout facility, on its Central
Appalachia property, which accommodates 108 car unit trains that can be loaded in approximately four hours. Some of
PVR’s lessees utilize the unit train loadout facility to reduce the delivery costs incurred by their customers. The coal
service facility PVR purchaséd in November 2002 on its Coal River property in West Virginia began operations late in
the third quarter of 2003. In the first quarter of 2004, PVR placed into service a newly constructed coal loadout facility
for another lessee in West Virginia for $4.4 million. In September 2006, PVR completed construction of ‘a new
preparation and loading facility on property it acquired in 2005 in eastern Kentucky.
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Natural Gas Midstream Systems

PVR’s midstream operations currently include three natural gas gathering and processing systems and a
standalone natural gas gathering system, including: (i) the Beaver/Perryton gathering and processing facilities in
the Texas/Oklahoma panhandle area, (ii) the Crescent gathering and processing facilities in ceritral Oklahoma,
(iii) the Hamlin gathering and processing facilities in west-central Texas and (iv) the Arkoma gathering system in
eastern Oklahoma. These systems include approximately 3,631 miles of natural gas gathering pipelines and three
natural gas processing facilities, which have 160 MMcfd of total capacity. PVR’s natural gas midstream business
derives revenues primarily from gas processing contracts with natural gas producers and from fees charged for
gathermg natural gas volumes and providing other related services. PVR owns, leases or has rights-of-way to the
properties where the majority of its midstream facilities are located.

The following table sets forth information regarding PVR’s natural gas midstream assets:

Year Ended

December 31, 2006
Utilization
Current Average of
Approximate Approximate Processing System Processing
Length - Wells Capacity Throughput Capacity
Asset Type (Milgs). Connected (Mmcfd) (Mmecfd) (%)
Beaver/Perryton System .. .... .. Gathering
‘ pipelines and
processing
facility 1,377 934 100 113.0(1) 100.0%
Crescent System .............. Gathering
pipelines and
processing : ‘ :
facility 1,679 888 40 18.4 46.0%
Hamlin System ............... Gathering
pipelines and
processing S
. facility 497 231 20 72 36.0%
Arkoma System . .............. Gathering .
pipelines __ 78 78 — _14.7(2)
3,631 2,131 160 153.3(3)

(1) Includes gas processed at other systems connected to the Beaver/Perryton System via the pipeline acquired
in June 2006.

{2) Gathering only volumes.

(3) Total average system throughput would be 163 MMcfd if the acquisition of additional pipeline in June 2006
had occurred on January 1, 2006.

Item 3  Legal Proceedings

Although we may, from time to time, be involved in litigation and claims arising out of our operations in the
normal course of business, we are not currently a party to any material legal proceedings. In addition, we are not
aware of any material legal or governmental proceedings against us, or contemplated to be brought against us,
under the various environmental protection statutes to which we are subject, See Ttem 1, “Business—Government -
Regulation and Environmental Matters,” for a more detailed discussion of our material environmental
obligations.

Itemd4  Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

There were no matters submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of 2006.
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PART 11

Item 5  Market for the Regisirant’s Common Eéuity and Related Shareholder Matters and Issuer

Purchases of Equity Securities

Market Information

Qur common stock is traded on the New York Stock Excﬁungc under the symbol “PVA.” The high and low
sales prices (composite transactions) and dividends paid for each fiscal quarter in 2006 and 2005 were as follows:

Sales Price _(,:ash

. ™ . Dividends

Quarter Ended High Low Declared
December 31,2006 ...... T $76.70 $59.74 30.1125
September 30,2006 ... ... s $72.65 $60.28 $0.1125
JUDE 30, 20000 . . . o e e $77.21 $59.80 $0.1125
March 31,2006 ......... e e e e e $72.45 $56.59 8$0.1125
December 31,2005 ... ... N e $62.76 $51.15 $0.1125
September 30,2005 ........ P e e $58.40 $44.59 $0.1125
June 30, 20008 . .. e e e e $49.32 $38.05 3$0.1125
$37.55 $0.1125

March 31,2005 .. . e e $50.52

Equity Holders

As of February 21, 2067, there were approximately 570 record holders and approximately'7,400 beneficial

owners (held in street name) of our common stock.
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Performance Graph

The following graph compares our five-year cumulative total shareholder return (assuming reinvestment of
dividends) with the cumulative total return of the Standard & Poor’s Qil and Gas Exploration & Production 600
Index and the Standard & Poor’s SmallCap 600 Index. There are eight companies in the Standard & Poor’s Qil
and Gas Exploration & Production 600 Index: Cabot Oil & Gas Corporation, Cimarex Energy Co., Helix Energy’
Solutions Group, Inc., Penn Virginia Corporation, Petroleum Development Corporation, St. Mary Land &
Exploration Company, Stone Energy Corporation and Swift Energy Company. The graph assumes $100 is
invested on January 1, 2002 in us and each index at December 31, 2001 closing prices.

Comparisoﬁ of Five-Year Cumulative Total Return
Penn Virginia Corporation, S&P Exploration & Production 600 Index and
S&P SmallCap 600 Index

COMPARISON OF CUMULATIVE FIVE YEAR TOTAL RETURN
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——PENN VIRGINIA CORP
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2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
Penn Virginia Corporation .............................. 109.35 17096 25257 360.60 442.80
S&P Smallcap 600 Index . ................ ... ... ....... 85.37 11848 14532 15648 180.14

S&P Oil & Gas Exploration & Production 600 Index . . ... ... 105.21 146.08 222.57 37253 375.91
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Item 6  Selected Financial Data

The following selected historical financial information was derived from our audited financial statements as
of December 31, 2006, 2005, 2004, 2003 .and 2002, and for each of the years then ended. The selected financial
data should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and the accompanying noles in
Item &, “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data,” and Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”

v

Year Ended December 31,
2006 2005 (1) 2004 2003 2002

(in thousands except share data)

REVENUES . .......ovevereenenenee.ulioo . $ 753929 § 673,864 $228,425 $181,284 $110,957
Operating income (2} ............ 0o, ‘. % 170,532 § 162,017 $ 80,796 $ 62,101 $ 30,791
NELInCOme .. .ottt eee $ 75909 $ 62,088 §$ 33355 § 28522 § 12,104
Per common share: (3)

Net income, basic .. ....... e $ 406 § 335 § 182 % 159 § 068

Net income, diluted . ................... $ 402 $ 331 $ 181 $ 158 % 067

Dividends paid ............... P $ 045 § 045 $ 045 $ 045 $ 045
Cash flows provided by operating activities .. ... $ 275819 $ 231407 35146365 $109,704 § 65,788
Total assets (4) .. ... iiiii i $1,633,149 §1,251,546 $783,335 $683,733 $586,292
Long-term debt, net of current portion . .. ....... $ 428,214 § 325846 5188926 $154,286 $106,887
Minority interest inPVG .. ........... ... .. $ 438372 § 313,524 $182,891 $1i90,508 $192,770
Shareholders’ equity .. .............ovuiaann. $ 382,425 $ 310308 $252,860 3$211,648 $187,956

(1) The 2005 column includes the results of operations of the natural gas midstream segment since March 3,
2005, the closing date of the Cantera Acquisition. (as defined in Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Acquisitions and Investments™)

(2) Operating income in 2004 included a $7.5 million loss on assets held for sale. Operating income in 2006,
20035, 2004, 2003 and 2002 included a $8.5 million, $4.8 million, $0.7 million, $0.4 million and $0.8 million
impairment of oil and gas properties.

(3) For comparative purposes, amounts per common share in 2002 and 2003 have been adjusted for the effect of
a two-for-one stock split on June 10, 2004.

(4) Total assets in 2006 and 2005 reflect the Cantera Acquisition.

Item7  Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following analysis of financial condition and results of operations of Penn Virginia Corporation and its
subsidiaries should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and the accompanying
notes in Item 8, “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.” Our discussion and analysis include the
following items:

* Overview of Business
"« Acquisitions and Investments
*  Current Performance |
»  Summary of Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
+ Liquidity and Capital Resources
. Comractﬁal Obligations
« Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

*  Results of Operations




= Environmental Matters - -
+ Recent Accounting Pronouncements

» Forward-Looking Statements

Overview of Business e

We are an independent energy company that is engaged in three primary business segments: oil and gas,
coal and natural gas midstream. We directly operate our oil and gas segment. PVR operates our coa! and natural
gas midstream segments. We own 100% of the general partner of PVG and an approximately 82% limited
partner interest in PVG. PVG owns 100% of the general partner of PVR, which holds a 2% percent general
partner interest in PYR, and an approximately 42% limited partner interest in PVR. In 2006, approximately 50%
of our operating income was attributable to our oil and gas segment, 43% was attributable to our coal segment
and. 17% was attributable to our.natural gas midstream segment, less a 10% operating loss related to corporate
and other functions. A description of each of our reportable segments follows: :

' Oil and Gas 'Segmem

In cur oil and gas segment, we explore for, develop, produce and sell crude oil, condensate and natural gas
primarily in the Appalachian, Mississippi, Mid-Continent and Gulf Coast onshore regions of the United States.
Al December 31, 2006, we had proved oil and natural gas reserves of approximately 5 million barrels of oil and
condensate and-457 Bef of natural gas, or 487 Befe. During 2006, three customers accounted for 57% of our oil
and gas revenues. Oil and natural gas production from our propemes increased to 31.3 Befe in 2006, an increase
of 14% from 27.4 Befe produced in 2005

Our revenues, pr()ﬁlﬂblllty and future rate of growth are highly dependent on the prevailing prices for oil
and natural gas, which are affected by numerous factors that are generally beyond our control. Crude oil prices
. are generally determined by global supply and demand. Natural gas prices are influenced by national and
regional supply and demand.- A substantial or extended decline in the price of oil or natural gas could have a
material adverse effect on our revenues, profitability and cash flow and could, under certain circumstances, resuit
in an impairment of some of our oil and natural gas properties. Our future profitability and growth is also highly
dependent on the results of our exploratory and development drilling programs.

In addition, to our conventional development program, we have continued to expand our presence in
unconventional . plays by developing CBM gas reserves in Appalachia. By employing horizontal drilling
techniques, we expect to continue to increase the value from the CBM-prospective properties we own. We are
committed, to. expanding our oil and gas reserves and production primarily by using our ability to generate
exploratory prospects and development drilling programs internally. '

PVR Coal Segment

As of December 31, 2006, PVR owned or controlled approximately 765 million tons of proven and probable
coal reserves in Central and Northern Appalachia, the San Juan Basin and the Illinois Basin. As of December 31,
2006, approximately 87% of PVR’s proven and probable coal reserves was “steam’” coal used primarily by
electric generation utilities, and the remaining 13% was metallurgical coal used primarily by steel manufacturers.
PVR enters into long-term leases with experienced, third-party mine operators providing them the right to mine
its coal reserves in exchange for royalty payments. PVR does not operate any mines. In 2006, PVR’s lessees
produced 32.8 million tons of coal from its properties and paid to PVR coal royalty revenues of $98.2 million, for
an average gross coal royalty per ton of $2.99. Approximately 84% of PVR’s coal royalty revenues in 2006 and
83% of PVR’s coal royalty revenues in 2005 were derived from coal mined on its properties under leases
containing royalty rates based on the higher of a fixed base price or a percentage of the gross sales price. The
balance of PVR's coal royalty revenues for the respective periods was derived from coal mined on its properties
under leases containing fixed royalty rates that escalate annually. p
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Coal prices, especially in Central Appalachia where the majority of PVR’s coal is produced, increased
significandy from the beginning of 2004 through most of 2006. The price increase stems from several causes,
including increased electricity demand and decreasing coal production in Central Appalachia.

Substantially all of PVR's leases require the lessee to pay minimum rental payments to PVR in monthly or
annual installments. PVR actively works with its lessees to develop efficient methods to exploit its reserves and
to maximize production from its properties. PVR also earns revenues from providing fee-based coal preparation
and transportation services to its lessees, which enhance their production levels and generate additional coal
royalty revenues, and from industrial third party coal end-users by owning and operating coal handling facilities
through its joint venture with Massey. In addition, PVR earns revenues from oil and gas royalty interests it owns,
from wheelage rights and from the sale of standing timber on its propertles During 2006, five lessees accounted
for 78% of our coal royalty revenues. .

PVR’s management continues to focus on acquisitions that increase and diversify its sources of cash flow.
During 2006, PVR increased its coal reserves by 96 million tons, or 14%, from its coal reserves as of
December 31, 2005, by completing three coal reserve acquisitions in 2006 with an aggregate purchase price of
approx1mateiy $76 million. For a more detailed discussion of PVR’s acquisitions, see “—-Acquisitions and
Investments.”

Coal royalties are impacted by several factors that PVR generally cannot control. The number of tons mined
annually is determined by an operator's mining efficiency,- labor availability, geologic conditions, access to
capital, ability to market coal and ability to arrange reliable transportation to the end-user. The possibility exists
that new legislation or regulations have or may be adopted which may have a significant impact on the mining
operations of PVR’s lessees or their customers’ ability to use coal and which may require PVR, its lessees or its
lessees’ customers to change operations significantly or incur substantial costs. See Item 1A, “Risk Factors.”

PVR Natural Gas Midstream Segment

PVR owns and operates midstream assets that include approximately 3;631 miles of natural gas gathering
pipelines and three natural gas processing facilities located in Oklahoma and the panhandle of Texas, which have
160 MMcfd of total capacity. PVR’s midstream business derives revenues primarily from gas processing
contracts with natural gas producers and from fees charged for gathering natural gas volumes and providing other
related services. PVR also owns a natural gas marketing business, which aggregates third-party volumes and sells
those volumes into intrastate pipeline systems and at market hubs accessed by various interstate pipelines. PVR
acquired its natural gas midstream assets from Cantera in March 2005. PVR’s management believes that this
acquisition established a platform for future growth in the natural gas midstream sector and diversified its cash
flows into another long-lived asset base. Since acquiring these assets, PVR has expanded -its natural gas
midstream business by adding 181 miles of new gathering lines.

For the year ended December 31, 2006, inlet volumes at PVR’s gas processing plants and gathering systems
were 56.0 Bcf, or approximately 153 MMcfd. During 2006, two customers accounted for 49% of our natural gas
midstream revenues.

PVR continually seeks new supplies of natural gas to both offset the natural declines in production from the
wells currently connected to its systems and to increase throughput volume. New natural gas supplies are
obtained for all of PVR’s systems by contracting for production from new wells, connecting new wells drilled on
dedicated acreage and by contracting for natural gas that has been released from competitors’ systems.

Revenues, profitability and the future rate of growth of the natural gas midstream segment are highly
dependent on market demand and prevailing NGL and natural gas prices. Historically, changes in the prices of
most NGL. products have generally correlated with changes in the price of crude oil. NGL and natural gas prices
have been subject to significant volatility in recent years in response to changes in the supply and demand . for
NGL products and natural gas market uncertainty.
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Corporate and Other -

Corporate and other primarily represents corpdrate functions.

| Owhership of and Relationship Mth PVG and PVR

Penn Virginia, PVG and PVR are publiciy traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbols
“PVA," "PVG” and “PVR.” Because we control of the general partner of PVG, the financial results of PVG are
included in our consolidated financial statements, Because PVG controls the general partner of PVR, the
financial resuits of PVG include those of PVR. However, PVG and PVR function with a capital structure that is
independent of each other and us, with each having publicly traded common units and PVR having its own debt
instruments. PVG does not currently have any debt instruments. The diagram in Item 1, “Business—Corporate
Structure” depicts our ownership of PVG and PVR as of December 31, 2006. While we report consolidated
financial results of PVR’s coal and natural gas midstream businesses, the only cash we received from those
businesses is in the form of cash distributions from PVG.

Prior to the PVG IPO in December 2006, we indirectly owned éommon units representing an approximately
37% limited partner interest in PVR, as well as the sole 2% general partner interest and all of the incentive
distribution rights in PVR. We received total distributions from PVR of $28.3 million and $21.2 million in 2006
and 2005, as shown in the following table (in thousands):

" Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005
Limited partner units .. .......... ... ... ... $22,799 $19,281
General partner interest (2%) ............. R e 1,254 1,021
Incentive distribution rights . ......... ... ... . . i i 4,273 210
Total ... ... e .+ $28,326 $21,212

In conjunction with the PVG IPO, we contributed our limited partner interest and general partner interest,
including our incentive distribution rights, in PVR to PVG in exchange for a limited partner interest and the
general partner interest in PVG. PVG also purchased additional common units and Class B units of PVR with the
proceeds of the PVG IPO. Consequently, PVG is currently entitled to receive certain cash distributions payable
with respect to the common and Class B units of PVR, the 2% general partner interest in PVR and the incentive
distribution rights in PVR. )

We are entitled to receive quarterly cash distributions from PVG on our limited partner interest. Unlike with
respect to PVR, PVG’s general partner, which is a wholly owned subsidiary of us, does not have an economic
interest in PV G and does not have any incentive distribution rights.

Acquisitions and Investments
Oil and Gas Segment

Crow Creek Acquisition. In June 2006, we acquired 100% of the capital stock of Crow Creek Holding
Corporation; or Crow Creek, in a cash transaction for approximately $71.5 million. The preliminary purchase
price allocation is subject to certain adjustments that primarily relate to the determination of tax basis and the
allocation between proved and unproved property. Crow Creek was a privately owned independent exploration
and production company with operations primarily in the Oklahoma portions of the Arkoma and Anadarko
Basins. The Crow Creek assets primarily included approximately 427 Befe of net proved reserves,
approximately 85% of which were natural gas. The acquisition was funded with long-term debt under our
revolving credit facility, ‘

Panther Acquisition. In June 2005, we acquired approximately 60,000 acres of prospective CBM leasehold
rights in Wyoming County, West Virginia, from Panther Energy Company, LLC, for $13.3 million in cash. The
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leasehold acreage is within an area of mutual interest between Penn Virginia and CDX Gas, LLC, or CDX, and is
contiguous to acreage which has been successfully developed. The purchase agreement included an option for
CDX to purchase a 50% interest in the leasehold acreage. In August 2005, CDX exercised that option and
acquired its 50% interest for $6.6 million in cash. We began drilling on the new leasehold position in lhe fourth
quarter of 2005.

-t

PVR Coal Segment - "

LG&E Acquisition. In December 2006 PVR acquired ownership and lease rights to appfoximate'i).r
22 million tons of coal reserves. The reserves are located in Henderson County, Kentucky The purchase price
was $9.3 million and was funded with cash.

Coal Infrastructure Cons.rrucrion. In September 2006, PVR‘compleied construction of a new 600-ton per
hour coal processing plant and rail loading facility for one-of its lessees located in Knott County in eastern
Kentucky. The facility began operations in October 2006. Since acquiring fee ownership and lease rights to the
property’s coal reserves in July 2005, PVR made cumulative capnal expenditures of $13.4 million related to the
construction of the facility.

Huff Creek Acquisition. In May 2006, PVR acquired the lease rights to approximately 69 million tons of
coal reserves located on approximately 20,000 acres in Boone, Logan and Wyoming Counties, West Virginia.
The purchase price was $65.0 million and was funded with long-term debt under PVR’s revolving credit facility.

Green River Acquisition. 1n July 2005, PVR acquired fee ownership of approximately 94 million tons of
coal reserves in located along the Green River the western Kentucky portion of the Illinois Basin for $62.4
million in cash and the assumption of $3.3 million of deferred income. This coal reserve acquisition was PVR’s
first in the Illinois Basin and was funded with long-term debt under PVR’s revolving credit facility. Currently,
approximately 41 million tons of these coal reserves are leased to affiliates of Peabody. PVR expects the
remaining coal reserves to be leased over the next several years, with a gradual increase in coal production and
related cash flow from the property.

Wayland Acquisition. In July 2005, PVR acquired a combination of fee ownership and lease rights to
approximately 16 million tons of coal reserves for $14.5 million. The reserves are located in the eastern
Kentucky portion of Central ‘Appalachia. The acquisition was funded with $4.0 million of cash and the issuance
by PVR to the seller of approximately 209,000 common units.

Alloy Acquisition. In April 2005, PVR acquired fee ownership of approximately 16 million tons of coal
reserves for $15.0 million in cash. The reserves, located near Alloy, West Virginia on approximately 8,300 acres
in the central Appalachia region of West Virginia, will be produced from deep and surface mines. Producuon
started in late 2005. Revenues were earned initially from wheelage fees on coal mined from an adjacent property,
followed by royalty revenues as the mines on PVR’s property commenced production. The seller remained on the
property as the lessee and operator. The acquisition was funded with long-term’ debt under PVR’s revolving
credit facility.

Coal River Acquisition. In March 2005, PVR acquired lease rights to approximately 36 million tons of
undeveloped coal reserves and royalty interests in 73 producing oil and natural gas wells for $9.3 million in cash.
The coal reserves are located in the Central Appalachia region of West Virginia. The oil and gas wells are located
in eastern Kentucky and southwestern Virginia. The acquisition was funded with long-term debt under PVR's
revolving credit facility. The coal reserves are predominantly low sulfur and high BTU content, and development
will occur in conjunction with PVR’s adjacent reserves and a related loadout facility that was placed into service
in 2004. The oil and gas property contained approximately 2.8 Bcfe of net proved oil and gas reserves with
current net production of approximately 0.2 Befe on an annualized basis. :

v Coal Handling Joint Venture. In July 2004, PVR acquired from affiliates of Massey a 50% interest in a joint
venture formed to own and operate end-user coal handling facilities. The purchase price was $28.4 million and
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was funded with long-term debt under PVR’s revolving credit facility. The joint venture owns coal handling
facilities which unload shipments and store and transfer coal for three industrial coal consumers in the chemical,
paper and lime production industries located in Tennessee, Virginia and Kentucky. A combination of fixed
monthly fees and per ton throughput fees is paid by those consumers under long-term leases expiring between
2007 and 2019. PVR recognized equity eamings of $1.3 million in 2006, $1.1 million in 2005 and $0.4 million in
2004 related to its ownership in the joint venture. PVR received joint venture distributions of $2.7 million in
2006, $2.3 million in 2005 and $1.0 miilion in 2004,

PVR Natural Gas Midstream Segment

Transwestern Acquisition. In June 2006, PVR completed the acquisition of approximately 115 miles of
gathering pipelines and related compression facilities in Texas and Oklahoma. These assets are contiguous to
PVR’s Beaver/Perryton System. PVR paid $14.7 million in cash for the acquisition. Subsequently, PVR
borrowed $14.7 million under its revolving credit facility to replenish the cash used for the acquisition.

Cantera Acquisition. In March 2005, PVR completed its acquisition of Cantera, a midstream gas gathering
and processing company with primary locations in the Mid-Continent area of Oklahoma and the panhandle of
Texas. Cash paid in connection with the acquisition was $199.2 million, net of cash received and including
capitalized acquisition costs, which PVR funded with a $110 million term loan and with long-term debt under its
revolving credit facility. PVR used the proceeds from its sale of common units in a subsequent public offering in
March 2005 to repay the term loan in full and to reduce outstanding indebtedness under its revolving credit
facility. See Note 4 in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for pro forma financial information,

Current Performance

Operating income for 2006 was $170.5 million. The oil and gas segment, combined with the operating
results of corporate, contributed $67.7 million to operating income, and PVR’s coal and natural gas midstream
segments contributed $102.8 million, before the deduction of the 58% interest in PVR’s and PVG’s net income to
which we do not own rights. The followmg table presents a summary of certain financial mformatlon relating to
our scgments (1n thousands):

Oil and PVR Corporate i
Gas . PVYR Coal Midstream and Other Consolidated

For the Year Ended December 31, 2006:
ReVENUES ... .. it it e $235,956 $112,981 $404910 § 82  $753,929
Operating costs and expenses .................. 94,886 19,138 358,440 16,716 489,180
Depreciation, depletion and amortization ......... 56,237 20,399 17,094 487 94,217
Operating income (loss) ....................... "$ 84833 $ 73444 §$ 29,376 $(17,121) $170,532
For the Year Ended December 31, 2005: ‘
Revenues ........cciviiiriiiiiiiiinn $226,819 $ 95,755 $350,593 § 697 $673.864
Operating costs and expenses .................. 80,669 16,121 321,509 11,826 430,125
Impairment of oil and gas properties ............. 4,785 —_ — — 4,785
Depreciation, depletion and amortization ......... 45 885 17,890 12,738 424 76,937
"Operating income (loss) . . . .. A . $ 95480 $ 61,744 $ 16,346 $(11,553) $162,017
For the Year Ended December 31, 2004: -
Revenues . ......... .. ... $151672 $ 75630 $§ — $ 1,123 $228425
Operating costs and expenses .................. 57,668 16,479 . —_ 10,334 84,481
Impairment of o}l and gas properties ............. 655 - - = — 655
Losson assets held forsate .................... 7,541 — . _ — 71,541
Depreciation, depletion and amortization ......... 35,886 18,632 — 434 54,952
'Operating income (loss) .......... e $ 49922 $40519 $§ — $(9,645) $ 80,796
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Oil and Gas Segment '

During 2006, our oil and gas production increased by 14% to 31.3 Befe. High commodity prices also
contributed significantly to our financial results. Natural gas prices have been volatile recently, with the NYMEX
futures market trading at record price levels for natural gas. Our realized natural gas price for 2006 was $7.35 per
Mef, a decrease of 12% from $8.31 per Mcf for 2005. As part of our risk management strategy, we use derivative
financial instruments to hedge natural gas and, to a lesser extent, oil prices. The use of this risk management
strategy has resulted in lower price realizations compared to physical sale prices in the last several years,

The following table summarizes total natural gas, oil and condensate production and total natural gas, oil
and condensate revenues by region:

Natural Gas, Oil and Natural Gas, 0il and
Condensate Production Condensate Revenues
Year Ended December 31, Year Ended December 31,
Region 06 2005 2006 2005
T : , (Mmcfe) (in thousands)
Appalachia . ... ... ... ... i o 12,759 13,812 $ 90,683 $113,360
Mississippi .. ... A ; 6,411 5,185 47,801 48,063
Gulf Coast . ... e 6,296 . | 5648 48,596 41,991
Bast TEXAS ..ottt ettt iiiine v 4546 2,717 33,656 22,805
Mid-continent ............c..i i 1,248 — 7,420 —
Total ... e e e 31,260 27,362 $234,156  $226,219

In east Texas, we entered into a joint venture with GMX Resources, Inc. (NASDAQ: GMXR) in 2004 to
drill development wells in the North Carthage Field in east Texas. Through December 31, 2006, we drilled 90
gross (62.7 net) wells on this acreage.

In Mississippi, we drilled 80 (79.6 net) successful Selma Chalk development wells were drilled during the
year ended December 31, 2006 in the Company’s Baxterville, Gwinville and Maxie fields. The first of two
horizonta! Selma Chalk test wells was drilled in the Gwinville field in Mississippi during the fourth quarter of
2006. The current production rate of the horizontal well is approximately twice that of the adjacent vertical wells.
In addition, we began a program in the fourth quarter to test down-spacing the Selma Chalk from 20-acre to
10-acre spacing, which, if successful, would add a significant number of drilling opportunities in our three Selma
Chalk fields. Management expects to determine in 2007 whether to pursue horizontal drilling or down-spaced
drilling, or both. : ol

In the Gulf Coast region, we participated in the drilling of 17 gross (9.8 net) exploratory wells during the
year ended December 31, 2006. Ten (6.5 net} of the wells were successful, six (2.3 net) of the wells were
unsuccessful, and the remaining one (1.0 net) well was under evaluation as of December 31, 2006.

In the Mid-Continent region, we completed the Crow Creek Acquisition in June 2006, adding approximately
42.7 Befe of net proved reserves in Oklahoma. We began development of the acquired properties and drilled 24
gross (14.7 net) successful horizontal CBM wells and seven gross (2.4 net) conventional well in 2006 since the
Crow Creek Acquisition. Another horizontal CBM well (0.4 net) was drilled but plugged and abandoned.

In Appalachia, we continue to expand our CBM production and reserve base through leasehold acquisitions
and the use of a proprietary horizontal drilling technology. We drilled 33 gross (14.7 net) horizontal CBM
development wells in Appalachia in the year ended December 31, 2006, and all were successful. Production has
been temporarily atfected by water disposal issues, which has resulted in shutting in or temporarily delaying the
first production from nine horizontal patterns.

We drilted a total of 210 gross (151.8 net) wells during the year ended December 31, 2006, including 1§0
gross (141.3 net) development wells and 20 gross (10.5 net) exploratery wells. All but three gross (2.4 net)
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development wells were successful, Thirteen exploratory wells (7.2 net) were successful, six exploratory wells
(2.3 net) were not successful and one gross and net exploratory well is currently being tested. We have completed
testing on three other exploratory wells that were under evaluation as of December 31, 2005 and have determined
in 2006 that all three wells were unsuccessful. We wrote off $3.7 million of drilling costs in the third quarter of
2006 related to these wells.

PVR Coal Segment

In 2006, coal royalty revenues increased 19%, or $15.5 million, over 2005 due to acquisitions, more coal
being mined by PVR’s lessees and increasing coal prices, Tons produced by PVR’s lessees increased from
30.2 million tons in 2005 to 32.8 million tons in 2006, and PVR’s average gross royalties per ton increased from
$2.74 in 2005 to $2.99 in 2006. Generally, as coal prices change, PVR’s average royalties per ton also change
because the majority of PVR’s lessees pay royalties based on the gross sales prices of the coal mined. Most of
PVR’s coal is sold by its lessees under contracts with a duration of one year or more; therefore, changes to PVR’s
average royalties occur as PVR’s lessees’ contracts are renegotiated. The [llinois Basin coal reserves that PVR
acquired in July 2005 resulted in $4.8 million of coal royalty revenues in 2006 compared to $2.7 million in 2005.
The Huff Creek Acquisition in May 2006 resulted in $4.8 million of coal royalty revenues in 2006.

Coal services revenues increased to $5.9 million in 2006 from $5.2 million in 2005. In September 2006,
PVR completed construction of a coal service facility in Knout County, Kentucky, which began operations in
October 2006. The new facility contributed $0.2 million to coal services revenues in 2006. PVR believes that
these types of fee-based infrastructure assets provide good investment and cash flow opportunities, and they
continue to look for additional investments of this type, as well as other primarily fee-based assets.

The foltowing table summarizes coal production and coal royalty revenues by property:

Coal Production  Coal Royalty Revenues

Year Ended Year Ended

December 31, December 31,
Property 2006 2005 2006 2005

(tons in thousands) (in thousands)

Central Appalachia ... ... ... i e 20,156 18,996 §76,542 $64,645
Northern Appalachia ... ... ... ... .. .. ... .. . i 5009 4,958 7,314 - 6,973
Minois Basin . ......... ... i, e 2,540 1,449 4,768 2,709 -
SanJuan Basin ... . e 5073 4,824 9,539 8.398

Total .. 32,778 30,227 $98,163 $82,725

PVR Natural Gas Midstream Segment

The gross processing margin for PVR’s natural gas midstream operations increased from $44.7 million in
2005 to $68.1 million in 2006. This increase was due primarily to higher NGL prices and the contribution of the
Transwestern Acquisition. Inlet volumes at PVR’s gas processing plants and gathering systems were 153 MMcfd
in 2006, an increase over 127 MMcfd in 2003, primarily due to additional well connections in the area. PVR’s
midstream business generates revenues primarily from gas purchase and processing contracts with natural gas
producers and from fees charged for gathering natural gas volumes and providing other related services. During
the year ended December 31, 2006 PVR’s natural gas midstream business generated a majority of its gross
margin from contractual arrangements under which its margin is exposed to increases and decreases in the price
of natural gas and natural gas and natural gas liquids or NGLs. See Item 1, “Business—Contracts—PVR Natural
Gas Midstream Segment,” for a discussion of the types of contracts utilized by the natural gas midstream
segement. As part of PVR’s risk management strategy, PVR uses derivative financial instruments to
economically hedge NGLs sold and natural gas purchased. See the tables in “—Results of Operations—PVR
Midstream Segment—Expenses” for the effects of PVR’s derivative program on gross processing margin.
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PVR’s natural gas midstream assets are primarily located in the Mid-Continent area of Oklahoma and the
panhandle of Texas. The following table sets forth information regarding PVR’s natural gas midstream assets:

Year Ended
December 31, 2006
Utilization
Current Average of
Approximate Approximate Processing System Processing
Length Wells Capacity Throughput  Capacity
L\iet Type (Miles) Connected {(Mmcid) (Mmcfd) C(Fe)
Beaver/Perryton System . ..... Gathering
pipelines and
processing
facility 1,377 934 100 113.0(1) 100.0%
Crescent Systemn . ........... Gathering
pipelines and
processing -
facility 1,679 888 40 18.4 46.0%
Hamlin System ............. Gathering .
pipelines  and
processing
facility 497 231 20 7.2 36.0%
Arkoma System . ............ Gathering
pipelines 78 78 — _14.7(2)
3,631 2,131 160 153.3(3)

{1} Includes gas processed at other systems connected to the Beaver/Perryton System via the pipeline a'cquired
in June 2006.

(2} Gathering only volumes.

(3) Total average system throughput would be 163 MMcfd if the acquisition of additional pipeline in June 2006
had occurred on January 1, 2006

Summary of Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The process of preparing financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires our management to make estimates and judgments regarding certain
items and transactions. It is possible that materially different amounts could be recorded if these estimates and
judgments change or if the actual results differ from these estimates and judgments. We consider the following to
be the most critical accounting policies which involve the judgment of our management.

Reserves

The estimates of oil and gas reserves are the single most critical estimate included in our consolidated
financial statements. Reserve estimates become the basis for determining depletive write-off rates, recoverability
of historical cost investments and the fair value of properties subject to potential impairments. There are many
uncertainties inherent in estimating crude oil and natural gas reserve quantities, including projecting the total
quantities in place, future production rates and the timing of future development expenditures. In addition,
reserve estimates of new discoveries are less precise than those of producing properties due to the lack of a
production history. Accordingly, these estimates are subject to change as additional information becomes
available.

Proved reserves are the estimated quantities of crude oil, condensate and natural gas that geological and
engineering data demonstrate with reasonable certainty 1o be recoverable in future years from known reservoirs
under existing economic and operating conditions at the end of the respective years. Proved developed reserves
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are. those reserves expected to be recovered through existing wells with existing equipment and operating
methods. Proved undeveloped reserves are those quanuues that reqmre additional capital investment through
drilling or well recompletion techniques.

There are several factors which could change our est:matee of oil and gas reserves. Significant rises or
declines in product prices could lead to changes in the amount of reserves as production activities become more
or less economical. An additional factor that could result in a change of recorded reserves is the reservoir decline
rates differing from those assumed when the reserves were initially recorded. Estimation of future production and
development costs is also subject to change partially due to factors beyond our control, such as energy costs and
inflation or deflation of oil field service costs. Additionally, we perform impairment tests pursuant to Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards, (“SFAS”) No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived
Assets, when significant events occur, such as a market move to a Iower price environment or a material revision
to our reserve estimates. . , :

Depreciation and depletion of oil and gas producing propemes ls’determmed by the units-of-production
method and could change with revisicns to estimated proved recoverable.reserves. '

Coal properties are depleted on an area-by-area basis-al a rate based on the cost of the mineral properties
and the number of tons of estimated proven and probable coal reserves contained therein. PVR’s estimates of
coal reserves are updated periodically and may result in adjustments to coal reserves and depletion rates that are

1

recognized prospectively. o S

01'[ and Gas Revenues

Revenues associated ‘with sales of natural gas crude oil, condensate and NGLs are recorded when title
passes to the customer. Natural gas sales revenues from properties in which we have an interest with other
producers are recognized on the basis of our net workmg interest (“entitlement” method of accounting). Natural
gas imbalances occur when we sell more or less than Gur entitled ownership percentage of total natural gas
production. Any amount received in excess of our share is treated as deferred revenues. If we take less than we
are entitled to take, the under-delivery is recorded as a receivable. As a result of the numerous requirements
necessary to gather information from purchasers or various measurement locations, calculate volumes produced,
perform field and wellhead allocations and distribute and disburse funds to various working interest partners and
royalty owners, the collecuon of revenues from oil and gas producuon may take up to 60 days following the
month of production. Therefore, accruals for revenues and accounts receivable are made based on estimates of
our share of production, particularly from properties that are operated by our partners. Since the settlement
process may take 30 to 60 days following the month of actual-production, our financial results include estimates
of production and revenues for the related time period. Any differences, which we do not expect to be significant,
between the actual amoums ultimately received and ‘the original estimates are recorded in the period they become
finalized.

Natural Gas Midstream Revenues

Revenues from the sale of NGLs and residue gas are recognized when the NGLs and residue gas produced
at PVR's gas processing plants are sold. Gathering and transportation revenues are recognized based upon actual
volumes delivered. Due to the time needed to gather information from various purchasers and measurement
locations and then calculate volumes delivered, the collection of natural gas midstream revenues may take up to
30 days following the month of production. Therefore, accruals for revenues and accounts receivable and the
related cost of midstream gas purchased and accounts payabte are made based on estimates of natural gas
purchased and NGLs and natural gas sold, and our financial results include estimates of production and revenues
for the period of actual production. Any differences, which we do not expect to be significant, between the actual
amounts ultimately received or paid and the original estimates are recorded in the period they become finalized
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Coal Royalty Revenues

Coal royalty revenues are recognized on the basis of tons of coal sold by PVR’s lessees and the
corresponding revenues from those sales. Since PVR does not operate any mines, it does not have access to
actual production and revenue information until approximately 30 days following the month of production.
Therefore, the financial results of PVR include estimated revenues and accounts receivable for the month of
production. Any differences, which we do not expect to be significant, between the actual amounts ultimately
received and the original estimates are recorded in the period they become finalized.

Derivative Activities -

We and PVR have historically entered into derivative financial instruments that would qualify for hedge
accounting under SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities. Hedge
accounting affects the timing of revenue recognition and cost of midstream gas purchased in our consolidated
statements of income, as a majority of the gain or loss from a coniract qualifying as a cash flow hedge is deferred
until the related hedged transaction settles. Because during the first quarter of 2006 a large portion of our natural
gas derivatives and NGL derivatives no longer qualified for hedge accounting and to increase clarity in our
consolidated financial statements, we elected to discontinue hedge accounting prospectively for our remaining
commodity derivatives beginning May 1, 2006. Consequently, from that date forward, we began recognizing
mark-to-market gains and losses in earnings currently, rather than deferring such amounts in accumulated other
comprehensive tncome (shareholders’ equity). Because we no longer use hedge accounting for our commodity
derivatives, we could experience significant changes in the estimate of derivative gain or loss recognized in
revenues and cost of midstream gas purchased due to swings in the value of these contracts. These fluctuations
could be significant in a volatile pricing environment.

The net mark-to-market loss on our outstanding derivatives at April’ 30, 2006, which was included in
accumulated other comprehensive income, will be reported in future earnings through 2008 as the original
hedged transactions settle. This change in reporting will have no impact on our reported cash flows, although
future results of operations will be affected by the potential volatility of mark-to-market gains and losses which
fluctuate with changes in NGL,, oil and gas prices.

Oil and Gas Properties

We use the successful efforts method to account for our oil and gas properties. Under this method, costs of
acquiring properties, costs of driliing successful exploration wells and development costs are capitalized.
Geological and geophysical costs, delay rentals and costs to drill exploratory wells that do not find proved
reserves are expensed as oil and gas exploration. We will carry the costs of an exploratory well as an asset if the
well found a sufficient quantity of reserves to justify its capitalization as a producing well and as long as we are
making sufficient progress assessing the reserves and the economic and operating viability of the project. For
certain projects, it may take us more than one year to evaluate the future potential of the exploratory well and
make a determination of its economic viability. Our ability to move forward on a project may be dependent on
gaining access to transportation or processing facilities or obraining permits and government or partner approval,
the timing of which is beyond our control. In such cases, exploratory well costs remain suspended as long as we
are actively pursuing access to necessary facilities and access to such permits and approvals and believe they will
be obtained. We assess the status of suspended exploratory well costs on a quarterly basis.

A portion of the carrying value of our oil and gas properties is attributable to unproved propertics. At
December 31, 2006, the costs attributable 1o unproved properties were approximately $100.5 million. We
regularly assess on a property-by-property basis the impairment of individual unproved properties whose
acquisition costs are relatively significant. Unproved properties whose acquisition costs are not relatively
significant are amortized in the aggregate over the lesser of five years or the average remaining lease term. As
exploration work progresses and the reserves on relatively significant properties are proven, capitalized costs of
these properties will be subject to depreciation and depletion. If the exploration work is unsuccessful, the
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capitalized costs of the properties related to the unsuccessful work will be expensed. The timing of any
writedowns of these unproven properties, if warranted, depends upon the nature, timing and extent of future
exploration and development activities and their results.

Liduidity and Capital Resources

Although results are consolidated for financial reporting, Penn Virginia, PVG and PVR operate with
independent capital structures. Since PVR’s inception in 2001 and PVG’s inception in 2006, with the exception
of cash distributions paid to us.by PVR, the cash needs of each entity have been met independently with a
combination of operating cash flows, credit facility borrowings and issuance of new PVR and PVG units. We
expect to receive cash distributions from PVG beginning with its first quarterly distribution in 2007. We expect
that our cash needs and the cash needs of PVG and PVR will continue to be met independently of each other with
a combination of these funding sources.

. Summarized cash flow statements for 2006 and 20035, consolidating our combined operating segments, are
set forth below.

) PVR Coal
. . . (il and Gas and PYR
For the year ended December 31, 2006 o ] . & Corporate  Midstream  Consolidated
Net cash provided by operating activities ............. ... . ..covus $ 168475 $107344 3275819
Cash flows from financing activities: | .
o Dividends paid . ... (8,398) — (8,398)
.PVR distributions received (paid) ................. e 28,327, (66,954) (38,627)
Debt borrowings (repayments), net .. .. ... ... ... oo 142,000 (37,100) 104,900
Proceeds from equity iSSUANCE . ... .. eettinnennn e nranann, 2.810. 115,008 117,818
711 75 PP 5,623 (375) 5,248
Net cash provided by financing activities .7}, ...................... 170,362 10,579 180,941
Net cash provided by operating and financing activities . ............. 338,837 117,923 456,760
Net cash used in investing activities ... ............ccoovennnnnnnn. (332,659) (129,676) (462,335)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents . ................ $ 6,178 3% (11,753 § (5,575)
PVR Coal
0Oil and Gas and PVR
For the year ended December 31, 2005 & Corporate  Midstream  Consolidated
Net cash provided by operating activities .......................... - $ 137,695 % 93,712 $ 231,407
Cash flows from financing activities:
Dividendspaid .. ....... ... i i e (8,358) — (8,358)
PVR distributions received (paid) .. ... e 21,212 (51,949) (30,737)
Debt borrowings (repayments), net ................ .. ... ... 3,000 137,200 140,200
Proceeds from equity issuance ................ ... .. 0. (2,783) 129,239 126,456
073 =3 1,798 (2,385) (587)
Net cash provided by financing activities . ...................... ... 14,869 212,105 226,974
Net cash provided by operating and financing activities .............. 152,564 305,817 458,381
Net cash used in Investing activities . ........... ... .. 0ot (154,318) (303,621) (457,939
Net increase in cash and cashequivalents . .. ... ... ... ... ... ... % (1,754 $ 2,196 § 442
Cash Flows

Except where noted, the following discussion of cash flows and capital expenditures relates to our
consolidated results.
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Cash provided by operating activities in the oil and gas and corporate segments. increased $30.8 million, or
22%, to $168.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 from $137.7 million for 2005. The overall increase
in cash provided by operating activities from the oil and gas and corporate segments in 2006 compared to 2005
was primarily due to increased natural gas and crude oil production. Cash provided by operating activities in the
oil and gas and corporate segments increased $46.1 million, or 50%, to $137.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2005 from $91.6 million for 2004. The overall increase in cash provided by operating activities
from the oil and gas and corporate segments in 2005 compared to 2004 was primarily due to increases in both
production and natural gas and crude oil prices. Distributions we received from PVR increased to $28.3 million
in 2006 from $21.2 million in 2005 and $17.3 million in 2004. We borrowed $142.0 million, net of repayments,
in 2006 compared to $3.0 million in 2005 and $12.0 million in 2004 under our revolving credit facility. During
2006, 2005 and 2004, we used cash from operating and financing activities primarily for capital expenditures for
oil and gas development and exploration activities and acquisitions of oil and gas properties.

Cash provided by operating activities in the PVR coal and PVR natural gas midstream segments increased
$13.6 million, or 15%, to $107.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 from $93.7 million for 2005. The
overall increase in cash provided by operating activities from the PVYR coal and PVR midstream segments in
2006 compared to 2005 was primarily attributable to higher average gross coal royalties per ton and cash flows
from the natural gas midstream business, which PVR acquired in March 2003, partially offset by increased cash
outflows for derivative settlements. Cash provided by operating activities in the PVR coal and PVR midstream
segments increased $38.9 million, or 71%, to $93.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 from $54.8
million for 2004, The overall increase in cash provided by operating activities in 2005 compared to 2004 was
primarily attribuatable to higher average gross coal royalties per ton and cash flows from PVR’s newly acquired
natural gas midstream business. Included in 2006 financing activities for the PVR segments in the preceding
table are $115.0 miltion in proceeds from PVR’s issuance of common and Class B units. PVR issued common
units in 2005 for net proceeds of $129.2 million. PYR made cash investments in 2006 primarily for coal reserve
acquisitions, coal loadout facility construction and natural gas midstream acquisitions and gathering system
expansions. PVR made cash investments in 2005 primarily for the acquisition of its natural gas midstream
business and coal reserve acquisitions. PVR’s cash investments in 2004 primarily related to its investment in the
coal handling joint venture with Massey, which has been accounted for as an equity investment.




Capital expenditures, excluding noncash items, for.each of the three years ended Decémber 31, 2006 were
as follows: ) .

Year ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
(ip thousands)

Oil and gas ) ) o )
Proved property acquisitions .............. e $72724 $§ — % —
Developmentdrilling ....................... .. Lo 175257 107,744 77,053
Explorationdrilling ........... ... ... 41,923 18,562 16,411
SEISIMIC . ..ottt e 6,238 7.836 10,018
Lease acquisition and other (1) ........ ... ... ... .... 27,795 30,297 13,046
Pipeline, gathering, facilities ..................... ... 14,547 5,138 18,669

Total .............. e 338,484 169,577 - 135,197

Coal
ACqUIsIions (2) ... ... 15,103 5.657" 783
Expansion capital expenditures ..................... g 100 351 T2
Other property and equipment expenditures .......... . 90,385 98,101 29,530

Total ..o 105,588 104,109 30,385

Natural gas midstream . ' '
Acquisitions, netof cashacquired .................... 15,394 3,324 —
Expansion capital expenditures . ..................... 9414 4,264 . —
Other property and equipment expenditures ............ 39.434 206,811 —

Total ............... e e . 64,242 0 214,399 —

0 PR SO DU 3,682 350, 176

Total capital expenditures ............ e e $511,996  $488.435 $165,758

(1) Amount in 2006 excludes deferred tax assets of $32.3 million and acquisition of net liabilities other than
property or equipment of $29.1 million related to the Crow Creek Acquisition.

(2) Amount in 2006 excludes non-property and equipment assets acquired of $1.2 million. Amount in 2005
excludes noncash expenditure of $11.1 million to acquire -coal reserves in Kentucky in the Wayland
Acquisition in exchange for $10.4 million of equity issued in the form of PVR common units and $0.7
million of liabilities assumed. Amount in 2005 also excludes the noncash portion of the Green River
Acquisition, in which PVR assumed $3.3 million of deferred income. Amount in 2004 exctudes noncash
expenditures of $1.1 million to acquire additional reserves on PVR’s Northem Appalachia properties in
exchange for equity issued in the form of PVYR common and Class B units.

We are committed to expanding our oil and gas operations over the next several years through a
combination of development, exploration and acquisition of new properties. We have a portfolio of assets which
balances relatively low risk, moderate return development projects in Appalachia, Mississippi, east Texas and the
Mid-Continent with relatively moderate risk, potentially hlgher return development prolects and exploration
prospects in south Texas and south Louisiana.

We have budgeted approximately $334 mi]lion for oil and gas segment capital expenditures in 2007. We
continually review drilling and other capital expenditure plans and may change the amount we spend in any area
based on industry conditions and the availability of capital. We believe our cash flow from operations and
sources of debt financing are sufficient to fund our 2007 planned oil and gas capital expenditures program.

During 2006, PVR made aggregate capital expenditures of $129.8 million for coal reserve acquisitions, coal
loadout facility construction and natural gas midstream gathering systems. PVR’s cash flows from operations and
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its revolving credit facility were used to fund coal and natural gas midstream capital expenditures, including
three acquisitions, in 2006, During 2005, PVR made aggregate capital expenditures of $291.3 miilion for the
Cantera Acquisition and four coal reserve acquisitions. To finance its 2005 acquisitions, PVR borrowed $137.2
million, net of repayments, received proceeds of $126.4 million from the sale of its common units in a public
offering and received a $2.6 million contribution from its general partner, which was a wholly owned subsidiary
of us and now is a wholly owned subsidiary of PVG. To finance its equity investment in the Massey coal
handling joint venture in 2004, PVR borrowed $26.0 million, net of repayments,

We borrowed under our revolving credit facility, net of repayments, $142,0 million in 2006, $3.0 million in
2005 and $12.0 million in 2004. We also received cash distributions from PVR of $28.3 million in 2006, $21.2
million in 2005 and $17.3 million in 2004. Funds from both of these sources were primarily used for capital
expenditures. ‘

In February 2007, PVR paid a $0.40 per unit quarterly distribution for the three months ended December 31,
2006, or $1.60 per unit on an annualized basis. As a result of the PVR common units we directly own and the
PVR common and Class B units, general partner interest and incentive distribution rights PVG owns, we expect
PVR to pay cash distributions to us and PVG of approximately $42.4 million in 2007 compared 10 $28.3 million
in 2006.

Long-Term Debt

Revolving Credit Facility. We have a revolving credit facility (or the Revolver) that is secured by a portion
of our proved oil and gas reserves and matures in December 2010. Effective November 1, 2006, we amended the
Revolver to increase the commitment from $200 million to $300 million and the borrowing base from $300
million to $400 million. We had $221.0 million outstanding under the Revolver as of December 31, 2006, giving
us $79.0 of available borrowing capacity. The Revolver is governed by a borrowing base calculation and is
redetermined semi-annually. We have the option to elect interest at (i) the London Inter Bank Offering Rate (or
LIBOR} plus a Eurodollar margin ranging from 1.00% to 1.75%, based on the percentage of the borrowing base
outstanding or (ii} the greater of the prime rate or federal funds rate plus a margin of up to 0.50%. The weighied
average interest rate on borrowings incurred during the year ended December 31, 2006 was approximately 6.4%.
In 2006, we incurred commitment fees of $0.4 million on the unused portion of the Revolver. We capitalized
$2.8 million of interest cost incurred in 2006. The Revolver allows for the issuance of up to $20 million of letters
of credit, of which $0.7 million were issued as of December 31, 2006.

“The financial covenants under the Revolver require us to maintain levels of debt-to-earnings and impose
dividend limitation restrictions. The Revolver contains various other covenants that limit, among other things,
our ability to incur indebtedness, grant liens, make certain loans, acquisitions and investments, make any material
change to the nature of our business, acquire another company or enter into a merger or sale of assets, including
the sale or transfer of interests in our subsidiaries. As of December 31, 2006, we were in compliance with all of
our covenants under the Revolver. -

Line of Credit. We have a $10 mitlion line of credit with a financial institution, which had no borrowings
against il as of December 31, 2006. The line of credit is effective through June 2007 and is renewable annually.
We increased the line of credit from §5 million to $10 million in June 2006. We have an option to elect either a
fixed rate LIBOR loan, a floating rate LIBOR loan or a base rate (as determined by the financial institution) loan.

Revolver Interest Rate Swaps. Effective August 2, 2006, we entered into interest rate swap agreements (or
the Revolver Swaps) to swap $50 million of outstanding borrowings under our Revolver from a variable rate to a
weighted average fixed rate of 5.34% plus the applicable margin. Settlements on the Revolver Swaps are
recorded as interest expense. The Revolver Swaps were designated as cash flow hedges. Accordingly. the
effective portion of the change in the fair value of the swap transactions is recorded each period in other
comprehensive income. The ineffective portion of the change in fair value, if any, is recorded to current period
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earnings in interest expense. After considering the applicable margin of 1.25% in effect as of December 31, 2006,
the total interest rate on the $50 million pomon of Revolver borrowmgs covered by the Revolver Swaps was
3.47% at December 31, 2006.

PVR Revolving Credit Facility. As of December 31, 2006, PVR had $143.2 million outstanding under its
unsecured $300 million revolving credit facility (or the PVR Revolver) that matures in December 2011. PVR
used the proceeds from the sale of common units and Class B units to PYG in December 2006 to pay down
$114.6 miilion of the PVR Revolver. The PVR Revolver is available to PVR for general purposes, including
working capital, capital expenditures and acquisitions, and includes a $10 million sublimit for the issuance of
letiers of credit. PVR had outstanding letters of credit of $1.6 million as of December 31, 2006. In 2006, PVR
incurred commitment fees of $0.4 million on the unused portion of the PVR Revolver. PVR has a one-time
option to expand the PVR Revolver by $150 miltion upon receipt by the credit facility's administrative agent of
commitments from one or more lenders. The interest rate under the’ PVR Revolver fluctuates based on PVR’s
ratio of total indebtedness to EBITDA. Interest is payable at a base rate plus an appllcable margin of up t0 0.75%
if PVR selects the base rate borrowing option under the Revolver or at a rate derived from LIBOR plus an
applicable margin ranging from 0.75% to 1.75% if PVR selects the LIBOR-based borrowing option.

The financial covenants under the PVR Revolver require PVR to maintain specified levels of debt to
consolidated EBITDA and consolidated EBITDA to interest. The financial covenants restricted PVR’s additional
borrowing capacity under the PYR Revolver to approximately $257.0 million as of December 31, 2006. At the
current $300 million limit on the PVR Revolver, and given the outstanding balance of $143.2 million, net of $1.6
million of letters of credit, PVR could borrow up to $155.2 million without exercising its one-time option to
expand the PVR Revolver. In order to utilize the full extent of the $257.0 million borrowing capacity, PVR
would need to exercise its one-time option to expand the PVR Revolver by $150 million. The PVR Revolver
prohibits PVR from making distributions to its partners if any potential default or event of default, as defined in
the PVR Revolver, occurs or would result from the distribution. In addition, the PVR Revolver contains various
covenants that limit, among other things, PVR’s ability to incur indebtedness, grant liens, make certain loans,
acquisitions and investments, make any material change to the nature of its business, acquire another company or
enter into a merger or sale of assets, including the sale or transfer of interests in its subsidiaries. As of
December 31, 2006, PVR was in compliance with all of its covenants under the PVR Revolver.

PVR Senior Unsecured Notes. As of December 31, 2006, PYR owed $74.8 million under its senior
unsecured notes (or the PVR Notes). The PVR Notes bear interest at a fixed rate of 6.02% and mature in March
2013, with semi-annual principal and interest payments. The PVR Notes are equal in right of payment with ail of
PVR’s other unsecured indebtedness, including the PVR Revolver. The PVR Notes require PVR to obtain an
annial confirmation of its credit rating, with a 1.00% increase in the interest rate payable on the PVR Notes in
the event its credit rating falls below investment grade. In March 2006, PVR’s investment grade credit rating was
confirmed by Dominion Bond Rating Services. The PVR Notes contain various covenants similar to those
contained in the PVR Revolver. As of December 31, 2006, PVR was in compliance with all of its covenants
under the PVR Notes.

PVR Revolver Interest Rate Swaps. In Septeiber 2005, PVR entered into interest rate swap agreements (or the
PVR Revolver Swaps) with notional amounts totaling $60 million to establish fixed rates on the LIBOR-based
portion of the outstanding balance of the PVR Revolver until March 2010. PVR pays a weighted average fixed rate
of 4.22% on the notional amount plus the applicable margin, and the counterparties pay a variable rate equal to the
three-month LIBOR. Settlements on the PVR Revolver Swaps are recorded as interest expense. The PVR Revolver
Swaps were designated as cash flow hedges. Accordingly, the effective portion of the change in the fair value of the
swap transactions is recorded each period in other comprehensive income. The ineffective portion of the change in
fair value, if any, is recorded to current period earnings in interest expense. After considering the applicable margin
of 0.75% in effect 'as of December 31, 2006, the total interest rate on the $60 million portion of PVR Revolver
borrowings covered by the PVR Revolver Swaps was 4.97% at December 31, 2006.
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Future Capital Needs and Commimments

In the oil and gas segment, we expect to continue to execute a program dominated by relatively low risk,
moderate return development drilling and, to a lesser extent, higher risk, higher return exploration drilling,
supplemented periodically with acquisitions.

In 2007, we have I'Judgeted" oil and gas ségmcnl capital expenditures of approximately $334 million. These
expenditures are expected to be funded primarily by operating cash flow, cash distributions received from PVG
and from the Revolver as needed.

Part of PVR's strategy is to make acquisitions which increase cash available for distribution to its
unitholders. Long-term cash requirements for asset acquisitions are expecied to be funded by several sources,
including cash flows from operating activities, borrowings under credit facilities and the issuance of additional
equity and debt securities. PVR’s ability to make these acquisitions in the future will depend in part on the
availability of debt financing and on its ability to periodically use equity financing through the issuance of new
common units, which will depend on various factors, 1ncludmg prevailing market conditions, interest rates and its
financial condition and credit rating at the time.

In 2007, PVR anticipates making capital expenditures, excluding acquisitions, of approximately $3.6
million to $4.7 million for coal services projects and other property and equipment and approximately $47
million to $52 million for natural gas midstream projects. PVR believes that it will continue to have adequate
liquidity to fund future recurring operating and investing activities. Short-term cash requirements, such as
operating expenses and quarterly distributions to its general partner and unitholders, are expected to be funded
through operating cash flows. Funding sources for future PVR acquisitions are dependent on the size of any such
acquisitions and are expected to be provided by a combination of cash flows provided by operating activities and
borrowings, and potentially with the proceeds from the issuance of additional PVR equity. '

We have budgeted additional capital ‘expenditures of approximately $1 million to $2 million in 2007 for
administrative purposes, including the implemeéntation of a new accounting software system.

Contractual Obligations

Our contractual obligations as of December 31, 2006 are summarized in the following table:

. - Payments Due by Period

Less Than
Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 4-5Years Thereafter
{in thousands)

Revolving credit facility ......................... $221000 $§ — $ — $221000 $ —
PVR revolving credit facility ..................... 143,200 — — 143,200 —
PVR senior unsecured notes . .......... ........... 75400 11,000 26,800 24,200 13.400
Rental commitments (1} ........... ... ... ... ..... 13,551 5,973 5,065 2,513 -—
Qil and gas activities (2) ......................... 37,106 12,760 19,031 2,162 3,153

Total contractual obligations . ..................... $490,257 $29,733  $50.896 $393,075 $16,553

(1) Rental commitments primarily relate to equipment and building leases. Also included are PVR’s rental
commitments, which primarily relate to reserve-based properties which PVR subleases, or intends to
sublease, to third parties. The obligation expires when the property has been mined to exhaustion or the
lease has been canceled. The timing of mining by third party operators is difficult to estimate due to
numerous factors. See Item 1A, “Risk Factors.” PVR believes that the future rental commitments cannot be
reasonably estimated; however, based on current knowledge and historical trends, PVR believes that it will
incur approximately $0.9 million in rental commitments in annually until the feserves have been exhausted.

(2) Commitments for oil and gas activities relate to firm transportation agreements and drilling contracts
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

At December 31, 2006, we did not have any relationships with unconsolidated entities or financial
partnerships, such as entities often referred to as structured finance or special purpose entities, which would have
been established for the purpose of facilitating off-balance sheet arrangements or other contractually narrow or
limited purposes. We are, therefore, not materially exposed to any financing, liquidity, market or credit risk that
could arise if we had engaged in such relationships.

Results of Operations
The following table sets forth a summary of certain financial data for the periods indicated:

Selected Financial Data—Consolidated

Year Ended December 31,
2006 2005 . 2004
. (in thousands, except per share data)
REVBIUES ..o et e $753,920 $673,864 $228.425
8 {11171 P 583,397 511,847 147,629
Operating inCoOme . . ... ... L. i i i $170,532 5162017 §$ 80,796
NetinCOmE . ... .. e $ 75909 §$ 62,088 § 33,355
Earnings per share, basic . ... .. ... .. . ... L . e $ 406 § 335 % 182
Earnings per share. diluted .. ................... e $ 402 $ 331 § 181
Cash flows provided by operating activities ............. ... .. ... ... $275,819 $231,407 $146,365

The increase in 2006 net income compared to 2005 net income was primarily attributable to a $7.1 million
increase in operating income and a $34.4 million increase in derivative gains, partially offset by increased
interest expense and the related net increase in income tax expense. Operating income in 2006 increased
primarily due to-increased operating income contributions from our ownership interest in PVR which is reported
under the PVR coal and PVR natural gas midstream segments.

The increase'in 2005 net income compared to 2004 net income was primarily attributable to an $81.2
million increase in operating income, partially offset by increased interest expense on PVR's additional
borrowings to fund acquisitions, a net loss on derivatives and the related net increase in income tax expense.
Operating income iz 2005 increased primarily due to increased operating income contributions from our oi! and
gas segment and our ownership interest in PVR, which included the contribution of a natural gas midstream
business that PVR acquired in the first quarter of 2005. ‘

The assets, liabilities and earnings of PVG are fully consolidated in our financial statements, with the public
unitholders’ interest (18% as of December 31, 2006) reflected as a minority interest. The assets, liabilities and
earnings of PVR are fully consolidated in PVG’s financial statements, with the public unitholders’ interest (58%,
after effect of incentive distribution rights, as of December 31, 2006) reflected as minority interest in PVG's
financial statements. :




Oil and Gas Segment
Year Ended December 31, 2006 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2005

The following table sets forth a summary of certain financial and other data for our 0il and gas segment and
the percentage change for the periods indicated: :

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, o December 31,
2006 2005 Change . 2006 - 2005
(in thousands, except as noted) (per Mcfe) (1}
Production
Natural gas (Mmef) ....... ... .. .. ... 28,968 25,550 13%
Oil and condensate {thousand barrels) ..... 382 302 26%
Total production (Mmefe) ............... 31,260 27,362 14%
Revenues
Natwralgas...........cciiieennnn.. $212,919 $212,427 0% $ 735 § 83l
Oil and condensate .................... 21,237 13,792 54% 55.59 45.67
Otherincome .......... e 1,800 600 200%
Totalrevenues . ....................... 235,956 226,819 4% 755 8.29
Expenses
Operating. . ..........coouvun.n. T 27,403 17,300 58% 0.88 0.63
Taxes other than income .. .............. 11,810 13,188 (10)% 0.38 0.48
General and administrative .............. 12,826 9,264 38% 0.4] - 0.34
Production costs ................... 52,039 39,752 3% L6 145
Exp}oration .......................... 34,330 40917 © (6%  1.10 150
Impairment of oil and gas properties . ..... 8,517 4,785 8% 027 0.17
Depreciation, depletlion and amortization . . . 56,237 45,885 23% 180 1.68
Total EXPENSES . ..\ 'veererrnnnns 151,123 131,339 15% . 483 4.80
Operating income ........................ $ 84,833 $ 95,480 (% $ 271 35349

* Natural gas revenues are shown per Mcf, oil and condensate revenues are shown per Bbl, and all other
amounts are shown per Mcfe.

‘Production. Total production increased 14% in 2006 primarily due .to new production from increased
drilling, including the Cotton Valley play in east Texas, the Setma Chalk development play in Mississippi and
the success of our Fannett exploration prospect in south Texas drilled in the second quarter of 2005. The
Mid-Continent region, acquired through the Crow Creek Acquisition in June 2006, added 1.2 Befe to 2006
preduction. Production increases were partially offset by normal field declines and water disposal issues, which
resulted in shutting in or temporarily delaying production from some of our horizontal CBM wells in Appalachia.

Revenues. Approximately 93% of production in 2006 and 2005 was natural gas. Increased natural gas
production resulted in an approximately $28.4 million increase in natural gas revenues, almost fully offset by an
approximately $27.9 million decrease in natural gas revenues resulting from decreased realized prices for natural
gas. The-average realized price received for natural gas during 2006 was $7.35 per Mcf compared with $8.31 per
Mecf in 2005, a 12% decrease. Increased oil and condensate production accounted for approximately $3.7 million,
or 49%, of the increase in oil and condensate revenues. Increased realized prices for oil and condensate
accounted for approximately $3.8 million, or 51%, of the increase in oil and condensate revenues. The average
realized oil price received was $55.59 per barrel in 2006, up 22% from $45.67 per barrel in 2005,

Natural gas, oil and condensate revenues are derived from the sale of our oil and gas production, which is
net of the effects of the settlement of derivative contracts that follow hedge accounting. Settlement of our
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derivative contracts that do not follow hedge accounting has no effect on our reported revenues, Qur revenues
may vary significantly from period to period as a result of changes in commodity prices or production volumes.

Because during the first quarter of 2006 a large portion of our natural gas derivatives and NGL derivatives -
no longer qualified for hedge accounting and to increase clarity in our consolidated financial statements, we
elected to discontinue hedge accounting prospectively for our remaining commodity derivatives beginning
May 1, 2006. Consequently, from that date forward, we began recognizing mark-to-market gains and losses in
earnings currently, rather than deferring such amounts in accumulated other comprehensive income
(shareholders’ equity). The net mark-to-market loss on our outstanding derivatives at April 30, 2006, which was
included in accumulated other comprehensive income, will be reported in future earnings through 2008 as the
original hedged transactions settle. This change in reporting will have no impact on our reported cash flows,
although future results of operations will be affected by the potential volatility of mark-to-market gains and
losses which fluctuate with changes in NGL, oil and gas prices.

The following table shows a summary of the effects of derivative activities on revenues and realized prices
for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005:

Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2006 2005

- =« {in thousands} (per. Mcf) )
Natural gas revenue, asreported ... i $212,919 $212427 $ 7.35 § 831
Derivatives (gains) losses included in natural gas revenues. . ... ... .. . {448) 14,049  (0.02) 0.55
Natural gas revenue before impact of derivatives .. ................ 212471 226,476 7.33 8.86
Cash settlements on natural gas derivatives ...................... ’ 10,711 (14,049 037 (0.55)
Natural gas revenues, adjusted for derivatives .................... $223,182 $212,427 §$ 770 §$ 831

(per Bi]l)

Crude oil revenue, asreported . .. ... ... il $ 21,237 § 13,792 $55.59 $45.67
Derivatives (gains) losses included in oil and condensate revenues . . .. 457 857 1.20 2.84
Qil and condensate revenue before impact of derivatives ........... 21,694 14,649 5679 43351
Cash settlements on crude oil derivatives ... .....ovvinirinen..ns (200) . (857) (0.52) - (2.84)
Qil and condensate revenues, adjusted for derivatives .............. $ 21,494 §$ 13,792 $56.27 $45.67

Expenses. Operating costs and expenses in 2006 increased due to increases in operating expenses, general
and administrative expenses, impairment of oil and gas properties and depreciation, depletion and amortization
(or DD&A) expenses. These increases were offset by decreases in taxes other than income and exploration
expense. .

Operating expenses increased primarily due to additional compressor rentals at fields with increased
production, downhole maintenance charges associated with horizontal CBM wells in Appalachia and Selma
Chalk wells in Mississippi, increased surface repair costs and increased gathering fees related to horizontal CBM
and Cotton Valley wells. '

Taxes other than income decreased due to a severance tax refund related to production in the Cotton Valley
play. This decrease was offset by higher severance taxes as a result of increased production.

General and administrative expenses increased primarily due to increased payroll costs as a result of wage
increases and new personnel and consulting fees.




Exploration expenses for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 consisted of the following;

2006 2005
7 {in thousands)

+ Dryholecosts ..:............ O 315,178 $11,379
EISIMIC .. i e e e 6,237 7739
Unproved leasehold ......... ... oo e 9410 . 17,761
L8 T 3,505 4,038

Total ... .. .. e . $34,330 $40917

Exploratioh expenses decreased primarily due to unproved leaseheld and dry hole costs related to an
exploratory well in south Texas that was determined to be unsuccessful in the second quarter of 2005. There were
offsetting increases in dry hole costs due to the write-off of exploratory wells and in unproved leasehold due to
the amortization of unproved property pools in 2006. The timing of seismic data purchases in 2006 and 2005
caused seismic expenses to decrease in 2006 compared to 2005.

" Impairment charges in 2006 related to changes in estiniates of reserve bases of certain fields in Louisiana,
Texas and West Virginia. Impairment charges in 20035 related to changes in estimates of reserve bases of certain
fields in Texas.,

0Oil and gas DD&A expenses increased due to the 14% increase in equivalent production and as a result of
higher average depletion rates. The*average depletion rate increased from $1.68 per Mcfe for 2005 to $1.80 per
Mcfe for 2006 as a result of a greater percentage of production coming from relatively higher cost horizontal
CBM and Cotton Valley wells and general price inflation for equipment, services and tubulars used for drilling
and development.

Year Ended December 31, 2005 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2004

The following table sets forth a summary of certain financial and other data for our oil and gas segmcn‘t and
the percentage change for the periods indicated:

. Yo
2005 2004 Chazlge 2005 2004
(in thousands, except as noted) {per Mcfe)

Production

Natural'gas (Mmef) ... o o 25,550 22,079 16%

Qil and condensate (thousand barrels) ... .............. .. cov 302 396 (2%

Total produclion Mmefe) ... e 27,362 - 24,555 11%
Revenues . .

Natural gas .. ..o $212,427 $138,422 53% $ 831 §$ 627

Oilandcondensate . .. ... ... ... it i, 13,792 13,364 3% 4567 33795

OEET INCOMIE L\ ittt ettt et et e e e 600 (114) (626Y%

Total revenues .. ... ... et 226,819 151 672 50% 8.29 6.18
Expenses : _

OPErating . ..ottt ettt e 17,300 13,949 24% 0.63 0.57

Taxes other than income .......... e 13,188 9,325 41% 0.48 0.38

General and administrative . ........ ... .o i ini i, 9.264 8,336 11% 0.34 0.34

ProduCtion COStS . .. ...ttt i e e 39,752 31,610 26% 1.45 1.29

EXplOration ... .......uuinion i i 40,917 26,058 57% 1.50 1.07

Impairment of cil and gas properties ... ........ .. ... . ... 4,785 655 631%  0.17 0.03

Loss on assets held forsale ......... e e - — 7,541 (% — 0.31

Depreciation, depletion and amortization ..................... 45,885 35,886 28% 1.68 1.47

Total BXPENSES .. ..oyt et 131,339 101,750 29% 4 80 417

Operatingincome. .. ... ... ... . . . $ 95480 $ 49,922 91% § 349 § 203

|
|

*  Natural gas revenues are shown per Mcf, oil and condensate revenues are shown per Bbl, and all other
amounts are shown per Mcfe.
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Production. Total production increased 11% in 2005 primarily due to new production from increased
drilling, including the HCBM play in Appalachia, the Selma Chalk development play in Mississippi and the
Cotton Valley play in east Texas and north Leuisiana. Production increases were partially offset by the first
quarter 2003 sale of oil and gas properties in west Texas, production shut-ins along the Gulf Coast as a result of
hurricanes Katrina and Rita and normatl field declines.

Revenues. Approximately 93% and 90% of production in 2005 and 2004 was natural gas. Increased natural
gas production accounted for approximately $21.8 million, or 29%, of the increase in natural gas revenues.
Increased realized prices for natural gas accounted for approximately $52.2 miilion, or 71%, of the increase in
natural gas revenues. The average realized price received for natural gas during 2005 was $8.31 per Mcf
compared with $6.27 per Mcf in 2004, a 33% increase. The average realized oil price received was $45.67 per
barrel in 2005, up 35% from $33.75 per barrel in 2004. This price increase for crude oil was offset by a decline in
oil production compared to 2004 due to the January 2005 sale of oil and gas properties in West Texas, production
shut-ins along the Gulf Coast as a result of hurricanes Katrina and Rita and normal field declines.

Due to the volatility of crude oil and natural gas prices, in 2005 and 2004, we hedged the price received for
certain sales volumes through the use of swaps and costless collars in accordance with our hedging policy. Gains
and losses from hedging activities are included in revenues when the hedged production occurs. In 2005,
approximately 42% of our natural gas was hedged using costless collars at an average floor price of $5.61 per
MMbtu and an average ceiling price of $8.10 per MMbtu. We also hedged approximately 31% of our crude oil
production using a fixed price swap in January 2005 and a costless collar beginning in March 2005 and
continuing for the remainder of the year. The swap price was $30.59 per barrel, and the costless collar had a floor
price of $42.00 per barrel and a ceiling price of $47.75 per barrel. We recognized a loss on settled derivative
contracts accounted for as cash flow hedges of $14.9 million in 2005, compared with a loss of $5.9 million in
2004.

Expenses. Operating costs and expenses in 2005 increased primarily due to increases in operating expenses,
exploration expenses, taxes other than income, general and administrative expenses, impairments and DD&A
expenses. These increases were partially offset by the absence in 2005 of a loss on assets held for sale.

Operating expenses increased primarily due to additional compressor rentals at fields with increased
production, downhole maintenance charges associated with HCBM wells in Appalachla and Selma Chalk welis
in Mississippi and increased water disposal costs.

Exploration expenses for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 consisted of the following:

2005 2004
{in thousands)

Dry hole COSIS .« ..ttt ettt e et T $11,379  $10,284

Seismic .............. P 7,739 9,225

Unprovedleasehold . ... ... ... . i 17,761 5,726

Other ....................... R 4,038 823

Total . e e $40917  $26,058

.

Exploration expenses increased primarily due to higher unproved leasehold write-offs and dry hole costs for
an unsuccessful exploratory well in south Texas. The balance of the increase in exploration expenses was
primarily due to unproved leasehold ‘write-offs relating to expired lease options and increased delay rentals on
certain leaseholds in south Louisiana.

1 Taxes other than income increased due to higher severance taxes as a result of increased production and
higher gas prices. General and administrative expenses increased primarily due to increased payroll costs as a
result of wage increases and new personnel. Impairment charges in 2005 related to changes in estimates of
reserve bases of certain fields in Texas.

69




Oil and gas DD&A expenses increased due to the 12% increase in equivalent production and as a result of
higher average depletion rates. The average depletion rate increased from $1.47 per Mcfe in 2004 to $1.67 per
Mecfe in 2005 as a result of a greater percentage of production coming from relatively higher cost horizontal
CBM and Cotton Valley wells and general price inflation for equipment, services and tubulars used for drilling
and development, combined with depreciation on new pipeline infrastructure placed in service during the fourth
quarter of 2004,

A loss of $7.5 million was recognized in 2004 for the write-down 1o realizable value of a group of non-core
propemes in west Texas thal were sold in January 2005 .

PVR Coal Segment .
Year Ended December 31, 2006 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2005

The following table sets forth a summary of certain financial and other data for PVR’s coal segment and the
percentage change for the periods indicated: ;

+

Year Ended December 31,
2006 2005 % Change
‘(in thousands, except as noted}
Financial Highlights
- ' 1
Revenues ) ..
Coalroyalties . ............ ... il $ 958,163 $82.725 19%
Coal ServiCes ... . i i e e 5,864 5,230 12%
Other ... e e 8,954 7,800 15%
Total revenues .. ............... e 112,981 95,755 18%
Expenses ‘ . . 7 '
Operating ......... A 8,600 5,755 49%
Taxes other thanincome ........................... 934 1,129, . (IN%
General and administrative - .. .. .. e i 9,604 9,237 4%
Depreciation, depletion and amortization .............. 20,359 17,890 14%
Total expenses ....... P . P 39,537 34,011 16%
Operatingincome ....................... ... .. ...... $ 73444 361,744 19%
Operating Statistics
Royalty coal tons produced by lessees (tons in )
MIloNS} . ... e 32,778 30,227 8%
Average royalty perton ($/ton) . ... ... .. 299 5 274 9%

Revenues. Coal royalty revenues increased to $98.2 million in 2006 from $82.7 million in 2005, or 19%, due
to a higher average royalty per ton and increased production. The average royalty per ton increased 10 $2.99 in
2006 from $2.74 in 2005. The increase in the average royalty per ton was primarily due to a greater percentage of
coal being produced under certain price-sensitive leases and, for most of 2006, stronger market conditions for
coal resulting in higher prices. Coal production by PVR’s lessees increased primarily due to production on PVR’s
lllinois Basin property, which PVR acquired in the third quarter of 2005, and production on PVR’s Central
Appalachian property due to the Huff Creek Acquisition in May 2006.

Coal services revenues increased primarily due to increased equity earnings from PVR’s coal handling joint
venture and increased revenues from coal handling facilities that processed higher volumes. PVR’s newly
constructed facility on PVR’s Central Appalachian property began operations in October 2006 and contributed
$0.2 million to coal services revenues in 2006.

70




Other revenues increased primarily due to the following factors. In 2006 and 2005, PVR earned $1.7 million
and $0.8 million in revenues for the management of certain coal properties. Forfeiture income increased $1.9
million in 2006 from $0.8 million in 2005 due to timing of lease terms. In 2006 and 2005, PVR recognized $0.8
million and $0.4 million in railcar rental income related to railcars it purchased in June 2005, In 2006 and 2005,
PVR recognized $1.9 million and $1.3 million of wheelage fees, primarily as a result of the Alloy Acquisition.
These increases were partially offset by a decrease from $1.4 million in 2005 to $1.0 million in 2006 in royalty
income from oil and nawral gas royalty interest acquired in the March 2005 Coal River Acquisition. Further
offsetting the increases was $1.5 million PVR received in 2005 from the sale of a bankrupicy claim filed against
a former lessee in 2004 for lost future rents.

Expenses. Operating expenses increased to $8.6 million in 2006 from $3.8 million in 2005, or 49%, due to
production on PVR’s subleased Cenitral Appalachian property acquired in the Huff Creek Acquisition in May
2006. This increase was partially offset by a decrease in production from other subleased properties primarily
resulting from the movement of longwall mining operations at one of these properties. Fluctuations in production
on subleased properties have a direct impact on royalty expense. General and administrative expenses increased
due to absorbing operations related to PVR's 2005 and 2006 acquisitions, increased professional fees and payroll
costs relating to evaluaiing acquisition opportunities and increased reimbursement to PVR’s general partner for
shared corporate overhead costs. DD&A expense increased due to the increase in production and a higher
depletion rate on recently acquired reserves.

Year Ended December 31, 2005 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2004

The following table sets forth a summary of certain financial and other data for PVR’s coal segment and the
percentage change for the periods indicated: ‘

Year Ended December 31, %
2005 2004 Change
(in thousands, except as noted)

Financial Highlights
Revenues ’ : '
Coal royalties . ........ ... .. i $82,725 $69,643 19%
Coal SEIVICES . . . .ottt e 5,230 3,787 38%
Other . e 7,800 2,200 255%
Totalrevenues .. ....ovv v 95,755 75,630 27%
Expenses
Operating ........ S 5,755 7,224 (20Y%
Taxesotherthan income . ............uiinrinnnnnn. 1,129 948 19%
General and administrative ... ....... ... iiuenrn.. 9,237 8,307 11%
Depreciation, depletion and amortization . ............. 17,890 18,632 (4)%
Total expenses ... i 34,011 35,111 (3)%
Operatingincome ......................cciiiirnnnnn., $61,744 $40,519 52%
Operating Statistics
Royalty coal tons produced by lessees (tons in
millions) ... ... .. e 30,227 31,181 3)%
Average royalty perton ($/ton) ... ... ... ... ... .. $ 274 $ 223 23%

Revenues. Coal royalty revenues increased to $82.7 million in 20035 from $69.6 million in 2004, or 19%, due
to a higher average royalty per ton despite a 3% decrease in production. The average royalty per ton increased to
$2.74 in 2005 from $2.23 in 2004. The increase in the average royalty per ton was primarily due to a greater
percentage of coal being produced from certain price-sensitive leases and stronger market conditions for coal
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resulting in higher prices. Coal prodiction by PVR’s lessees decreased primarily due to a loss of production
resulting from one lessee’s longwall mining operation moving off of PVR’s property and onto an adjacent third
party property in the first quarter of 2005. Production also decreased due to the inability of one lessee’s customer
to receive shipments because of an operating problem at the customer’s power generation facility. These
decreases were partially offset by production from property PVR acquired July 2005 in the 1llinois Basin.

Coal services revenues increased 38% to $5.2 miltion in 2005 from $3.8 million in 2004. The increase in
coal services revenues primarily related to increased equity earnings from the coal handling joint venture in
which PVR acquired a 50% interest in July 2004. Increased revenues from two coal handling facilities that began
operating in July 2003 and February 2004 also contributed to the increase.

Other revenues increased 255% to $7.8 million in 2005 from $2.2 million in 2004 primarily due to the
following factors. PVYR received $1.3 million of additional wheelage fees primarily as a result of the Alloy
Acquisition in April 2005. PVR also received $1.5 million during the second quarter of 2005 from the sale of a
bankruptey claim filed against a former lessee in 2004 for lost future rents. PVR received $1.4 million of royalty
income in 2005 from the oil and natural gas royalty interests acquired in the March 2005 Coal River Acquisition,
$0.8 million in fees for the management of certain coal properties and $0.4 million of rental income from railcars
purchased in the second quarter of 2005. '

Expenses. Operating expenses decreased to $5.8 million in 2005 from $7.2 million in 2004, or 20%, due to a
decrease in production from subleased properties, partially offset by new wheelage expenses incurred as a result
of the April 2005 Alloy Acquisition. Production from subleased properties decreased by 32% to 4.6 million tons
in 2005 from 6.8 million tons in 2004. Fluctuations in production on subleased properties have a direct impact on
royalty expense. General and administrative expenses increased primarily due to increased accounting and tax
related fees and increased payroll costs due to new personnel and wage increases. The decrease in DD&A
expense is consistent with the decrease in production.

PVR Natural Gas Midstream Segment

PVR began operating in its natural gas midstream segment on March 3, 2005 with the acquisition of
Cantera’s natural gas midstream business. The results of operations of the natural gas midstream segment since
that date are discussed below.




The following table sets forth a summary of certain financial and other data for PVR’s natural gas
midstream segment and the percentage change for the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31,
2006 2005 (1) % Change
(in thousands)

Financial Highlights

Revenues , . o
Residue gas ... ... $259.764  $233,208 11%
Naturalgas liquids ......... .. ... ... . ... . ..... 130,675 106,453 23%
COndensate ... ..ottt 9,989 7,322 36%
Gathering and transportation fees . .................... 2,287 1,674 37%

Total natural gas midstream revenues . ............ 402,715 348,657 16%
Marketing revenue, net . ................ ... ... ..... 2,195 1,936 13%
~ Totalrevenues ....0.. ... 404910 350,593 15%

Expenses
Costofgaspurchased ....... ... ... . oiiiiinnn.., 334,594 303,912 10%
Operating ... ...t s 11,403 9,347 22%
Taxes otherthanincome ... ... ... .. ... ... ..., 1,420 1,268 12%
General and administrative .. ..........0oiiinion. .. 11,023 6,982 58%
Depreciation and amortization ....................... 17,004 12,738 34%

Total operating expenses ...............c........ 375,534 334247 12%

Operatingincome .................... ... ..., $ 29376 § 16,346 30%

Operating Statistics .

. Inlet volumes (MMcf) . ... .. .. .. e e 55,991 38,875 44%
Midstream processing margin (2) . .................... $ 68,121 3 44745 52%

(1Y Represents the results of operations of the natural gas midstream segment since March 3, 2005 the closmg
date of the Cantera Acquisition,

(2) Midstream processing margin consists of total natural gas midstream revenues minus the .cost of gas
purchased.

The financial and other data presented in the table above for 2005 include ten months of operations of
PVR’s midstream business. One of the primary reasons for the significant differences in PVR’s results of
operations for 2006 as compared to 2005 is that the 2006 data includes 12 full months of operations of the
midstream business.

Revenues. Revenues included residue gas sold from processing plants after NGLs were removed NGLs sold
after bemg removed from inlet volumes received, condensate collected and sold, gathering and other fees
primarily from natural gas volumes connected to PVR’s gas processing plants and the purchase and resale of
natural gas not connected to its gathering systems and processing plants. The increase in natural gas midstream
revenues was pnmanly a result of an addmonal two months of operations in 2006 and higher average ‘NGL and
condensate prices in 2006. :

Expenses. Operating costs and expenses primarily consisted of the cost of gas purchased and also included
operating expenses, taxes other than income, general and administrative expenses and depreciation and
amortization. Expenses generally increased due to an additional months of activity in 2006. The followmg
paragraphs describe other factors contributing to the change in expenses.

Cost of gas purchased consisted of amounts payable to third-party producers for natural gas purchased under
percentage of proceeds and keep-whole contracts. The increase in the cost of gas purchased was primarily due to

73




overall volume of natural gas purchased in 2006. Included in cost of gas purchased for 2006 was a $4.6 million
non-cash charge to reserve for amounts related to balances assumed as part of the Cantera Acquisition. The
following table shows a summary of the effects of derivative activities on midstream processing margin:

Year Ended
December 31,
2006 2005

(in thousands}
Midstream processing margin, asreported ............. ... ... .. $ 68,121 $44.745
Derivatives losses included in midstream processing margin . ...... 1,953 (988)
Midstream processing margin before impact of derivatives ........ "f0,0?4 43,757
Cash settlements onderivatives . ...........c. e, (19,436) (4,752)
Midstream processing margin, adjusted for derivatives ........... $ 50,638  $39,005

Operating expenses increased due to rent and maintenance costs associated with additional compressors.
General and administrative expenses increased primarily due to additionai personnel added to support the
business and recent acquisitions, and increased reimbursement to PVR’s general partner for shared corporate
overhead costs from $0.8 million in 2005 to $2.4 million in 2006. Depreciation and amortization expense
increased due to depreciation on the pipeline acquired in the June 2006 Transwestern Acquisition and recent
gathering system expansions.

Corporate and Other

Corporate and other results primarily consist of oversight and administrative functions.

Expenses. Corporate operating expenses increased by $4.6 million from $12.3 million in 2005 to $16.9
million in 2006. The increase was primarily related to increased general and administrative expenses which
included higher payroll costs as a result of wage increases, new personnel and the recognition of $1.4 million for
stock option expense upon adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), Share-Based Payment, on January 1, 2006. Corporate
operating expenses increased by $1.5 million from $10.8 million in 2004 to $12.3 million in 2005. The increase
was primarily related to increased general and administrative expenses which included higher payroll costs as a
result of wage increases and new personnel and changes in director compensation.

Interest Expense. Interest expense increased by $9.5 million from $15.3 million in 2005 to $24.8 million in
2006, Interest expense increased by $7.6 million from $7.7 million in 2004 to $15.3 million in 2005. The increase
in both periods was primarily due to interest incurred on additional borrowings under the Revolver and the PVR
Revolver to finance 2005 and 2006 acquisitions and a general.increase in interest rates. We capitalized interest
costs amounting to $3.2 million, $3.5 million and $2.0 million in 2006, 2005 and 2004 because the borrowings
funded the preparation of unproved properties for their intended use.

Derivatives. Because during the first quarter of 2006 a large portion of our natural gas derivatives and NGL
derivatives no longer qualified for hedge accounting and to increase clarity in our consolidated financial
statements, we elected to discontinue hedge accounting prospectively for our remaining commodity derivatives
beginning May 1, 2006. Consequently, from that date forward, we began recognizing mark-to-market gains and
losses in earnings currently, rather than deferring such amounts in accumulated other comprehensive income
(shareholders’ equity). The net mark-to-market loss on our outstanding derivatives at Aprit 30, 2006. which was
included in accumulated other comprehensive income, will be reported in future earnings through 2008 as the
original hedged transactions settle. This change in reporting will have no impact on our reported cash flows,
although future results of operations will be affected by the potential volatility of mark-to-market gains and
losses which fluctuate with changes in NGL, oil and gas prices.

Net derivative gains were $19.5 million for 2006 and included a $19.0 million unrealized gain for
mark-to-market adjustments and a $0.5 million unrealized gain for changes in- hedge effectiveness. The
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unrealized gain due to changes in fair market value was associated with derivative contracts that we no longer
accounted for using hedge accounting and represented changes in the fair value of our open contracts during the
period. The unrealizéd gain for changes in hedge effectiveness was associated with hedging contracts that we
accounted for using hedge accounting under SFAS No. 133. Derivative losses of $14.9 million for 2005 included
a $13.9 million unrealized loss for mark-to-market adjustments on certain PVR derivative agreements, a $0.7
million unrealized loss for mark-to-market adjustments on a natural gas basis swap for which we elected not to
use hedge accounting and a $0.3 million net unrealized loss for changes in effectiveness of open commodity
price hedges related to the natural gas midstream segment and the oil and gas segment. The $13.9 million
unrealized loss primarily represented the change in market value of derivative agreements between the time PVR
entered into the agreements in January 2005 and the time the derivative agreements qualified for hedge
accounting after closing the acquisition of the natural gas midstream business in March 2005.

Environmental Matters

Extensive federal, state and local laws govern oil and natural gas operations, regulate the discharge of materials
into the environment or otherwise relate to the protection of the environment. Numerous governmental departments
issue rules and regulations to implement and enforce such laws that are often difficult and costly to comply with and
which carry substantial administrative, civil and even criminal penalties for failure to comply. Some laws, rules and
regulations relating to protection of the environment may, in certain circumstances, impose “strict liability" for
environinental -contamination, rendering a person liable for environmental and natural resource damages and
cleanup costs without regard to negligence or fault on the part of such person. Other laws, rules and regulations may
restrict the rate of oil and natural gas production below the rate that would otherwise exist or even prohibit
exploration or production activities in sensitive areas. In addition, state laws often require some. form of remedial
action to prevent pollution from former operations, such as closure of inactive pits and plugging of abandoned
wells. The regulatory burden on the oil and natural gas industry increases its cost of -doing business and
consequently affects its profitability. These laws, rules and regulations affect our operations, as well as the oil and
gas exploration and production industry in general. We believe that we are in substantial compliance with current
applicable environmental laws, rules and regulations and that continued compliance with existing requirements will
not have a material adverse impact on us. Nevertheless, changes in existing environmental laws or the adoption of
new environmental laws have the potential to adversely affect our operations.

The operatiohs of PVR’s coal lessees and natural gas midstream segment are subject to environmental laws
and regulations adopted by various governmental authorities in the jurisdictions in which these operations are
conducted. The terms of PVR’s coal property leases impose liability for all environmental and reclamation
liabilities arising under those laws and regulations on the relevant lessees. The lessees are bonded and have
indemnified PVR against any and all future environmental liabilities. PVR regularly visits coal properties under
lease 1o monitor lessee compliance with environmental laws and regulations and to review mining activities.
Management believes that the operations of PVR’s coul lessees and natural gas midstream segment will comply
with existing regulations and does not expect any material impact on'its financial condition or results of
operations. S ‘ ‘

As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, PVR's environmental liabilities included $1.6 million and $2.5 million,
which represents PVR’s best estimate of the liabilities as of those dates related to the coal and natural gas
midstream businesses. PVR has reclamation bonding requirements with respect to certain unleased and inactive
properties. Given the uncertainty of when the reclamation area will meet regulatory standards, a change in this
estimate could occur in the future. :

See Item 1, “Business-—Government Regulation and Environmental Matters” for a more detailed discussion
of environmental laws and regulations affecting our business.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 3 in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for a description of recent accounting
pronouncements. ‘
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Forward-Looking Statements ’

Certain statements contained herein that are not descriptions of historical facts are “forward-looking”
statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Because such statements include risks, uncertainties and
contingencies, actual results may differ materially from those expressed or implied by such forward- -looking
statements. These risks, uncertainties and contingencies include, but are not limited to, the risks set forth in
Item 1A, “Risk Factors.”

Additional information concerning these and other factors can be found in our press releases and public
periodic filings with the SEC. Many of the factors that will determine our future results are beyond the ability of
management to control or predict. Readers should not place undue reliance on forward-looking statements, which
reflect management’s views only as of the date hereof. We undertake no obligation to revise or update any
forward-looking statements, or to make any other forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new
information, future events or otherwme

Item 7A  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk ‘ T

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from adverse changes in market rates and prices. The principal market
risks to which we are exposed are NGL, crude oil, natural gas and coal price risks and interest rate risk.

We are also indirectly exposed to the credit risk of our and PVR’s customers and PVR’s: lessees. If our
customers or PVR’s lessees become financially insolvent, they may not be able to continue operaung or meet
their payment obligations.

Price Risk Management

Our price risk management program permits the utilization of derivative financial instruments (such as
futures, forwards, option contracts and swaps) to seek to mitigate the price risks associated with fluctuations in
natural gas, NGL and crude oil prices as they relate to our anticipated production and PVR’s natural gas
midstream business. Prior to May 1, 2006, these financial instruments were historically designated as cash flow
hedges and accounted for in accordance with SFAS No. 133. The derivative financial instruments are placed with
major financial institutions that we believe are of minimum credit risk. The fair value of our price risk
management assets is significantly affected by fluctuations in the prices of natural gas, NGLs and crude oil.

For the year ended December 31, 2006, we reported a net $19.0 million derivative gain for mark-to-market
adjustments on certain derivatives that no longer qualified for hedge accounting effective January 1, 2006.
Because during the first quarter of 2006 a large portion of our natural gas derivatives and NGL derivatives no
longer qualified for hedge accounting and to increase clarity in our consolidated financial statements, we elected
to discontinue hedge accounting prospectively for our remaining commodity derivatives beginning May 1, 2006.
Consequently, from that date forward, we began recognizing mark-to-market gains and losses in earnings
currently, rather than deferring such amounts in accumulated other comprehensive income (shareholders” equity).
The net mark-to-market loss on our outstanding derivatives at April 30, 2006, which was included in
accumulated other comprehensive income, will be reported in future earnings through 2008 as the original
hedged transactions settle. We will recognize hedging losses of $0.3 million in 2007 related to settlements of the
oil and gas segment’s hedged transactions for which we deferred net losses in accumulated other comprehensive
income through April 30, 2006. PVR will recognize hedging losses of $4.6 million in 2007 and $5.5 million in
2008 related to settlements of the PVR natural gas midstream segment’s hedged transactions for which PVR
deferred net losses in accumulated other comprehensive income through April 30, 2006. The discontinuation of
hedge accounting will have no impact on our reported cash flows, although future results of operations will be
affected by the potential volatility mark-to-market gains and losses which fluctuate with changes in NGL, oil and
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gas prices. See the discussion and tables in Note 10 in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for a
description of our derivative program. The following tables list our open mark-to-market derivative agreements
and their fair values as of December 31, 2006:

Oil and Gas Segment Derivatives .

Average Weighted Average Price Estimated
Volume Per  Additional Fair Yalue (in
Day Put Option "Floor Ceiling thousands)
(in Mmbtus) (per Mmbtu)
Natural Gas Costless Collars )
First Quarter 2007 ............. [P 30,000 $ 850 $1635 § 6,208
Second Quarter 2007 . ... ... .., e 15,000 $ 733  $1293 1,576
Third Quarter 2007 ... .......... .. . ... ..., 15,000 $ 733 $12.93 1,547
Fourth Quarter 2007 ........................ 11,685 $ 8.28 $15.78 1,525
First Quarter 2008 .. ... ... ... ... ... ... .. ... 10,000 $ 9.00 $17.95 1,312
(in Mmbtus) ) (per Mmbtu)
Natural Gas Three-way Collars
First Quarter 2007 . ......oooieeneieiin.. 13,000 $5.00 $7.62  $10.15 1,712
Second Quarter 2007 . ........ .. ... o .. 33,000 $5.00 $ 7.55 $ 9.05 2,537
Third Quarter 2007 ......................... 33,000 $5.00 $ 7.55 $ 9.05 1,667
Fourth Quarter 2007 ...............oviiivnnn 19,379 $5.17. $ 774 $10.43 614
First Quarter 2008 .. ... ... ... ... ... ... 12,500 $5.40 $ 800  $12.15 125
Second Quarter 2008 . . ... ...l 2,500 $5.00 $ 8.00 $10.75 201
Third Quarter 2008 ......................... 2,500 $5.00  $ 800 $10.75 173
Fourth Quarter2008 ........................ 2,500 $5.00 $ 8.00 $10.75 79
. {in Mmbtus) (per Mmbtu)
Natural Gas Swaps .
First Quarter 2007 ...................... . 5,000 $ 7.12 o 407
' {in barrels) {per barrel)
Crude Oil Costless Collars
First Quarter 2007 .. ... ... ... ... .. ... 200 $60.00 $7220 20 .
Second Quarter 2007 .. ... ... 200 $60.00 37220 8
Third Quarter 2007 ............... PR 200 , $60.00  $72.20 (N
Fourth Quarter 2007 ............... EU e 200 %6000 7220 ' (20)
Oil and gas segment commodity derivatives—net asset ... ... .. 319,684
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PVR Natural Gas Midstream Segment Derivatives

Average Weighted Estimated
Volume Average Fair Value
Per Day Price (in thousands)

(in gallons) (per gallon)
Ethane Swaps
First Quarter 2007 through Fourth Quarter 2007 ................... 34,440 $0.5050 (1,277)
First Quarter 2008 through Fourth Quarter 2008 .. ................. 34,440 $0.4700 (1,377)

(in gallons) (per gallon)
Propane Swaps

First Quarter 2007 through Fourth Quarter 2007 ................... 26,040 $0.7550 (1,543)

First Quarter 2008 through Fourth Quarter 2008 . .................. 26,040 $0.7175 (1,795)
- (in barrels) (per barrel)

Crude Oil Swaps :

First Quarter 2007 through Fourth Quarter 2007 .. ... ............. 560 $ 50.80 (2,815)

First Quarter 2008 through Fourth Quarter 2008 . .................. 560 $ 49.27 (3,446)

(in MMbtu) (per MMbtu)
Natural Gas Swaps

First Quarter 2007 through Fourth Quarter 2007 ................... 4,000 3 697 (i
First Quarter 2008 through Fourth Quarter 2008 .. ................. 4,000 5 697 1,479

December 2006 Settlements ........ e e e (1,350}
Natural gas midstream segment commodity derivatives—net liability . . $(12,133)

Taking into account the derivative positions described above, for every $1.00 per MMbtu decrease or
increase in natural gas prices, natural gas midstream gross processing margin and operating income would
increase or decrease by approximately $8.1 million. Taking into account the derivative positions described
above, for every $5.00 per barrel increase or decrease in the oil prices, natural gas midstream gross processing
margin and operating income would increase or decrease by approximately $10.0 million.

Interest Rate Risk /

As of December 31.‘ 2006, we had $221.0 million of outstanding indebtedness under the Revolver, which
carries a variable interest rate throughout its term. We executed interest rate derivative transactions in August
2006 to effectively convert the interest rate on $50 million of the amount outstanding under the Revolver from a
LIBOR-based floating rate to a weighted average fixed rate of 5.34% plus the applicable margin. The interest rate
swaps are accounted for as cash flow hedges in accordance with SFAS Ne. 133. A 1% increase in short-term
interest rates on the floating rate debt outstanding under the Revolver (net of amounts fixed through hedging
transactions) at December 31, 2006 would cost approximately $1.7 million in additional interest expense.

As of December 31, 2006, PVR had $143.2 million of outstanding indebtedness under the PYR Revolver,
which carries a variable interest rate throughout its term. PVR executed interest rate derivative transactions in
September 2005 to effectively convert the interest rate on $60 million of the amount outstanding under the PVR
Revolver from a LIBOR-based floating rate to a weighted average fixed rate of 4.22% plus the applicable
margin. The interest rate swaps are accounted for as cash flow hedges in accordance with SFAS No. 133. A 1%
increase in short-term interest rates on the floating rate debt outstanding under the PVR Revolver (net of amounts
fixed through hedging transactions) at December, 2006 would cost approximately $0.8 million in additional
interest expense.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Penn Virginia Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Penn Virginia Corporation, a Virginia
corporation, and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the related consolidated statements of
income, shareholders’ equity and comprehensive income, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year
period ended December 31, 2006. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation, We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Penn Virginia Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the
results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31,
2006, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, effective January 1, 2006, Penn Virginia
Corporation changed its method of accounting for share-based payments. As also discussed in Note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements, effective December 31, 2006, the Company changed its method of accounting
for postretirement plans.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the effectiveness of Penn Virginia Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the’
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), and our report dated
February 28, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion on management’s assessment of, and the effective operation
of, internal contrel over financial reporting.

KPMG LLP

Houston, Texas
February 28, 2007




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Share}lolders
Penn Virginia Corporation:

_ We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Annual Report on
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting (Item 9A(b)), that Penn Virginia Corporation, a Virginia corporation,
maintained effective internal contro]l over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on the criteria
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COSO). Penn Virginia Corporation’s management is responsible for maintaining effective
internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management’'s assessment and an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. '

We conducted our ‘audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the andit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our
audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s
assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that. in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally.accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financia! reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that Penn Virginia Corporation maintained effective internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on
criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by COSO. Also, in our opinion, Penn
Virginia Corporation maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by COSO.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the consolidated balance sheets of Penn Virginia Corporation as of December 31, 2006 and 2005,
and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity and comprehensive income, and cash
flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2006, and our report dated February 28,
2007 expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements.

KPMG LLP

Houston, Texas
February 28, 2007
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PENN VIRGINIA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(in thousands, except share data)

Year Ended December 31,

2006 2003 2004
Revenues
Natural Gas . ..o vvut e $212.919 $212427 $138,422
Oiland condensate .. .....coviuiiineraecnnnn U, 21,237 13,792 13,364
Natural gas midStream .. .......... .ot 402,715 348,657 —
Coalroyalties ... ..o e 98,163 82,725 69,643
(@411 SR O AR 18,895 16,263 6,996
TOUA] TEVEILES .+ v oo v e e e e e it st et s am e e arans 753,929 673,804 228,425
Expenses
Cost of midstream gas purchased . .......... ... ... oot 334,594 303,912 —
OPETALING - - .o ot v it ettt a e ettt e e e 47,406 32,685 21,7713
ExXplotalion ... ....ooi i 34,330 40,917 26,058
Taxes other t(han iNCOME . ... oot e e e aaen e v 14,767 16,005 10,480
General and admimstrative . ...ttt e e 49,566 36,606 26,170
Impairment of oil and gas properties ............ . ..o 8,517 4,785 655
Loss on assets held forsale ......... e e : — — 7.541
Depreciation, depletion and amortization ............ .. ... o 94217 76,937 54,952
Total EXPENSES ...t oeeerriii s e 583,397 511,847 147,629
Operating inCome . ... ...t 170,532 162,017 80,796
Other income (expense)
Interestexpense ...............iiin S A (24,832) (15.318) (7.672)
(8711 T SV R . e 3,718 ° 1,332 1,10%
DEMIVALIVES ..ot ee e eeneeeaneinaa e, e 19,497  (14,885) —
Income before minority interest and income taxes ........ ... ...t 168,915 133,146 74,225
MINOTILY IALEIEST . . ..o oo e 43,018 30,389 19,023
INCOME LAX EXPENSE « . vt ivr e ettt e e e iae e naas 49,988 40,669 21,847
NEERTCOMIE .« . .o vt e e ettt e et as 3 75909 §$ 62,088 3 33,355
Net income per share, basic ........ ..o $ 406 $ 335 § 182
Net income per share, diluted .. ......... ... DR $ 402 $ 331 § 18!
Weighted average shares outstanding, basic ............ ... ...... ... 18,681 18,546 18,306
Weighted average shares outstanding, diluted . .............. ... 18,866 18,732 18,467

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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PENN VIRGINIA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands)

Assets -’

Current assets
Cashandcashequivalents . .. ... ... ... ... . . . . . i iiiiiiiiinnn..
Accounts receivable ... L e
Derivative ASSEIS L. e e
O T .. e e

Property and equipment
Oil and gas properties (successful efforts method) . ......... ... ... ... ...
Other property and equipment . .. . ... ... ittt e e

Accumulated depreciation, depletion and amortization ....... N

Net property and equipment ... ........... it
Equity investments . ... ... ... it e
Goodwill ..o e
Intangibles, net ... ... ... e i
Derivative assets ... ... ... . e
OREr ASSEES L ittt it e e e

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity

Current liabilities
Current maturities of long-termdebt ... ...... ... ... ... ool
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ............. ... .. ... oL
Derivative liabilities ... ... ... e
Incometaxespayable ......... ... .. ... . . ... .. i

Total current liabilities ... ... ... . . . ...

Long-term debt of the Company ............... P
Long-term debt of subsidiary ......... e e e s
Minority interests of subsidiaries ....... ... .. ... . . e

Shareholders’ equity
Preferred stock of $100 par value—100,000 shares authorized; none issued . . . ..
Common stock of $0.0! par value—32,000,000 shares authorized; 18,780,632
and 18,624,002 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2006, and
December 31,2005 .. .. .. e
Paid-in capital ...
Retained Bamings ... ... .. .. ... e
Deferred compensation obhgauon .....................................
Accumulated other comprehensive income ........... ... ... ... .. . L
Treasury stock—235,449 and 23,644 shares common stock, at cost, on
December 31, 2006, and December 31,2005 ......... ... ... ... .......
Unearned compensation ... ....... ...ttt

Total shareholders’ equity ......... e e e e L.
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity ............................

See accompanying notes to.consolidated financial statements.
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December 31,

2006 2005
$ 20338 $ 25913
138,880 133,086
18,244 11,551
14,921 7.635
192,383 178,185
1,045,182 717,423
671,169 538,035
1,716,351 1,255,458
(357,968)  (272.239)
1,358,383 983,219
25,355 26,672
7,718 7,718
33,045 38,051
4344 8917
11,921 8,784
$1,633,149  $1,251.546
$ 10832 $ 8108
154,709 114,678
7,149 29,387
— 2,355
172,690 154,528
26,003 24 448
7,065 11,706
178,380 111,186
221,000 79,000
207.214 246,846
438,372 313,524
188 186
100,559 98,541
289,967 222.456
1,314 580
(7,954) (7.816)
(1,649) (832)
— (2,807)
382,425 310,308

$1,633,149 §1,251,546
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PENN VIRGINIA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
Cash flows from operating activities
Netincome ... ... ... . . . e $ 75909 $ 62,088 $ 33,355
Ad_]ustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating
activities:
"Depreciation, depletion and amor’uzatlon .................... 94,217 76,937 54,952
Commuodity derivative contracts: '
Total derivative losses {gains) . .......... ... .......... (17,535) ~ 28,803 5,886
Cash settlements of denvatlves e e 8947y (19,586) - (5,886)
Deferred income taxes ...... ........ e 38,020 17,094 19,225
MINOTtY INEIESE . . o\ v ittt et et e e it e ienaens 43,018 30,389 19,023
Impairment of oil and gas properties ... .. e 8,517 4,785 655
Lossonassetsheldforsale .......... ... .. ... ... .. .. — — 7,541
Dry hole and unproved leasehold expense . . ................. 24,502 29,736 16,010
Other . ... e e 4,260 5,989 5,229
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: :
- Accountsteceivable ... .. .. e (1,770 (32.67T1H (12,603}
" . Other CUITEnt ASSELS . ..ot v ii it vttt e e e enn s (2,643) (876) (1,781)
- Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ................ 30,116 43,475 2,996
Other assets and liabilities ........................... (11,845) 5.244 1,763
Net cash provided by operating activities ............... 275,819 231,407 146,365
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from the sale of property and equipment ................ 2,604 17,385 1,559
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired ............................. (195,166) (290,938) (28,442)
Additions to property and equipment . . ... ...... .. ... 00 ... (269,773) (184,386) (125,241)
Other .. e — — 767
Net cash used in investing activities ................... (462,335) (457,939 (151,357)
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividendspaid ........ .. . ... i e (8,398) (8,358) (8,248)
Distributions paid to minority interest holders of PVR ... ... ... o (38,627  (30,737)  (21,892)
Proceeds from issuance of partners’ capital . ..................... 117,818 126,456 —

. Proceeds from borrowings of the Company ...................... 162,000 78,000 33,000
Repayments of borrowings of the Company ..................... (20,000)  (75,000)  (21,000)
Proceeds from borrowings of PVR .............. e 85,800 288,800 28,500
Repayments of borrowmgb of PVR .......... e (122,900 (151,600} (2,500)
Payments for debt issuance COosts . ... B U (668) (2,835 (1,234)
Other ., ....... e e e 5916 2,248 5,829
' Net cash provided by financing activities ............... 180,941 226,974 12,455

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents .., ..., .. ....... (5.575) 442 7,463
Cash and cash equivalents—beginning of period ..................... 25913 25,471 18,008
Cash and cash equivalents—end of period .......................... $ 20338 $ 25913 $ 25471
Supplemental disclosures:
Cash paid during the periods for:
Interest (net of amounts capitalized) ....................... $ 23452 § 12978 $ 5,790
TRCOME LAXES . . ottt ee e e e e ettt eeee e e $ 16741 $ 15455 $ 4,148
Noncash investing activities:
Deferred tax liabilities related to acquisition, net .. .............., $ 32,759 % — % —
Issuance of PVR units for acquisition .......................... $ — % 10415 § 1,060
Assumpnon of liabilities in acquisitions . ....................... h) — § 3981 § —

See accompanying notes to consolidated ﬁnancml statements.
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1. Nature of Operations

Penn Virginia Corporation (“Penn Virginia,” the “Company,” “we,” “us” or “our”} is an independent energy
company that is engaged in three primary business segments. Our on] and gas segment cxplores for, develops,
produces and sells crude oil, condensate and natural gas primarily in the Appalachian, Mississippi,
Mid-Continent and Gulf Coast onshore areas of the United States. Qur coal segment and natural gas midstream
segment operate through Penn Virginia Resource Partners, L.P. (“PVR™). We own 100% of the general partner of
Penn Virginia GP Holdings, L.P. (*PVG") and an approximately 82% limited partner interest in PVG. PVG owns
100% of the general partner of PVR, which holds a 2% percent general partner interest in PVR, and an
approximately 42% limited partner interest in PVR. Because we control PVG, the financial results of PVG are
included in our consolidated financial statements. Because PVG controls the general partner of PVR, the
financial results of PVR are included in PV(’s consolidated financial statements. However, PVR and PVG
function with a capital structure that is independent of each other and us, with each having publicly traded
common units and PVR having its own debt instruments. PVG does not currently have any debt instruments.

In the coal segment, PVR does not operate any mines. Instead, PVR enters into leases with various third-
party operators which give those operators the right to mine coal reserves on PVR’s land in exchange for royalty
payments. PVR also provides fee-based infrastructure facilities to some of its lessees and third parties te generate
coal services revenues. These facilities include coal loading facilities, preparation plants and coal handling
facilities located at end-user industrial planis. PVR also sells timber growing on its land.

PVR purchased its midstream business on March 3, 2005, through the acquisition of Cantera Gas Resources,
LLC (see Note 4). As a result of this acquisition, PVR owns and operates a significant set of midstream assets.
PVR’s midstream business derives revenues primarily from gas processing contracts with natural g.is producers
and from fees charged for gathering natural gas volumes and providing other related services.

2. Penn Virginia Resource Partners, L.P. and Penn Virginia GP Holdings, L.P.

PVR is a Delaware limited partnership formed by us in July 2001 primarily to engage in the business of
managing coal properties in the United States. PVR completed its initial public offering (the “PVR IPO™) in
October 2001. Effective with the closing of the PVR IPO, we, through our wholly owned subsidiaries, received
common and subordinated units of PVR and a 2% general partner interest in PVR. The general partner of PVR is
Penn Virginia Resource, GP, LL.C, who was a wholly owned subsidiary of us at the time of the PVR [PO.

In December 2006, our wholly owned subsidiary, completed its initial public offering (the “PVG IPO™), selling
approximately 18% of its outstanding common units to the public. PVG used the offering proceeds to purchase PVR
common and Class B units. Qur other subsidiaries contributed to PVG their general pariner and limited partner
interests in PVR in exchange for general partner and limited partner interests in PVG. As of December 31, 2006,
PVG owned approximately 44% of PVR, consisting of a 2% general partner interest and an approximately 42%
limited partner interest. As part of its ownership of PVR’s general partner, PVG also owns the rights, referred to as
“incentive disteibution rights,” to receive an increasing percentage of PVR’s quarterly distributions of available cash
from operating surplus after certain levels of cash distributions have been achieved. As of December 31, 2006, we
and our subsidiaries owned approximately 82% of PVG and the non-economic general panner interest in PVQ.
PVG’s partnership agreement does not provide for incentive distribution rights.

The PVR common units have preferences over the PVR subordinated units with respect to cash
distributions; accordingly, we accounted for the sale of PVR IPO units as a sale of a minority interest. At the time
of the PVR IPO, we computed a gain of $25.6 million under SEC Staff Accounting’Builetin Topic 5-H,
Accounting for Sales of Stock by a Subsidiary, which is included in minority interest. In November 2004, 25% of
the subordinated units converted to common units, and another 25% converted in November 2005, as PVR met
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certain .requirements to qualify for early conversion. The remaining 50% converted to common units in
November 2006. In each of the years 2005 and 2004, $6.4 million of the $25.6 million gain were reclassified
from minority interest to paid-in capital upon the conversion of the PVR subordinated units, for a cumulative
reclassification of $12.8 million as of December 31, 2005. Because the issuance of Class B units was
contemplated at the time the finat PVR subordinated units converted to PVR common units in November 2006,
we did not recognize the remaining $12.8 million gain at that time. Rather, the remaining $12.8 million of gain
will be recognized in partners’ capital when PVR has no form of subordinated securities outstanding, including
the Class B units issued to PVG in December 2006.

In March 2005, PVR issued 2.5 million common units in a public offering, which constitutes-a sale of a
minorily interest from our perspective. PVR also issued common units in connection with an acquisition in 2005
{see Note 4). We will recognize an additional gain resulting from the March 2005 public offering and issuance of
-units in the acquisition when PVR has no form of subordinated securities outstanding, including the Class B units
issued to PVG in December 2006. At that time, the gain will be reclassified from minority interest to paid-in capital.

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Penn Virginia and all its wholly-owned
subsidiaries, PVG and PVR. We own and operate our undivided oil and gas reserves through our wholly-owned
subsidiaries. We account for our undivided interest in oil and gas properties on a proportionate consolidation basis,
whereby our share of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses is included in the appropriate classification in the
financial statements. Intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. In the opinion
of management, all. adjustments have been. reflected that are necessary for a fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements. Certain amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year’s presentation.

Prior to December 5, 2006, our ownership of PVR included our ownershlp of limited partner interests in

PVR and our ownership of Penn Virginia Resource GP, LL.C, which is PVR’s general partner and owns the

incentive distribution rights in PVR. Our sole ownership of Penn Virginia Resource GP, LLC provided us with a

‘ 2% general partner interest in PVR. Our general partner interest gave us control of PVR as the holders limited

partner interests of PVR: (i) do not have the substantive abllny to dissolve PVR, (ii) can remove Penn Virginia

Resource GP, LLC as PVR's. general partner only with a supermajority vote of the PVR limited partner interests

and the PVR limited partner interests which can be voted i in such an election are restricted, and (iii) the PVR

timited partners do not possess substantive participating rights in PVR's operations. Therefore, our consolidated

financial statements prior to December 5, 2006 include the assets, liabilities and cash flows of Penn Virginia
Resource GP, LLC and PVR.

Afier PVG sold 18% of its outstanding common units to the public on December 4, 2006, our ownership of
PVR and PVG decreased. Our ownership of PVG includes our ownership of limited partner interests in PYG and
our ownership of PVG GP, LLC, which is PVG’s general partner. Our sole ownership of PVG GP, LLC provides us
with a non-economic general partner interest in PYG. Our general partner interest gives us control of PVG as the
holders of limited partner interests in PVG: (i) do not have the substantive ability to dissolve PV, (ii) can remove
PVG GP, LLC as PVG’s general partner only with a supermajority vote of the PV limited partner interest and the
PVG limited partner interest which can be voted in such an election are restrictéd, and (iii) the PV limited partners
do not possess substantive participating rights in PVG’s operations. Therefore, our consolidated financial statements
after December 4, 2006 include the assets, liabilities and cash flows of PVG and PVR.

PVG’s only cash-generating assets are its ownership interest in Penn Virginia Resource GP, LLC, which
owns the general partner interest and incentive distribution rights in PVR, and its ownership of limited partner
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interests in PVR. Therefore, PVG’s cash flows are dependent upon PVR’s ability to make cash distributions, and
the distributions PVG receives are subject to PVR’s cash distribution policies.

The minority interests of subsidiaries on our balance sheet reflects the outside ownership interest of PVG
and PVR as of December 31, 2006 and the outside ownership interest of PVR as of December 31, 2005 when
taking into consideration the allocations made related to Penn Virginia Resource GP, LLC’s incentive
distribution rights. PVG’s outside ownership interest was 18% at December 31, 2006. PVR’s outside ownership
interest was 56% at December 31, 2006 and 61% at December 31, 2005,

Use of Estimates

Preparation of the accompanying consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

We consider all highly liquid investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be
cash equivalents. '

Oil and Gas Properties

We use the successful efforts method to account for our oil and gas properties. Under this method, costs of
acquiring properties, costs of drilling successful exploration wells and developmem costs are capitalized.
Geological and geophysical costs, delay rentals and costs to drill exploratory wells that do not find proved
reserves are expensed as oil and gas exploration. We will carry the costs of an exploratory well as an asset if the
well found a sufficient quantity of reserves to justify its capitalization as a producing well and as long as we are
making sufficient progress assessing the reserves and thé economic and operating viability of the project. For
certain projects, it may take us more than one year to evaluate the future potential of the exploratory well and
make a determination of its economic viability. Qur ability to move forward on a project may be dependent on
gaining access to transportation or processing facilities or obtaining permits and government or partner approval,
the timing of which is beyond our controt. In such cases, exploratory well costs remain suspended as long as we
are actively pursuing access to necessary facilities and access to such permits and approvals and believe they will
be obtained. We assess the status of suspended exploratory well costs on a quarterly basis. As of December 31,
2006, we had capitalized $1.1 miltion of exploratory drilling costs related to one exploratory well which reached
total depth in 2006 but was under evaluation for commercial viability.

The following table describes the changes in capitalized exploratory drilling costs that are pending the
determination of proved reserves (in thousands, except wells):

2006 2005 - 2004
B #Wells Cost #Wells Cost #Wells Cost _

Balance at beginning of period .. ........... ... .. 3+ $1,670 3 %3079 © 10 $3,785
Additions pending determination of proved : o

reserves . ..... e e e -1 1,119 3 1,670 3 3,079
Reclassifications to wells, equipment and facilities . . '

based on the determination of proved reserves ... — - = — —_ —
Chargedtoexpense . . .................cuun. _E) (1,670) ﬁ) (3,079) _19) (3,785)
Balance at end of period ... ...\ v oeei.a. . C17sL19 3 51670 3 $3079
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We had no capitalized exploratory drilling costs that had been under evaluatlon for a period greater than one
year as of December 31, 2006, 2005 or 2004, +

The costs of unproved leaseholds, including associated interest costs for the period activities were in
progress to bring projects to their intended use, are capitalized pending the results of exploration efforts. Interest
COsts assomated with non-producing leases were capltahzed n lhe amounts of $2.8 million, $3.5 million and $2.0
million in 2006, 2005 _and 2004, We regularly assess on a property-by-property basis the impairment of
mdmdual unproved propemes whose HCQUISlllOH costs are relatively significant. Unproved properties whose
acqmsmon costs are not relatively significant are amortized in the aggregate over the lesser of five years or the
average remaining lease term. As ‘exploration work progresses and’ the reserves on significant properties’ are
proven, capitalized costs of these properties will be subject to deprecmuon and depletion, If the exploratlon work
is unsuccessful, the capitalized costs of the properties related to the unsuccessful work will be expensed. The-
timing of any writedowns of these unproven properties, if warranted, depends upon the nature, timing and extent
of future exploration and development activities and their results. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, unproved
leasehold costs amounted to $100.0 million.and $66.7 million.

Other Propem' and Eqmpment

Other property and equ:pmem pnmanly cons:st of PVR’s ownership in coal fee mineral interests, PVR’s
royalty interest in oil and natural gas wells, processing facilities, gathering systems, compressor stations and
related equipment. -Property and equipment.are carried at cost and include expenditures for additions and
improvements, such as roads and land improvements, which increase the productive lives of existing assets,
Maintenance and repair costs are expensed as incurred. Renewals and betterments, which extend the useful life of
the properties, are capitalized. We compute depreciation and amortization of property and equipment using the
straight-line or declining balance method over the estimated useful life of each asset as follows:

e . ' Useful Life
‘Gathering systems ............... S P .15 years
Compressor stations ............ e e P 5-15 years
Processingplants . ... ... ... .. L 15 years

Other property and equipment ............ ... .. it 3-20 years

We deplete coal properties on an area—by' area basis at & rate based upon the-cost of the mineral properties
and estimated proven and probable tonnage therein. From time 1o time, PVR carries out core-hole drilling
activities on coal properties in order to ascertain the qualny and quantity of the coal contained in those properties.
These core-drilling activities are expensed as ‘incurred. When we retire or sell an asset, we.remove its cost and
related accumulated depreciation and amortization from the balance sheet. We record the difference between the
net book value (net of any related asset retirement obligation) and proceeds from disposition as gain or loss.

Asset Retirement Obligations

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS™) No. 143, Accounting for Asset
Retirement Obligations, we recognize the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement obligation (an “ARQ") in
the period in which it is incurred. The determination of fair value is based upon regional market and specific well
type information. The associated asset retirement costs are capitalized as part of the carrying cost of the asset,
See Note 12, “Asset Retirement Obligations.” The amount of an ARO and the costs capitalized equal the
estimated future cost to satisfy the abandonment obligation using current prices that are escalated by an assumed
inflation factor after discounting the future cost back to the date that the abandonment obligation was incurred
using an assumed cost of funds for us. After recording these amounts, the ARO is accreted to its future estimated
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value using the same assumed cost of funds, and the additional capitalized costs is depreciated over the
productive life of the assets. Both the accretion and the depreciation are included in depreciation, depletion and
amortization expense on our consolidated statements of income.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

We review long-lived assets to be held and used whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying
value of those assets may not be recoverable. We recognize an impairment loss when the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds the sum of the undiscounted estimated future cash flows. In this circumstance, we recognize an
impairment loss equal to the difference between the carrying value and the fair value of the asset. Fair value is
estimated 10 be the present value of future net cash flows from proved reserves, discounted utilizing a rate
commensurate with the risk and remaining lives for the respective oil and gas properties or other assets. See Note 8.

Equity investments

We use the equity method of accounting to account for PVR’s investment in a coal handling joint venture,
recording PVR’s initial investment at cost. Subsequently, the carrying amount of the investment is increased to
reflect PVR's share of income of the investee and is reduced to reflect PVR’s share of losses of the investee or
distributions received from the investee as the joint venture reports them. PVR’s share of earnings or losses trom
the investment is included in other revenues on the consolidated statements of income. Other revenues also
include amortization of the amount of PVR’s equity investment that exceeds its portion of the underlying equity
in net assets. PVR records amortization over the life of coal services contracts in place at the time of PVR’s
initial investment. ' ‘ ) ‘

Goodwill

We had approximately $7.7 million of goodwill at December 31, 2006 and 2005. The goodwill has been
allocated to the natural gas midsiream segment. In accordance with SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets, goodwill is assessed at least annually for impairment. We tested goodwill for impairment
during the fourth quarter of 2006 and determined that no impairment charge was necessary.

Intangibles

Intangible assets at December 31, 2006 and 2005 included $37.7 million for customer contracts and
relationships acquired in the Cantera Acquisition (see Note 4) and the Alloy Acquisition (see Note 5) and $4.6
million for rights-of-way acquired in the Cantera Acquisition (see Note 4). Customer contracts and relationships
are amortized on a straight-line basis over the expected useful lives of the individual contracts and relationships,
up to 15 years. Rights-of-way are amortized on a straight-line basis over a period of 15 years. Total amortization
expense for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 was approximately $5.0 million and $4.2 million.
There were no intangible assets or relaied amortization in 2004. As of December 31, 2006, accumulated
amortization of intangible assets was $9.2 million. The following table summarizes our estimated aggregate
amortization expense for the next five years (in thousands}).

2007 e e e $ 4,106
.01 - S O 3,485
2000 e e e e e s 3,219
2100 . e e e e 3,006
2 15 15 U P 2,764
TRETEATIEL .« . ottt et e e e e e e e e e e e et 16,465
1o T2 $33,045
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Concentration of Credit Risk

Approximately 529 of our consolidated accounts receivable at December 31, 2006 resuited from oil and ga§
sales and joint interest billings to third party companies in the oil and gas industry. Approximately 39% of our
consolidated accounts receivable resulted from natural gas midstream customers, and the remaining 9% resulted
from accrued revenues from PVR’s coal lessee production. These concentrations may impact our overall credit
risk, either positively or negatively, in that these entities may be similarly affected by changes in economic or
other conditions. In determining whether or not to require collateral from a customer, joint interest owner or
lessee, we analyze the entity's net worth, cash flows, earnings and credit ratings to the extent information is
available. Receivables are generally not collateralized. Historical credit losses incurred on receivables have not
been significant. :

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Our financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable,
derivative instruments and long-term debt. The carrying values of all of these financial instruments, except for
PVR’s fixed rate long-term debt, approximate fair value. The fair value of PVR’s fixed rate long-term debt at
December 31, 2006 and 2005, was $75.4 million and $81.2 million.

Revenues

Oil and Gas Revenues. Revenues associated with sales of natural gas, crude oil, condensate and natural gas
liquids are recorded when title passes to the customer. Natural gas sales revenues from properties in which we
have an interest with other producers are recognized on the basis of our net working interest (“entitlement”
method of accounting). Natural gas imbalances occur when we sell more or less-than our entitled . ownership
percentage of total natural gas production. Any amount received in excess of our share is treated as deferred
revenues. If we take less than we are entitled to take, the under-delivery is recorded as a receivable. As a result of
the numerous requirements necessary to gather information from purchasers or various measurement locations,
calculate volumes produced, perform field and wellhead altocations and distribute and disburse funds to various
working interest partners and royalty owners, the cotlection of revenues from oil and gas production may take up
to 60 days following the month of production. Therefore, accruals for revenues and accounts receivable are made
based on estimates of our share of production, particularly from properties that are operated by our partners.
Since the settlement process may take 30 to 60 days following the month of actual production, our financial
results include estimates of production and revenues for the related time period. Any differences, which we do
not expect to be significant, between the actual amounts ultimately received and the original estimates are
recorded in the period they become finalized.

Natural Gas Midstream Revenues. Revenues from the sale of natural gas liquids (“NGLs”) and residue gas
are recognized when PVR sells the NGLs and restdue gas produced at its gas processing plants. We recognize
gathering and transportation revenues based upon actual volumes delivered. Due to the time needed to gather
information from various purchasers and measurement locations and then calculate volumes delivered, the
collection of natural gas midstream revenues may take up to 30 days following the month of production,
Therefore, we make accruals for revenues and accounts receivable and the related cost of gas purchased and
accounts payable based on estimates of natural gas purchased and NGLs and residue gas sold, and our financial
results. include estimates of production and revenues for the period of actual production. We record any
differences, which have not historically been significant, between the actual amounts ultimately received or paid
and the original estimates in the period they become finalized.

Coal Royalties. Coal royalty revenues are recognized on the basis of tons of coal sold by PVR's lessees and
the corresponding revenues from those sales. Most of PVR’s coal leases are based on minimum monthly or
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annual rental payments, a minimum dollar royalty per ton and/or a percentage of the gross sales price. The
remainder of PVR’s coal royalty revenues was derived from fixed royalty rate leases, which escatate annually,
with pre-established minimum monthly payments. Coal royalty revenues are accrued on a monthly basis, based
on PVR’s best estimates of coal mined on its properties.

Coal Services. Coal services revenues are recognized when lessees use PVR’s facilities for the processing,
loading and/or transportation of coal. Coal services revenues consist of fees collected from PVR’s lessees for the
use of PVR’s loadout facility, coal preparation plants and dock loadmg facility. Coal services revenues are
included in other revenues on the consolidated statements of i mcome

Equity Earnings. PVR recognizes its share of income or losses from its investment in a coal hahdling joint
venture as the joint venture reports them to PVR. Equity earnings are included in other revenues,

. Minimum Rentals. Most of PVR’s lessees must make minimum monthly or annual payments that are
generally recoupable over certain time periods. These minimum payments are recorded as deferred income. If the
lessee recoups a minimum payment through production, the deferred income attributable to the minimum
payment is recognized as coal royalty revenues. If a lessee fails to meet its minimum production for certain
pre-determined time periods, the deferred income attributable to the minimum payment is recognized as
minimum rental revenues and is included in other revenues.

Hedging Activities

‘

From time to time, we enter into derivative financial instruments to mitigate our exposure to- natural gas,
crude oil and NGL price volatility. The derivative financial instruments, which are placed with major financial
institutions that we believe are minimum credit risks, take the form of costless collars, three-way collars and
swaps. All derivative financial instruments are recognized in the financial statements at fair value in accordance
with SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities. The fair values of our
derivative instruments are determined based on third'party forward price quotes. All derivative transactions are
subject to our risk management poticy, which has been reviewed and approved by our Board of Directors.

We and PVR have historically entered into derivative financial instrurnents that would qualify for hedge
accounting under SFAS No. 133. Hedge accounting affects ‘the timing of revenue recognition and ‘cost of
midstream gas purchased in our consolidated statements of income, as a majority of the gain or loss from a
contract qualifying as a cash flow hedge is deferred until the related hedged transaction occurs. Because during
the first quarter of 2006 a large portion of our natural gas derivatives and NGL derivatives no longer qualified for
hedge accounting and to increase clarity in our consolidated financial statements, we elected to discontinue hedge
accounting prospectively for our remaining commodity derivatives beginning May 1, 2006. Consequently, from
that date forward, we began recognizing mark-to-market gains and losses in’earnings currently, rather than
deferring such amounts in accumulated other comprehensive income (shareholders’ equity). Becaus¢' we no
longer use hedge accounting for our commodity derivatives, we could experience significant changes in the
estimate of derivative gain or loss recognized in revenues and cost of midstream gas purchased due to swings in
the value of these contracts. These fluctuations could be significant in a volatile pricing environment.

The net mark-to-market loss on our outstanding derivatives at April 30, 2006, which was included in
accumulated other comprehensive income, will be reported in future earnings through 2008 as’ the original
hedged transactions settle. This change in reporting will have no impact on our reported cash flows, although
future results of operations will be affected by the volatitity of mark-to-market gains and losses which fluctuate.
with changes in NGL, oil and gas prices.
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" Income Tax

We account for income taxes in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 109, Accountmg for Income
Taxes, which requires a company to recognize deferred tax liabilities and assets for the expected future tax
consequences of events that have been recognized in a company’s financial statements or tax returns. Using this
method, deferred tax labilities and assets are determined based on the difference between the financial statement
carrying amounts and tax bases of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates.

Stock:Based Compensation

We have several stock compensation plans that allow incentive and nonqualified stock optlons and restricted
stock to be.granted to key employees and officers and nongualified stock options and deferred common stock
units to be granted to directors (see Note 18). Prior to January 1, 2006, we accounted for those plans under the
recognition and measurement provisions of Accounting Principlies Board Oplmon No. 25, Accounting for Stock
Issued to Emplovees, and related Interpretations, as permitted by SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation. Stock-based compensation cost included in our statements of income prior to 2006 included only
costs related to restricted stock and deferred common stock units. Prior to 2006, we did not recognize expense for
options as permitted by SFAS No. 123 because all options granted had an exercise price equal to the market
value of the Linderlying common stock on the date of grant. Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted the fair value
recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123(R) using the modified prospective transition method. Under that
transition method, compensation cost recognized in 2006 includes: (a) compensation cost for all share-based
payments granted prior to, but not yet vested as of, January 1, 2006 based on the grant-date fair value estimated
in accordance with the original provisions of SFAS No. 123 and (b) compensation cost for all share-based

payments granted on or after January 1, 2006 based on the grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with the

provisions of SFAS No. 123(R), Share-Based Payment. Results for prior periods have not been restated.

The general partner of PVG has a long-term incentive plan that permits the grant of awards to employees
and directors of PV(G’s general partner and employees of its general partner’s affiliates whe perform services for
PVG. Awards under this long-term incentive plan can be in the form of PVG common units, restricted PVG
units, PVG unit options, phantom PVG units and deferred PVG common units. The PVG long-term incentive
plan is administered by the compensation and benefits committee of the board of directors of PVG's general
partner. PVG recognizes compensation cost based on the fair value of the awards in accordance with SFAS
No. 123(R). ... .-

+ The general partner of PVR has a long-term incentive plan that permits the gr;int of awards to employees
and directors of PVR’s general partner and employees of its affiliates who perform services for PVR. Awards
under this long-term incentive plan can be in the form of PVR common units, restricted PVR units, PVR unit
options, phantom PVR units. and deferred PVR common units. The PVR long-term incentive plan is administered
by the compensation and benefits committee of the board of directors of PVR’s general partner: PVR recognizes
compensation cost based on the fair value of the awards and accordance with SFAS No. 123(R).

New Accounting Standards

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (the “FASB™) tssued the final revised version
of SFAS No. 123(R), which requires companies to recognize in the income statement the grant-date fair value of
stock options and other equity-based compensation issued to employees. In March 2005, the SEC issued Staff
Accounting Bulletin ("SAB") No. 107, Share-Based Payment, regarding the interaction between SFAS
No. 123(R) and certain SEC rules and regulations. Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted SFAS No. 123(R).
Beginning January 1, 2006, we recognize compensation expense related to share-based payments on a straight-
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line basis over the requisite service period for share-based payment awards granted after the effective date of
SFAS No. 123(R). For unvested stock options granted prior to the effective date of SFAS No. 123(R), we
recognize compensation expense in the same manner as was used for pro forma disclosures prior to the effective
date of SFAS No. 123(R). See Note 18 for more information regarding the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R).

In July 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an
interpretation of FASB Statemenr No. 109 (FIN '48). FIN 48 creates a single model to address uncertainty in
income tax positions. FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for income taxes by prescribing the minimum recognition
threshold a tax position is required to meet before being recognized in the financial statements. 1t also provides
guidance on derecognition, measurement, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods,
disclosure and transition and clearly scopes income taxes out of SFAS No. 5, Accounting for Contingencies.
FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. We have not yet determined the impact
on our consolidated financial statements of adopting FIN 48 effective January 1, 2007, ’

In September 2006, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (“FSP”) AUG AIR-1, Accounting for Planned
Major Maintenance Activities. FSP AUG AIR-1 prohibits companies from accruing as a liability the future costs
of periodic major overhauls and maintenance of plant and equipment. FSP AUG AIR-1 is effective for fiscal
years beginning after December 13, 2006. We expect that the prov1snons of FSP AUG AIR 1 will not have a
material impact on our consolldated financial statements

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements, a standard that provides
enhanced guidance for using fair value to measure assets and liabilities. SFAS No. 157 also responds to
investors’ requests for expanded information about the extent to which companies measure assets and liabilities
at fair value, the information used to measure fair value, and the effect of fair value measurements on earnings.
SFAS No. 157 applies whenever other standards require (or permit) assets or liabilities to be measured at fair
value. SFAS No. 157 does not expand the use of fair value in any new circumstances. SFAS No. 157 establishes
a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the information used to develop fair value assumptions. SFAS No. 157 is
effective for fiscal years and interim pertods beginning after November 15, 2007. We have not yet determmed
the impact on our financial statements of adopting SFAS No. 157 cffecnve January 1, 2008.

s

In September 2006, the SEC issued SAB No. 108, Considering the Effects of Pn'or Year Misstatemenis
when Quantifving Misstatements in Current Year Financial Staterments. SAB No. 108 expresses the SEC staff’s
views regarding the process of quantifying financial statement misstatements. The SEC staff believes registrants
should quantify errors using both a balance sheet and an income statement approach and evaluate whether either
approach results in qguantifying a misstatement that, when all relevant quantitative and qualitative factors are
considered, is material. The SEC stafi will not object if a registrant records a one-time cumulative effect
adjustment to correct errors existing in prior years that previously had been considered immaterial, quantitatively
and qualitatively, based on appropriate use of the registrant’s approach, SAB No. 108 describes the
circumstances where this would be appropriate as well as required disclosures to investors. SAB No. 108 is
effective for fiscal years ending on or after November 15, 2006. We adopted SAB No. 108 as of December 31,
2006. Adoption of SAB No. 108 had no effect on our financial position or results of operations,

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, Employers' Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension
and Other Postretirement Plans, an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R). SFAS No, 158
requires plan sponsors of defined benefit pension -and other postretirement benefit plans (collectively,
“postretirement benefit plans”) to recognize the overfunded or underfunded status of their postretirement benefit
plans in the statement of financial position, measure the fair value of plan assets and benefit obligations as of the
end of the plan sponsor’s fiscal year, recognize in comprehensive income changes in the funded status of
postretirement benefit plans in the year in which the changes occur and provide additional disclosures. On
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December 31, 2006, we adopted the recognition and disclosure provisions of SFAS No. 158. The effect of
adopting SFAS No. 158 on our financial position at December 31, 2006 has been included in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements. SFAS No. 158 did not have an effect on our consolidated financial position at
December 31, 2005 or 2004. SFAS No. 158’s provisions regarding the change in the measurement date of
postretirement benefit plans are not applicable as we already use a measurement date of December 31 for our
postretirement benefit plans. See Note 16 for further discussion of the effect of adopting SFAS No. 158 on our
consolidated financial statements.

4. Acquisition of Natural Gas Midstream Business

On March 3. 2005, PVR completed its acquisition (the “Cantera Acquisition™) of Cantera Gas Resources,
LLC (“Cantera™), a midstream gas gathering and processing company with primary locations in Oklahoma and
Texas. The midstream business operates as PVR Midstream LLC, a subsidiary of Penn Virginia Operating Co.,
LLC, which is a wholly owned subsidiary of PVYR. As a result of the Cantera Acquisition, PVR owns and
operates a significant set of midstream assets including gas gathering pipelines and three natural gas processing
facilities, PVR’s midstream business derives revenues primarily from gas processing contracts with natural gas
producers and from fees charged for gathering natural gas volumes and providing other related services. The -
results of operations of PVR Midstream LLC since March 3, 2005, the closing date of the Cantera Acquisition,
are included in the accompanying consolidated statements of income. .

Cash paid in connection with the Cantera Acquisition was $199.2 million, net of cash received and -
including capitalized acquisition costs, which PVR funded with a $110 million term loan and with borrowings
under PVR’s revolving credit facility. PVR used proceeds of $126.4 million from PVR’s sale of common units in
a subsequent public offering in March 2005 and a $2.6 million contribution from its general partner to repay the
term loan in full and to reduce outstanding indebtedness under its revolving credit facility. The total purchase
price was allocated to the assets purchased and the liabilities assumed in the Cantera Acquisition based upon the
fair values on the date of acquisition as follows (in thousands):

Cash consideration paid for Cantera .............. ... ... i $201,326
Plus: AcqQuisition COSIS .. ... i e e 3,275
Total purchase PriCe . .. ..ottt e i 204,601,
Less: Cashacquired . ... ... i i e (5,378)
Total purchase price, net of cashacquired .. ...........o oo $199,223
Current assets ACQUITEA . o o e $ 43,697
Property and equipment acquired .. ... ... i o 145,448
Otherassets acquired .. ... .. .. ... 645
Liabilities assumed . .. ... i e e (38,337)
Intangible aSSEtS .. ... 40,052
GoodWill ... e 7,718
Total purchase price, net of cash acquired . ......... e $199,223

The purchase price allocation includes approximately $7.7 million of goodwill. The significant factors that
contributed to the recognition of goodwill include PVR’s entry into the natural gas midstream business and its
ability to acquire an established business with an assembled workforce.

Under SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations, and SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,
goodwill recorded in connection with a business combination is not amortized, but rather is tested for impairment
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at least annually. Accordingly, the unaudited pro forma financial information presented below does not include
amortization of the goodwill recorded in the Cantera Acquisition. The purchase price allocation also includes
$40.1 million of intangible assets that are primarily associated with assumed customer contracts, customer
relationships and rights of way. These intangible assets are being amortized over periods of up to 15 years, the
period in which benefits are derived from the contracts, relationships and rights-of-way assumed, and are
reviewed for impairment under SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.

The following unaudited pro forma financial information reflects our consolidated results of operations as if
the Cantera Acquisition and related debt and equity financings had occurred on January 1 of the reported period.
The pro forma information includes adjustments primarily for depreciation of acquired property and equipment,
amortization of intangibles and interest expense for acquisition debt. The pro forma financial information is not
necessarily indicative of the results of operations as it would have been had these transactions been effected on
the assumed date (in thousands, except share data).

Year Ended December 31,

2005 2004
REVENUES o ittt et e e e e $692228  $299.950
|5 A0 T 1 =2 $ 62,179 % 36,177
Netincome per share, basic............ ... i, $ 335 % 198
Netincome per share, diluted .. ...... .. .. .. ... .. ... ... ... . ..., $ 332 % 196

5. Other Acquisitions

In the following paragraphs, all references to coal, oil and natural gas reserves and acreage acquired are
unaudited,

Qil and Gas Segment

In June 2006, we acquired 100% of the capital stock of Crow Creek Holding Corporation (“Crow Creek”) in
a cash transaction for approximately $71.5 million (the “Crow Creek Acquisition”). The preliminary purchase
price allocation is subject to certain adjustments that primarily relate to the determination of tax basis and the
allocation between proved and unproved property. Crow Creek was a privately owned independent exploration
and production company with operations primarily in the Oklahoma portions of the Arkoma and Anadarko
Basins. The Crow Creek assets primarily included approximately 42.7 Bcfe of net proved reserves,
approximately 85% of which were natural gas. The Crow Creek Acquisition was funded with long-term debt
under our revolving credit facility.

In June 2005, we acquired approximately 60,000 acres of prospective CBM leasehold rights in Wyoming
County, West Virginia from Panther Energy Company, LLC for $13.3 million in cash (the “Panther
Acquisition”). The leaseheld acreage is within an area of mutual interest between Penn Virginia and CDX Gas,
LLC (“CDX"} and is contiguous to acreage which has been successfully developed. The purchase agreement
included an option for CDX to purchase a 50% interest in the leasehold acreage. In August 2005, CDX exercised
that option and acquired its 50% interest for $6.6 million in cash. We began drilling on the new leasehold
position in the fourth quarter of 2003,

PVR Coal Segment

In December 2006, PVR acquired ownership and rights to approximately 22 million tons of coal reserves.
The reserves are located in Henderson County, Kentucky. The purchase price was $9.3 million and was funded
with cash,
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In May 2006, PVR acquired the lease rights to approximately 69 million tons of coal reserves located on
approximately 20,000 acres in Boone, Logan and Wyoming Counties, West Virginia. The purchase price was
$65.0 million and was funded with long-term debt under PVR’s revolving credit facility.

In July 2005, PVR also acquired fee ownership of approximately 94 million tons of coal reserves in the
western Kentucky portion of the Illinois Basin for $62.4 million in cash (the “Green River Acquisition”) and the
assumption $3.3 million of deferred income. This coal reserve acquisition is PVR’s first in the Illinois Basin and
was funded with long-term debt under PVR’s revolving credit facility. Currently, approximately 41 million tons
of these coal reserves are leased to affiliates of Peabody Energy Corporation (NYSE: BTU).

In July 2005, PVR acquired a combination of fee ownership and lease rights to approximately 16 million
tons of coal reserves for $14.5 million (the “Wayland Acquisition”). The reserves are located in the eastern
Kentucky portion of Central Appalachia. The Wayland Acquisition was funded with $4 million of cash and -
PVR’s issuance to the seller of approximately 209,000 common units.

In April 2005, PVR acquired fee ownership of approximately 16 million tons of coal reserves for $15.0
million in cash (the “Alloy Acquisition™). The reserves, located on approximately 8,300 acres in the Central
Appalachia region of West Virginia, will be produced from deep and surface mines. Production started in late
2005. Revenues were earned initially from transportation-related fees on coal mined from an adjacent property,
followed by Toyally revenues as the mines on PVR’s property commenced production. The seller remained on the
property as the lessee and operator. The Alloy Acquisition was funded ‘with long-term debt under PVR’s
revolving credit facility.

In March 2005, PVR acquired lease rights to approximately 36 million tons of undeveloped coal reserves
and royalty interests in 73 producing oil and natural gas wells for $9.3 million in cash (the “Coal River
Acquisition”). The coal reserves are located in the central Appalachia region of southern West Virginia. The oil
and gas wells are located in eastern Kentucky and southwestern Virginia. The Coal River Acquisition was funded
with long-term debt under PVR’s revolving credit facility. The coal reserves are predominantly low sulfur and
high BTU content, and development will occur in conjunction with PVR’s adjacent reserves and a related loadout
facility that was placed into service in 2004. The oil and gas property contained approximately 2.8 billion Cl.lblC
feet equivalent of net proved oil and gas reserves.

In July 2004, PVR acquired from afﬁliates of Massey Energy Company a 50% interest in a joint venture
formed 1o own and operate end-user coal handling facilities. The purchase price was $28.4 million and was
funded with long-term debt under PVR’s revolving credit facility. The joint venture owns coal handling facilities
which unload coal shipments and store and transfer coal for three industrial coal consumers in the chemical,
paper and lime production industries located in Tennessee, Virginia and Kentucky. A combination of fixed
monthly fees and per ton throughput fees is paid by those consumers under long-term leases expmng between
2007 and 2019.

PVR Midstream Segmem

ln June 2006, PVR completed the acquisition of approximately 115 miles of gathering pipelines and related
compression facilities in Texas and Oklahoma (the “Transwestern Acquisition™). These assets are contiguous to
PVR'’s Beaver/Perryton System. PVR paid $14.7 million in cash for the acquisition. Subsequently, PYR borrowed
$14.7 million under its revolving credit facility to replenish the cash used in the Transwestern Acquisition.

The factors used to determine the fair market value of acquisitions include, but are not limited to, discounted
future net cash flows on a risked-adjusted basis, geographic location, quality of resources, potential marketability
and financial condition of lessees. : -
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6. Sale of Texas Properties

In January 2005, we completed the sale of certain oif and gas properties in Texas for cash proceeds of $9.7
million. These properties were classified as assets held for sale, and we recognized a $7.5 million loss on assets
held for sale in 2004 in order to write down the assets to fair market value less costs 10 sell.

7. Property and Equipment
Property and equipment includes:

December 31,
2006 2005
(in thousands)

Oil and gas properties

Proved ... e, $ 945174 % 650,696
Unproved ..................... e 100,008 66,727
Total oil and gas properties . ........ ... ... ... ... il 1,045,182 717,423
Other property and equipment:
Coal properties ......... ...t 414,935 340439
Midstream property and equipment . ............ ... ... ... ... 189,811 151.154
Other property andequipment . .. .......... ... ... . . 55,132 35,767
Land .o e e 11,291 10,675
Total properiy and equipment . ... ... i e 1,716,351 1,255,458
Accumulated depreciation, depletion and amortization ........ S " (357,968) (272,239)
Net property and equipment ... .. ... ... ... i $1,358,383 § 983,219

8. Impairment of Oil and Gas Properties

In accordance with SFAS No. 144, we review oil and gas properties for impairment when events and
circumstances indicate a decline in the recoverability of the carrying value of such properties, such as a
downward revision of the reserve estimates or lower commodity prices. We estimate the future cash flows
expected in connection with the properties and compare such future cash flows to the carrying amounts of the
properties to determine if the carrying amounts are recoverable. When we find that the carrying amounts of the
properties exceed their estimated undiscounted future cash flows, we adjust the carrying amounts of the
properties to their fair value as determined by discounting their estimated future cash flows. The factors vsed to
determine fair value include, but are not limited to, estimates of proved reserves, future commodity prices, the
timing of future production and capital expenditures and a discount rate commensurate with the risk reflective of
the lives remaining for the respective oil and gas properties.

For the year ended December 31, 2006, we recognized a pretax charge of $8.5 mitlion related to the
impairment of certain properties in Louisiana, Texas and West Virginia. These impairments were a result of
downward reserve revisions on the properties.

For the year ended December 31, 2005, we recognized a pretax charge of $4.8 million related (o the
impairment of certain properties in Texas. This impairment was a result of downward reserve revisions on the
properties.

For the year ended December 31, 2004, we recognized a pretax charge of $0.7 million related to the
impairment of certain West Virginia horizontal coalbed methane ("CBM™) properties. This impairment was
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associated with a CBM well completed in 2004 in northern West Virginia that had insufficient natural gas
reserves to support the historical cost basis of the property. '

9. Equity Investments

As described in Note 5, “Other Acquisitions,” PVR acquired a 50% interest in Coal Handling Solutions,
LLC, a joint venture formed to own and operate end-user coal handling facilities. PVR accounts for the
investment under the equity method of accounting. In 2004, the original cash investment of $28.4 million was
capitalized. At December 31, 2006 and 2005, PVR’s equity investment totaled $25.4 million and $26.7 million,
which exceeded its portion of the underlying equity in net assets by $8.7 million and $10.7 million. The
difference is being amortized to equity earnings over the life of coal services contracts in place at the-time of the
acquisition, In accordance with the equity method, PVR recognized equity earnings of §1.3 million in 2006, $1.1
million in 2005 and $0.4 million in 2004 with a corresponding increase in the investment. The joint venture
generally pays to PVR quarterly distributions of PVR’s portion of the joint venture’s cash flows. PVR received
cash distributions from the joint venture of $2.7 million, $2.3 million and $1.0 million in 2006, 2005 and 2004.
Equity earnings are included in other revenues on the consolidated statements of income.

-

10. Derivative Instruments
Discontinuation of Hedge Accounting

Because during the first quarter of 2006 a large portion of our natural gas derivatives and NGL denivatives
no longer qualified for hedge accounting and to increase clarity in our consolidated financial statements (see
below for further discussions), we elected to discontinue hedge accounting prospectively for our remaining
commodity derivatives beginning May 1, 2006. Consequently, from that date forward, we began recognizing
mark-to-market gains and losses in earnings currently, rather than deferring such amounts in accumulated other
comprehensive income (shareholders’ equity). The net mark-to-market loss on our outstanding derivatives at
April 30, 2006, which was included in accumulated other comprehensive income, will be reported in future
earnings through 2008 as the original hedged transactions settle. This change in reporting will have no impact on
our reported cash flows, although future results of operations will be affected by the volatility of mark-to-market
gains and losses which fluctuate with changes in NGL, oil and gas prices.

The following table summarizes the effects of commodity derivative activities on our consolidated
statements of income:

‘ Year Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
(in thousands)

Income statement caption:

Natural gas reVENUES . ..ot ottt ittt inaea i $ 448 $(14,049) 3$(3,770)
Ol and coONdensate FEVENMUES . .. v vt it e e e e i ee e aeaeeneans 457 857 (2.116)
MidStream TEVENUES . ...ttt i ettt et e et et s (10,331)  (3,871) —_
Costof gaspurchased . ... ... .. i i e 8,378 4,859 —
Derivatives . . ... ovvnree et N 19,497 (14,885)  —
Decrease in income before minority interest and income taxes . .............. $ 17,535 $(28,803) 5(5,886)
Realized and unrealized derivative impact:
Cash paid for derivative settlements ............. ... ... ... ... $ (8,947 $(19,586) $(5,886)
Unrealized derivative gain (loss) .......... .. ..o 26,482 (9,217 —
Decrease in income before minority interest and income taxes .. ............. $ 17,535 $(28,803) $(5,886)
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Qil and Gas Segment Commodity Derivatives

We utilize costless collars, three-way collars and swap derivative contracts to hedge against the variability
in cash flows associated with the forecasted sale of our future oil and gas production. While the use of these
derivative instruments limits the downside risk of adverse price movements, their use also may limit future
revenues from favorable price movements.

With respect to a costless collar contract, the counterparty is required to make a payment to us if the
settlement price for any settlement period is below the floor price for such contract. We are required to make
payment to the counterparty if the settlement price for any settlement period is above the ceiling price for such
contract, Neither party is required to make a payment to the other party if the settlement price for any settlement
period is equal to or greater than the floor price and equal 10 or less than the ceiling price for such contract. A
three-way collar contract consists of a collar contract as described above plus a put option contract sold by us
with a price below the floor price of the collar. This additional put requires us to make.a payment to the
counterparty if the settlement price for any settlement period is below the put option price. By combining the
collar contract with the additional put option, we are entitled to a net payment equal to the difference between the
floor price of the collar contract and the additional put option price if the settiement price is equal to or less than
the additional put option price. If the settlement price is greater than the additional put option price, the result is
the same as it would have been with a collar contract only. This strategy enables us to increase the floor and the
ceiling price of the collar beyond the range of a traditional collar contract while defraying the associated cost
with the sale of the additional put option. With respect to a swap contract, the counterparty is required to make a
payment to us if the settlement price for any settlement period is less than the swap price for such contract, and
we are required to make a payment to the counlerparty if the settlement price for any settlement period is greater
than the swap price for such contract. .
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The fair values of our oil and gas derivative agreements are determined based on third party forward price
quotes for NYMEX Henry Hub gas and West Texas Intermediate crude oil closing prices as of December 31,
2006. The following table sets forth our positions as of December 31, 2006:

Weighted Average Price

Average Estimated
Volume Per Additional Fair Value
Day Put Option  Floor Ceiling (in thousands)
) (in Mmbtus) (per Mmbtu)
Naturz_il Gas Costless Collars . ;
First Quarter 2007 .. ... ... ... ... . ., 30,000 $ 850 $1635 3§ 6,208
Second Quarter 2007 . ... ......... ... ... ... e 15,000 $ 7.33 $12.93 1,576
Third Quarter 2007 ... .. ... . i 15,000 $ 733 $1293 1,547
Fourth Quarter 2007 ............................. 11,685 $ 828 §15.78 1,525
First Quarter 2008 .............. e 10,000 $ 900 $17.95 1,312
(in Mmbtus) {per Mmbtu)
Natural Gas Three-way Collars
First Quarter 2007 . ... .. ... 13,000 $5.00 $ 7.62 $10.15 1,712
Second Quarter 2007 . .. ... ... ... i 33,000 $5.00 $755 $ 905 2,537
Third Quarter 2007 .. ... .. .. .. ... ... . .. . ... 33,000 $5.00 $ 755 $905 1,667
Fourth Quarter 2007 ........ ... ... .. .. covininns. 19,379 $5.47 $ 774 %1043 614
First Quarter 2008 . ..... ... ... ... i 12,500 $5.40 $ 800 $12.15 125
Second Quarter2008 .. ............. ... ...l 2,500 $5.00 $ 800 $i0.75  201.
Third Quarter 2008 . ... . ... .. ... . o 2,500 $5.00 $ 800 $10.75 173
Fourth Quarter 2008 . ...... ... ... ... . ... . ... .... 2,500 $5.00 $ 8.00 %1075 79
(in Mmbtus) {per Mmbtu)
Natural Gas Swaps . .
First Quarter 2007 .......... ... ... ... .. . ... ...... 5,000 $ 7.12 407
(in barrels) {per barrel)
Crude Qil Costless Collars ) _
First Quarter 2007 ........... e 200 $60.00 $72.20 20
Second Quarter 2007 .. ... ... .. i e 200 $60.00 $72.20 8
Third Quarter 2007 ... ... .. ... ... ... ... 200 T $60.00 $72.20 N
Fourth Quarter 2007 ......... .. ... .. .. .. ... ...... 200 $60.00 $72.20 (20)
Oil and gas segment commodity derivatives—net asset . . . 319,684

Based upon our assessment of derivative agreements at December 31, 2006, we reported (i) a net derivative
asset of $19.7 million and (ii) a loss in accumulated other comprehensive income of $0.2 million, net of a related
income tax benefit of $0.1 million.

At the time we entered into our natural gas derivatives, physical sales prices correlated well with NYMEX
natural gas prices; however, beginning in the-second half of 2005, basis differentials for certain derivative
agreements widened as NYMEX natural gas prices reached historically high levels. In the first quarter of 2006,
our correlation assessment indicated that certain NYMEX natural gas derivatives could no longer be considered
“highly effective” hedges under the parameters of the accounting rules. Consequently, we discontinued hedge
accounting effective January 1, 2006 for certain natural gas derivatives that were no longer considered highly
effective. As discussed above, beginning May 1, 2006, we elected to discontinue hedge accounting prospectively
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for our rematning and future commodity derivatives. We will recognize hedging losses of $0.3 million in 2007
. related to settlements of the oil and gas segment’s hedged transactions for which we deferred net losses in
accumulated other comprehensive income through April 30, 2006. i

PVR Natural Gas Midstream Segment Commodity Derivatives

PVR also utilizes swap contracts in its natural gas midstream business. The fair values of PVR’s derivative
agreements are determined based on forward price quotes and regression analysis for the respective commodities
as of December 31, 2006. The following table sets forth PVR’s positions as of December 31, 2006 for
commodities related to natural gas midstream revenues (ethane, propane and crude oil) and cost of midstream gas
purchased (natural gas):

Average Weighted Estimated

Volume Average Fair Value
Per Day Price (in thousands)

(in galtons) (per gallon)
Ethane Swaps , _
First Quarter 2007 through Fourth Quarter 2007 ................... 34,440 $0.5050 {1,277
First Quarter 2008 through Fourth Quarter 2008 ................... 34,440 $0.4700 (1,377)

(in gallons) (per gallon)
Propane Swaps

First Quarter 2007 through Fourth Quarter 2007 ................... 26,040 $0.7550 (1,543)

First Quarter 2008 through Fourth Quarter 2008 ................... 26,040 $0.7175 {1,795
(in barrels) (per barrel)

Crude Oil Swaps

First Quarter 2007 through Fourth Quarter 2007 ................... 560 $ 50.80 (2.815)

First Quarter 2008 through Fourth Quarter 2008 ................... 560 $ 49.27 (3,446}

{in MMbtu) (per MMbtu)
Natural Gas Swaps

First Quarter 2007 through Fourth Quarter 2007 ................... 4,000 $ 697 (1
First Quarter 2008 through Fourth Quarter 2008 ................... 4,000 $ 697 1,479
December 2006 SellleMENtS . ... cvv ittt ee et et v i it rnn (1,350)
Natural gas midsiream segment commodity derivatives—net liability .. $(12,135)

Based upon our assessment of derivative agreements at December 31, 2006, we reported (i) a net derivative
liability related to the natural gas midstream segment of $12.1 million, (ii) a loss in accumulated other
comprehensive income of $6.5 million, net of a related income tax benefit of $3.5 million, and (iii) a net loss on
derivatives for hedge ineffectiveness of $0.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 related to derivatives
in the natural gas midstream segment.

At the time PVR entered into its natural gas derivatives and certain NGL derivatives, physical purchase
prices of natural gas correlated well with NYMEX natural gas prices and physical sales prices of NGLs
correlated well with NGL index prices. However, in the second half of 2005, basis differentials for certain
derivative agreements widened as NYMEX natural gas prices and NGL index prices reached historically high
levels. In the first quarter of 2006, PYR’s correlation assessment indicated that its NYMEX natural gas
derivatives and certain NGL derivatives could no longer be considered “highly effective” hedges under the
parameters of the accounting rules. Consequently, PVR discontinued hedge accounting effective January 1, 2006
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for its natural gas derivatives and certain NGL derivatives that were no longer considered highly effective. As
discussed above, beginning May 1, 2006, PVR elected to discontinue hedge accounting prospectively for its
remaining and future commodity derivatives. PVR will recognize hedging losses of $4.6 million in 2007 and $5.5
million in 2008 related to settlements of the PVR natural gas midstream segment’s hedged transactions for which
PVR deferred net losses in accumulated other comprehensive income through April 30, 2006.

Interest Rate Swaps—PVA

In August 2006, we entered into interest rate swap agreements (the “Revolver Swaps”) to establish fixed
rates on $50 million of the LIBOR-based portion of the outstanding balance on our revolving credit facility until
December 2010. We pay a weighted average fixed rate of 5.34% on the notional amount plus the applicable
margin, and the counterparties pay a variable rate equal to the three-month LIBOR. Settlements on the Revolver
Swaps are recorded as interest expense. The Revolver Swaps were designated as cash flow hedges. Accordingly,
the effective portion of the change in the fair value of the swap transactions is recorded each period in other
comprehensive income. The ineffective portion of the change in fair value, if any, is recorded to current period
earnings as interest expense. We reported (i) a derivative liability of approximately $0.6 million at December 31,
2006 and (ii) a loss in accumulated other comprehensive income of $0.4 million, net of related income tax benefit
of $0.2 million, at December 31, 2006 related to the Revolver Swaps. In connection with periodic settlements, we
recognized less than $0.1 miilion in net hedging gains in interest expense for the year ended December 31. 2006.
Based upon future interest rate curves at December 31, 2006, we expect to realize $0.2 million of hedging losses
within the next 12 months. The amounts that we ultimately realize will vary due to changes in the fair value of
open derivative agreements prior to settlement.

Interest Rate Swaps—PVR

In September 2005, PVR entered into interest rate swap agreements (the “PVR Revolver Swaps”) io
establish fixed rates on $60 million of the portion of the outstanding balance on PVR’s revolving credit facility
that is based on the London Inter Bank Offering Rate (“LIBOR™) until March 2010. PVR pays a weighted
average fixed rate of 4.22% on the notional amount plus the applicable margin, and the counterparties pay a
variable rate equal to the three-month LIBOR. Settlements on the PVR Revolver Swaps are recorded as interest
expense. The PVR Revolver Swaps were designated as cash flow hedges. Accordingly, the effective portion of
the change in the fair value of the swap transactions is recorded each period in other comprehensive income. The
ineffective portion of the change in fair value, if any, is recorded to current period earnings as interest expense.
We reported (i) a derivative asset of approximately $1.4 million at December 31, 2006 and (ii) a gain in
accumulated other comprehensive income of $0.9 million, net of related income tax expense of $0.5 million, at
December 31, 2006 related to the PVR Revolver Swaps. [n connection with periodic settlements, PVR
recognized $0.5 million in net hedging gains in interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2006. Based
upon future interest rate curves at December 31, 2006, PVR expects to realize $0.4 million of hedging gains
within the next 12 months, The amounts that PVR ultimately realizes will vary due to changes in the fair value of
open derivative agreements prior to settlement,
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11. Accrued Liabilities

Accrued liabilities are summarized as follows:

December 31, -

2006 2005
(in thousands)
Drlling costs ... ... . e $ 13279 § 7,720
Royalties .............. A 11,224 7,785
Production and franchise taxes ................. L e 9,960 9,188
Compensation . .............c.ocouun..! I 6,293 5418 .
Deferred iNCOME .. ..ottt e e e e e e e e 6,999 5,073
Pipeline imbalance—PVR Midstream .......... ... ... .. oo iiia... 685 2,504
Interest ............. D e e e e e 2,149 . 1,960
L 1T e 15,650 3,601
Total accrued liabilities .. ............. .. .......... PP tot. 66,239 43,249
Accounts Payable . ... ...t e © 88,470 71,429
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ..................... e 5154709  $114,678
12, Asset Retirement Obligatiohs P

The table below reconciles the beginning and ending aggregate carrying amount of our asset retirement
obligations, which are included in other liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets:

Year ended December 31,

2006 2005
(in thousands)
Balance at beginning of period ......... ... ... o $4,676 $3,635
Liabilities incurred ... ... 0. oouii i 1,737 389
Adoption of FIN47 .. ... .. . . — 635
Liabilities settled .. ... ... . e (16) (280)
" ACCTEUON EXPEISE . ot vttt ettt ie e e L 350 297
Balanceatendofperiod . ........... ... ... oL e $6,747 $4.676

13. Other Liabilities

Other liabilities are summarized in the following table:

. December 31,

2006 2005
. (in thousands)
Deferred income—PVR Coal ......... ... ..., $ 6,592 §$10,194
Asset retirement obligation . ... ... . ... L 6,747 4,676
525 011 1o T 1,966 2,102
Post-retirement healthcare . ........ .. . . . . . . i i i 3,891 2,058
Environmental Habilities . . ..o e e e e 1,459 2,293
0 11 1 T 5,348 3,125

Total other Habilities . . . ...t e e e e e i $26,003  $24,448
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14. Long-Term Debt -
Long-term debt as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, consisted of the following:

December 31,
2006 2005
(in thousands)

L

Penn Virginia revolving credit facility, variable rate of 6.6 percent at

December 31, 2006 ... ..t e $221,000 $ 79,000
PVR revolving credit facility, variable rate of 6.1 percent at December 31, .
2006 . e e 143,200 172,000
PVR senior unsecured notes (1) ...ttt ittt 74,846 82,954
439,046 333,954
Less: Current maturities . ...ttt ittt i i e e s it eaan e rnneran (10,832)  (8,108)
Total long-termdebt . ... .. . $428214  $325.846

(1) Includes negative fair value adjustments of $0.6 million and $0.7 million as of December 31, 2006 and 2005
related to a former swap agreement that was designated as a fair value hedge. The swap agreement was
settled in June 2005,

Penn Virginia Revolving Credit Facility

We have a revolving credit facility with a syndicate of financial institutions led by IP Morgan Chase Bank
N.A. (the “Revolver™) that is secured by a portion of our proved oil and gas reserves and matures in December
2010. Effective November 1, 2006, we amended our credit facility to increase the commitment from $200 million to
$300 million and the borrowing base from $300 million to $400 million. We paid loan issue costs of $0.3 million
related to the amendment, which were capitalized in other assets and will be amortized over the remaining term of
the Revolver. We had $221.0 million outstanding under the Revolver as of December 31, 2006.

The Revolver is governed by a borrowing base calculation and is redetermined semi-annually. We have the
option to elect interest at (i) LIBOR plus a Eurodollar margin ranging from 1.00 to 1.75%, based on the
percentage of the borrowing base owtstanding or {ii) the greater of the prime rate or federal funds rate plus a
margin up to (.50%. The weighted average interest rale on borrowings incurred during the year ended
December 31, 2006 was approximately 6.4%. In 2006 and 2005, we incurred commitment fees of $0.4 million
and $0.3 million on the unused portion of the Revolver. We capitalized $2.8 million, $3.5 million and $2.0
million of interest cost incurred in 2006, 2005 and 2004. The Revolver allows for the issuance of up to $20
million of letters of credit, of which $0.7 million were issued as of December 31, 2006.

The financial covenants under the Revolver require us to maintain levels of debt-to-earnings and impose
dividend limitation restrictions, The Revolver contains various other covenants that limit, among other things,
our ability to incur indebtedness, grant liens, make certain loans, acquisitions and investments, make any material
change to the nature of our business, acquire another company or enter into a merger or sale of assets, including
the sale or transfer of interests in our subsidiaries. As of December 31, 2006, we were in compliance with all of
our covenants under the Revolver.

PVR Revolving Credit Facility

Concurrent with the closing of the Cantera Acquisition in March 2005, Penn Virginia Operating Co., LLLC,
the parent of PVR Midstream LLC and a subsidiary of PVR, entered into a new unsecured $260 million, five-
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year credit agreement with a syndicate of financial institutions led by PNC Bank, National Association (“PNC”).
-The new agreement consisted of a $150 million revolving credit facility (the “PVR Revolver”) that was set to
mature in March 2010 and a $110 million term loan. As of December 31, 2006, PVR had $143.2 million of
outstanding borrowings under the PYR Revolver. During 2003, a portion of the PYR Revolver and the term loan
were used to fund the Cantera Acquisition and to repay borrowings under PYR's previous credit facility.
Proceeds of $126.4 million received from a subsequent public offering of 2.5 million of PVR’s common units in
March 2005 and a $2.6 million contribution from its general partner were used to repay the $110 million term
loan and a portion of the amount outstanding under the PVR Revolver. In the fourth quarter of 2004, PVR paid
loan issue costs of approximately $1.2 million related to the térm loan, which were recorded as interest expense
in 2004. The term loan cannot be re-borrowed. PVR used the proceeds from the sale of common units and Class
B units to PVG in December 2006 to pay down $114.6 million of the PVR Revolver. The PVR Revolver is
available for general partnership purposes, including working capital, capital expenditures and acquisitions. and
includes a $10 million sublimit for the issuance of letters of credit, PVR had outstanding letters of credit of $1.6
million as of December 31, 2006. In 2006 and 2005, PVR incurred commitment fees of $0.4 million each year on
the unused portion of the PVR Revolver.

In July 2005, PVR amended its credit agreement to increase the size of the commitment under the PVR
Revolver from $150 million to $300 million and to increase its one-time option (upon receipt by the credit
facility’s administrative agent of commitments from one or more lenders) to expand the facility from $100
million to $150 million. The amendment also updated certain debt covenant definitions. The interest rate under
the credit agreement remained unchanged and fluctuates based on PVR's ratio of total indebtedness to EBITDA.
In December 2006, PVR further amended the credit agreement to achieve a more favorable interest rate and to
extend the maturity date to December 201 1. Interest is payable at a base rate plus an applicable margin of up to
0.75% if PVR selects the LIBOR-based borrowing option under the credit agreement or at a rate derived from
LIBOR plus an applicable margin ranging from 0.75% to 1.75% if PVR selects the LIBOR-based borrowing
option. The other terms of the credit agreement remained unchanged.

The financial covenants under the PVR Revolver require PVR to maintain specified levels of debt to
consolidated EBITDA and consolidated EBITDA to interest. The financial covenants restricted PVR's additional
borrowing capacity under the PVR Revolver to $257.0 million as of December 31, 2006. At the current $300
million limit on the PVR Revolver, and given the outstanding balance of $143.2 million and $1.6 million in
letters of credit, PVR could borrow up to $155.2 million without exercising its one-time option to expand the
PVR Revolver, In order to utilize the full extent of the $257.0 million borrowing capacity, PYR would need to
exercise its one-time option to expand the PVR Revolver by $150 million. The PVR Revolver prohibits PVR
from making distributions to its partners if any potential default or event of default, as defined in the PVR
Revolver, occurs or would result from the distribution. In addition, the PVR Revolver contains various covenants
that limit, among other things, PVR’s ability to incur indebtedness, grant liens, make certain loans, acquisitions
and investments, make any material change to the nature of its business, acquire another company or enter into a
merger or sale of assets, including the sale or transfer of interests in its subsidiaries. As of December 31, 2006,
PVR was in compliance with all of its coverants under the PVR Revolver.

PVR Senior Unsecured Notes

In March 2003, PVR closed a private placement of $90 million of senior unsecured notes (the “PVR
Notes™). The PVR Notes initially bore interest at a fixed rate of 5.77% and mature over a ten-year period ending
in March 2013, with semi-annual principal and interest payments. The PVR Notes contain various covenants
similar to those contained in the PVR Revolver. The PVR Notes have an equal priority of payment as all other
unsecured indebtedness of PVR, including the PVR Revolver. As of December 31, 2006, PYR was in compliance
with all of the covenants.
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In conjunction with the closing of the Cantera Acquisition, PVR amended the PVR Notes to allow PVR to
enter the natural gas midstream business and to increase certain covenant coverage ratios, including the debt to
EBITDA test. In exchange for this amendment, PVR agreed to a 0.25% increase in the fixed interest rate on the
PVR Notes, from 5.77% 10 6.02%. The amendment to the PVR Notes also requires that PVR obtain an annual
confirmation of its credit rating, with a 1.00% increase in the interest rate payable on the PVR Notes in the event
PVR’s credit rating falls below investment grade. In March 2006, PVR’s investment grade credn rating was
confirmed as investment grade by Dominion Bond Rating Services.

Line of Credit

We have a $10 million line of credit with a financial institution, which had no borrowings against it as of
December 31, 2006 and 2005. The line of credit is effective through June 2007 and is renewable annually. We
increased the line of credit from $5 million to $10 million in June 2006. We have an option to elect a fixed rate
LIBOR loan, floating rate LIBOR loan or base rate (as determined by the financial institution) loan.

Debt Maturities

Aggregate maturities of the principal amounts of long-term debt for the next five years and thereafter are as
follows (in thousands):

2007 e ... $ 11,000
2008 e 12,700
2000 L e 14,100
2000 e 234,400
200 e e e 154,000
Thereafter .. ... .. e 13,400
. 439,600
Terminated intereStrale SWap . ....... ..ottt iiaennnn (554)
Total debt, including current maturities ... ..., uuvuueee e ioeeeannnn,, $439,046

15. Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes from continuing operations is comprised of the following:
Year ended December 31,

2006 2008 2004
{in thousands)

Current income taxes

Federal ... $11,710 $21,708 % 2,619
Al L e P 258 1,867 3
Totalcurrent .. ...t e QP 11,968 23,575 2,622

Deferred income taxes

29419 12,007 15,247
8,601 5,087 3,978

38,020 17,094 19,225
$49,988 $40,669 $21,847
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The difference between the taxes computed by applying the statutory tax rate to income from operations
before income taxes and our reported income tax expense is as follows: :

Year ended December 31,

2006 . - 2005 2004
. (in thousands)
Computed at federal statutory tax rate . ............... $44.063 35.0% $35966 35.0% $19,320 35.0%
State income taxes, net of federal income tax benefit . . . .. 5301 42% 4341 42% 2480 4.5%
Other, MeE . .o oot e 534 0.5% 362 04% 41 0.1%

Total iNnCOME taX EXPENSE ...\ o cvunrreei e iannnns.s $49,988 39.7% $40,66% 39.6% $21,847 39.6%

The principal components of our net deferred income tax liability are as follows:

* December 31,
2006 2005

(in thousands)

Deferred tax liabilities:

Property and equipment .............. e $187,081  §$123,757
Fair value of derivative instrument .. ...t i nnerrnnenn.. 3,285 —
(1011 9= (RN P 5119 7,638
Total deferred tax liabilities ..., ... oo 195,485 131,395
Deferred tax assets:
Fair value of derivative instrument .. ........coouininiannnns.. — 8,023
Deferred income—coal properties . ....... ... oo iiiiiiiiaaann. 5,331 5,939
Pension and post-retirement benefits ................. . ... 2,857 1,734
Net operating loss carry forwards ......... ... ..ot 2,219 —
(01117 SRS e 6,698 4,513
Total deferred tax asSets . ..ot i it et v ae e 17,105 20,209
Netdeferred tax liability ..., i $178,380 $111,186

In assessing our deferred tax assets, we consider whether a valuation allowance should be recorded for some
or all of the deferred tax assets which may not be realized. The ultimate realization of the deferred tax assets is
dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which the temporary differences
become deductible. Among other items, we consider the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities, projected
future taxable income and available tax planning strategies. As of December 31, 2006 and 20035, no valuation
allowance has been recorded as we estimate that it is more likely than not that all of our deferred tax assets will
be realized. '

In June 2006, we acquired 100% of the common stock of Crow Creck (see Note 5). As a result, we acquired
federal and state tax net operating loss carryforwards (“NOLs") which, if unused, will expire between 2022 and
2026. In addition to the carryforward period, these acquired NOLs are subject to other restrictions and
limitations, including Internal Revenue Code, Section 382, which impact their ultimate realizability. As of
December 31, 2006, we had approximately $4.4 million of federal regular tax NOLs and approximately $11.3
million of state NOLs. We did not record any valuation allowance with respect to these NOL's as we estimate
that it is more likely than not that these NOLs will be utilized before they expire. '
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16. Employee Benefit Plans
401(k) Plan

We sponsor a defined contribution pension plan (the *“401(k) Plan™) that is subject 10 the Employee
Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, The 401(k) Plan allows eligible employees to contribute up to 50% of
their base salaries. After the employee meets certain service requirements, we match each employee’s
contributions up to 6% of the employee’s base salary. Our matching contributions to the 401(k) Plan were
approximately $0.9 million, $0.6 million and $0.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and
2004. Beginning in 2005, we had the option to make additional contributions at our discretion. We made a
discretionary contribution of $0.2 million to the 40[([() Plan in 2006. We made no discretionary contributions in
2005 or 2006, ;

Pension Plans and Other Post-retirement Benefits

We provide post-separation (“pension”™) payments to certain eligible employees. Benefits are typically based
on the employee’s average annual compensation and service.

We also offer post-retirement healthcare benefits to employees hired prior to January 1, 1991, who retire
from active service. The benefits include medical and prescription drug coverage for the retirees and dependents
and life insurance for the retirees. The medical coverage'is noncontributory for retirees who retired on or before
December 31, 1990 and may be contributory for retirees who retired on or after January 1, 1991.

On December 31, 2006, we adopted the recognition and disclosure provisions of SFAS No. 158.
SFAS No. 158 required us to recognize the funded status (i.e., the difference between the fair value of plan assets
and the projected benefit obligations) of our pension and other post-retirement benefit plans in the December 31,
2006 consolidated statement of financial position, with a corresponding adjustmem to accumulated other
comprehensive income (“AOCI”), net of tax. The adjustment to AQCI at adoption represents the net
unrecognized actuarial losses, unrecognized prior service costs, and unrecognized transition obligation remaining
from the initial adoption of SFAS No. 87, Employers' Accounting for Pensions, all of which were previously
netted agains't.the plans’ funded status in our consolidated statements of financial position pursuant 1o the
provisions of SFAS No. 87. These amounts will be subsequently recognized as net periodic pension cost pursuant
to our historical accounting policy for amortizing such amounts. Further, actuarial gains and losses that arise in
subsequent periods and are not recognized as net periodic pension cost in the same periods will be recognized as
a component of other comprehensive income. Those amounts will be subsequent]y recognized as a component of
net periodic pension cost on the same basis as the amounts recognized in AQCI at adoption of SFAS No. 158.
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The incremental effects of adopting the provisions of SFAS No. 158 on our consolidated statement of
financial position at December 31, 2006 are presented in the following table. The adoption of SFAS No. 158 had
no effect on our consolidated statement of income for the year ended December 31, 2006, or for any prior period
presented, and it will not affect our operating results in future periods. Had we not been required to adopt SFAS
No. 158 at December 31, 2006, we would have recognized an additional minimum liability pursuant to the
provisions of SFAS No. 87. The effect of recognizing the additional minimum liability is included in the table
below in the column labeled “Prior to Adopting SFAS No. 158™:

As of December 31, 2006
Effect of
Adopting
Effect of SFAS No. 158
Prior to Adopting for Post-
Adopting SFAS No. 158 retirement
SFAS No. for Pension Healthcare As
158 Plan Plan Reported
(in thousands) ‘
Other long-1ermM assets . . ... ovee e ee .. $ 11,935 $5(14) $ — $ 11,921
Effectontotal assels .. ..... ... .o iineunnnnn.. $(14) $ —
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ................ $154.362 | $96 $ 251 $154,709
Other long-term liabilities . ...... .. P 24,305 - {(96) 1,794 26,003
Deferred income tax liability . ... ... ... ... ... 179,101 &)} (716) 178,380
Accumulated other comprehensive income {loss) . ........ (6,616) 9 T (1,329) (7,954)
Effect on total liabilities and shareholders’ equity .. ... 5(14) $ — .

The following table provides the amounts included in AOCI at December 31, 2006 that have not yet been
| recognized in net periodic pension cost:

| . Unrecognized Costs

. ) As of December 31, 2006
| : Post-retirement
Pension Healthcare

‘ i (in thousands)
Unrecognized transition obligation .. ........ ... .ot iaannnnn. $ 3 $ —
TaK effeCt ot a —
Unrecognized transition ob]i,'galion, netof tax .............. e o 2 —

‘ Unrecognized prior SEIVICE COSIS .. ... vttt 11 759
Tax el eCl .o e e (4) (266)
Unrecognized prior service costs, netoftax ........... .. .. oo 7 493
Actuarial loss . .. ... ... 646 1,286
Ak el Ot .. e (226) (450}
Actuarial loss, netof tax ..................... J 420 836
Total amount recognized in AOCL netoftax . ................ ... ..... $ 429 $1,329
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The following table provides-a reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of the portion of AOCI
that relates to the pension and post-retirement healthcare plans: .

Pension Post-retirement Healtheare
2006 2005 2004 2006 2005 2004

(in thousands)

Beginning balance in AOCI .. ... D ... $40D 417 3375 8 —  $3—  $—
Change in minimum pension lability, before adoption of SFAS
No. 158, net oftaxof $10 ............ G (19) 16 (42) — — —
Eff?,ct on comprehen's'ive INCOME ..o, R (19) 16~ (42) — — —
Adoption of SFAS No..158: '
Pension prior service cost, iet of tax of $4 . ... ... ... .. 0 — — — — —
Pension transition obligation, net of tax of $1 .......... 2) — — — — —
Post-retirement healthcare prior service cost, net of tax of ‘
$266........ — — — (493) — —
Post-retirement healthcare actuarial loss, net of tax of :
$450........ e J I —_ —_ —_ C(836) — —
Adjustment to initially apply SFAS No. 158, net of tax . . e o — — (1,329 — —
Ending balance in AOCI . . ... e A $(429) $(401) $417) $(1,329) $— $—

. The following table provides the transition obligation, prior service cost and actuarial loss included in AQCI .
and expected to be recognized in net periodic pension cost during the year ending December 31, 2007:

Costs Expected To Be Recognized
For the Year Ending December 31, 2007

Post-retirement

. Pension Healtheare
. ) (in thousands)
Amortization of transition obligation .. ......., ... ......... $ 3 § —
Taxeffect ... ... .. .. (n —
Amortization of transition obligation, netof tax .............. 2 —
'Amortization of prior service costs ... ... ...l 6 88
Tax effect ...t e (2) an
. Amortization of prior service costs, netoftax ................ 4 57
Amortization of actuarial loss . .......... ... ... o .. 36 75
Tax effect .. i e e e (13). 26)
Amortization of actvarial loss, netoftax . ................... 23 49

Total amount expected to be recognized in net periodic pension
cost during 2007, netoftax ............. .. ... ... ..., $ 29 $ 106
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A reconciliation of tﬁe'beginning and ending balances of the benefit obligations and fair value of plan assets
for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the funded status at December 31, 2006 and 2005, is as
follows:

) Post-retirement
Pension Healthcare

2006 2005 2006 2005

(in thoilsa‘n_ds)

Change in benefit obligation:

Obligation—=beginning of year ............... ... ... L $2,242 $2348 $4,571 §4.404
SErvICE COSE .ottt i — =27 29
INterest CoSt .ottt s S 127 129 7. 243« 241
Benefitspaid ...... ... - 4232y -+ (241) (426) (461)
Actvarial loss (gain) .- ....... ... ... ... e e 66 6 (113) 358
Obligation -end of year ............... ... ... ..ol 2203 27242 4,302 4,571
Change in fair value of plan assets: : - . ; .
Fair value-beginning of year ....... e i — — - —
Employer contributions ........... e ceeeae. o 232 241 - 401 438
Participant contributions . .......... .. ... ... ... " - = 25 23
Benefit payments ................0 . S (232)..  (241) (426) ' - (461
Fairvalue-endof year ............. ... ... . ... ..l — — —_ —
Funded status-end of year ............. e - $(2,203) $(2,242) '$(4,302) $(4.571)
Accumulated benefit obligation—end of YEar . ... ..o rnennnnn... $(2,203) $(2,242) $(4,302) $(4.571)

The underfunded status of the pension and post-retirement healthcare plans of $2.2 million and $4.3 million
as of December 31, 2006 has been recognized as a liability in the accompanying statements of financial position,
The following table provides the amounts recognized in the statements of financial position at December 31,
2006 and 2005: : T ‘

.-

Post-retirement

* ' Pension ' Healthcare
- 2006 - 2005 2006 2005
: (in thousands)

Other LONZ-term ASSET5 .. . v vt vn e ettt ia e e e 3 — & 24 8% — § —
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities . .. ... ... .. oLl 230 (140) @i (160}
Other long-term liabilities .. ....... ... . ... .. .. ... .. o000 {1,966) (2,102) (3.861) (2.058)
Deferred inCOME 1aX 5881 . & . v it in it ettt e e e i 231 216 716 —
Accumulated other comprehensive loss .. ........ .. .. . i 429 401 1,329 —
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The following table provides the components of net periodic benefit cost for the plans for the years ended
December 31, 2006 and 2005:

Post-retirement

Pension Healthcare
2006 2005 2006 2005
(in thousands)

ServiCe COSt ... .. e $— 5— $ 27 $ 29
Interest Cost . ... .. . e e 127 129 243 241
Amortization of prior service cost .. ... ... .. .. 6 6 89 88
Amortization of transition obligation . . ................ ... . ..... 4 3 . — —
Recognized actuarial loss .. ... ... 36 31 81 66
Net periodic benefitcost ........ e $173 $169 $440 $424

We used an assumed discount rate of 5.70% in 2006 and 5.75% in 2005 for the measurement of our pension
and post-retirement healthcare benefit obligations. We base the discount rate on the published Moody’s Aa
corporate bond yield as of the measurement date. We choose to use the Moody's Aa corporate bond yield
because it is 2 widely available rate and its portfolio approximates the characteristics of our plans.

For measurement purposes, a 9.0% annual rate increase in the per capita cost of covered health care benefits
was assumed for 2006. The rate is assumed to decrease gradually 1o 5% for 2013 and remain at that level
thereafter.

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for post-retirement

benefits. A 1% change in assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following effects for 2006 (in
thousands):

One Percent One Percent

_ Increase Decrease
Effect on total of service and interest cost components . ............... 510 $ (10)
Effect on post-retirement benefit obligation ......................... 181 (175)

We expect to contribute $0.2 miilion to the pension plan and $0.4 million to the post-retirement healthcare
plan in 2007.

The following benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are expected to be

paid:
Post-retirement
Pension Healthcare
{in thousands)
$ 423
426
422
420 -
411

1,808
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17. Earnings per Share

The following is a reconciliation of the numerators and denominators used in the calculation of basic and
diluted earnings per share for the last three years:

Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
] (in thousands, except per share data)
NEUIMCOME o\ttt st e e e e e e e et e e eea e $75.909 $62,088 $33,355
Weighted average shares, basic ............ ... ... oo 18,681 18,546 18,306
Effective of dilutive securities:

SOCK OPHONS ..o i e e et i 185 186 161
Weighted average shares, diluted . . ........ ... ... ... i e 18,866 18,732 18,467
Net income pershare, basic ...... ... i $ 406 § 335 § 182
Net income per share, diluted .. ........... ... i ee.. 3 402 $ 331 § 81

Options with an exercise price exceeding the average price of the underlying securities are not considered to
be dilutive and are not included in calculation of the denominator for diluted earnings per share for the years
ended December 31, 2006 and 2005. No options outstanding at December 31, 2004 had exercise prices exceeding
the average price of the underlying securities. '

18. Share-Based Payments
Stock Compensation Plans

Adoption of New Accounting Standard. We have several stock compensation plans (collectively, the “Stock
Compensation Plans”) that allow incentive and nonqualified stock options and restricted stock to be granted to
key employees and officers and nonqualified stock options and deferred common stock units to be granted (o
directors. At December 31. 2006, there were approximately 204,000 and 224,000 shares available for issuance to
directors and employees pursuant to the Stock Compensation Plans. Prior to January i, 2006, we accounted for
those plans under the recognition and measurement provisions of Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25,
Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and related Interpretations, as permitied by SFAS No. 123,
Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation. Stock-based compensation cost in our statements of income prior 1o
2006 included only costs related 1o restricted stock and deferred common stock units. Prior to 2006, we did not
recognize expense for options as permitted by SFAS No. 123 because all options granted had an exercise price
equal to the market value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant. Effective January 1, 2006, we
adopted the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123(R) using the modified prospective transition
method. Under that transition method, compensation cost recognized in the year ended December 31, 2006
includes: (a) compensation cost for all share-based payments granted prior to, but not yet vested as of, January 1,
2006 based on the grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with the original provisions of SFAS No. 123
and (b) compensation cost for all share-based payments granted on or after January 1, 2006 based on the grant-
date fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 123(R). Results for prior periods have
not been restated. For the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, we recognized $2.8 million and $0.7 million
of compensation expense related to the Stock Compensation Plans. Compensation expense related to the Stock
Compensation Plans was not significant in 2004. The total income tax benefit recognized in our consolidated
statements of income for the Stock Compensation Plans was $1.1 million and $0.3 million for the years ended
December 31, 2006 and 2005.
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A§ a result .of adopting. SFAS No. 123(R) on January 1, 2006; our income before minority interest and
income taxes and our net income are $1.4 milliori and $0.8 million lower for the year ended December 31, 2006
thdn if we had continued to account for share-based compensation under Opinion No. 25. Basic and diluted
earnings per share are $0.05 and $0.04 lower for the year ended December 31, 2006 than if we had continued to
account for share-based compensation under Opinion No. 25.

" Prior to the adoption-of SFAS No. 123(R), we presented all tax benefits of deductions resulting from the
exercise of stock options as operating cash flows in our consolidated statements of cash flows. SFAS No. 123(R)
requires the cash flows resulting from the tax- benefits resulting from tax deductions in excess of the
compensation-cost recognized for those options (excess tax benefits) to be classified as financing cash flows. The
$2.6 million excess tax benefit classified as a financing cash inflow for the year ended December 31, 2006 would
have been classified as an operating cash inflow if we had not adopted SFAS No. 123(R). '

The following table illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per share as if we had applied the fair
value ‘recognition provision of SFAS No. 123 to options granted under our stock option plans for the years ended
December 31, 2005 and 2004. For pu'rposes of this pro forma disclosure, the value of the options is estimated
using a Black-Scholes-Merton option-pricing formuta and amortized to expense over the options’ vesting periods
(in thousands, except per share data). )

Year Ended December 31,
2005 2004

Net income, as feported . . . PP $62.,088 $33,355
.. Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense included in reported
net income related 1o restricted units director and director
compensation, net of related tax effects .. ........ ... ... oL 1,008 . 435
Less: Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined
under fair value based method for all awards, net of retated tax

B T ECtS . e e s (1,751) (1,022)
Pro forma net iNCOME .« .o v v o e e et eeeaans e $61,345 $32.768

oy

Earnings per share

Basic—as reported ... ...... P L. §335 % 182
Basic—proforma . ......... . e $ 331 $ 179
Diluted—as reported .. ..o ou it ... % 331 $ 181
Diluted—proforma ............... o S R e $ 177

Stock Options. The exercise price of all options granted under the Stock Compensation Plans is at the fair
market value of our common stock on the date of the grant. Options may be exercised at any time after vesting
and prior to 10 years following the grant. Options vest upon terms established by the Compensation and Benefits
Committee of our Board of Directors. In addition, all options will vest upon a change of control of us, as defined
by the Stock Compensation Plans. In the case of employees, if a grantee’s employment terminates (i) for cause,
all of the grantee’s options, whether vested or unvested, will be automatically forfeited, (i) by reason of death,
disability or retirement after reaching age 62 and providing ten consecutive years of service, the grantee’s options
will automatically vest and (iii} for any other reason, the grantee’s unvested options will be automatically
forfeited. In the case of directors, if a grantee’s membership on our Board of Directors terminates for any reason,
the grantee’s unvested options will be automatically forfeited. We have a policy of issuing new shares to satisfy
share option exercises.

115



PENN VIRGINIA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS— Continued)

Options granted on or before January 2, 2004 under the Stock Compensation Plans vested on the first
anniversary of the date of grant. Options granted after fanuary 2, 2004 vest ratably over a three-year period so
that one-third is exercisable afier one year, another third is exercisable after two years and the remaining third is
exercisable after three years. :

The fair vatue of each option award is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes-Merton
optien-pricing formula that uses the assumptions noted in the following table. Expected volatilities are based on
historical changes in the market value of our stock. Separate groups of employees that have similar historical
exercise behavior are considered separately to estimate expected lives. Options granted have a maximum term of
ten years. We base the risk-free interest rate on the U.S. Treasury rate for the week of the grant having a term
equal to the expected life of the option,

2006 © 005 2004
Expected volatility .............. ... ... .. ...... 209%1031.5% 26.4% 27.7%
Dividend yield ..................c... oL, 0.60% to 0.71% 0.81%to 1.10% 1.56% to 1.60%
Expectedlife ... .. ... .. ... ... ... ... ..., 3.5 to 4.6 years 4 years . 4 years
Risk-freeinterestrate . ........ .. ... ovviiia ... 4,59% 10 5.01% 3.88% t04.04% 2.47%

The following table summarizes activity for our most recent fiscal year with respect to the common stock
options awarded under the Stock Compensation Plans described above:

Weighted

Weighted = Average

Shares Average , Remaining Aggregate

Under Exercise | Contractual Intrinsic
Options _ Options. Price | Term Value

_ , (in yeurs) (in thousands)

Outstanding at Janwary 1,2006 ............ ... ... ... .... 621,631 $26.68
Granted . .. .. o e e 212,991 63.64
Exercised ...... .. ... ... e (150,301) 21.67
Forfeilt . .. (17,333) 5238
Outstanding at December 31,2006 ....................... 666,988 $38.95 74 $21,201
Exercisable at December 31,2006 ......... [P 333,519 $2335 | 6.2 $15,794

The weighted-average grant-date fair value of options granted during the years ended December 31, 2006,
2005 and 2004 was $14.34, $12.28 and $6.20 per option. The total intrinsic value of options exercised during the
years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $7.4 miltion, $3.9 million and $6.9 million.

A summary of the stas of our nonvested options as of December 31, 2006, and. changes during the year
then ended, is presented below:

Weighted
Average
. Grant-Date
Nonvested Options Options Fair Value
Nonvested at January 1,2006............ e - 232,937 $9.19
Granted .. ... e e 212,991 14.34
Vested ... o . (96,827) 8.60
Forfeit . ... e {15,632) 11.55

Nonvested at December 31,2000 .. . ... ... . 333,469 $12.54
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As of December 31, 2006, we had $2.4 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested
share-based compensation arrangements granted under the Stock Compensation Plans. We expect that cost to be
recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.0 year. The total fair value of shares vested during the years
ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $0:8 million, $0.8 million and $2.1 million.

Cash received from the exercise of stock options for the year ended December 31, 2006 was $6.1 million.
The actual tax benefit realized for the 1ax deducuons from option exercises was $2.6 million for the year ended
December 3] 2006. - ' —

Resmcred Common Stock. Restricted stock vests upon terms established by the compensation and benefits
commitiee. In addition, all restricted stock will vest upon a change of control of us. If a grantee’s employment
terminates for any reason other than death, disability or retirement, the grantee’s restricted stock will be
automatically forfeited. If a grantee’s employment terminates by reason of death, disability or retirement, the
grantee’s restricted stock will automatically vest unless otherwise determined by the compensation and benefits
committee. Excepl as specified by the Compensation and Benefits Commitiee of our Board of Directors, a
grantee shall be entitled to receive any dividends declared on our common stock. Restricted stock granted in
2006 and 2005 vests over a three-year period, with either one-third vesting in each year or 25% vesting after the
first year, 25% vesting after the second year and 50% vesting after the third year. We recognize compensation
expense on a straight-line basis over the vesting period. No restricted stock was granted prior to January 1, 2003.

A summary of the status of our nonvested restricted stock as of December 31, 2006, and changes during the
+ year then ended, 1s presented below:

Weighted
Nonvested Average

Restricted Grant-Date

. Stock Fair Value
' Nonvested at January 1, 2006 PO e - 21,576 . $58.58
Granted . ... e e e e 5,518 63.07
Vested ........... e S (7,554) 57.75
Nonvested at December 31,2000 ... ..ot 25,540 $59.80

At December 31, 2006, we had $1.2 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested
restricted stock. We expect that cost 1o be recogmzed over a weighied-average period of 0.9 years. The total
grant-date falr vilue of restricted stock vested was $0 4 ‘million in 2006. No restricted stock vested prior to 2006,

-

Deferred Common Stock Units. A pomon of compensation to non-employee members of our Board of
Directors is paid in deferred common stock units. Each deferred common stock unit represents one share of
common stock, which vests immediately upon issuance and is available to the holder upon termination or
retirement from our Board of Directors. Deferred common stock units awarded to directors receive all cash or
other dividends we pay on shares of common stock. '

.

The followmg table summanzes activity for the most recent fiscal year with respect to deferred common
units awarded i ' :

T ok

- o o Deferred
. ' el ' Common

Units

. Outstariding alJanuary 1,2006 .............. U P 12,824
Granted .. 10,670
Converted to common units ... ... [ . e—

Outstanding ‘at December 31,2006 ...................... PRI 23,494
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In accordance with EITF Issue No. 97-14, Accounting for Deferred Compensation Arrangements Where
* Amounts Earned Are Held in a Rabbi Trust and Invested, we recorded a $1.3 million and $0.6 million deferred
compensation obligation in sharcholders’ equity at Décember 31, 2006 and 2005 and a corresponding amount for
treasury stock. No deferred common stock units were granted prior to January 1, 2005,

Shareholder Rights Plan

In February 1998, our Board of Directors adopted a Shareholder Rights Plan (the “Plan™) designed to
prevent an acquirer from gaining control of the Company without offering a fair price to all shareholders. The
Plan was amended in March 2002. Each common share outstanding has one right, and each right entitles the
holder to purchase from us one one-thousandth of a share of Series A Junior Participating Préferred Stock, $100
par value, at a price of $100 subject to adjustment. The rights are not exercisable or transferable apart from the
common stock until after a person or affiliated group has acquired or obtained the right to acquire 15% or more
(or 10% or more if such person or group has been deemed to be an “adverse person” as defined in the Plan) of
our common stock. Each right will entitle the holder, under certain circumstances, to acquire at half the value,
either (i) common stock of the Company, (ii) a combination of cash, other property, or common stock or other
securities of the Company, or (iii) common stock of an acquiring person. Any such event would also result in any
rights owned beneficially by the acquiring person or its affiliates becoming nuli and void. The rights expire in
February 2008 and are redeemable under certain circumstances.

PVG Long-Term Incentive Plan

The general partner of PVG has a long-term incentive plan that permits the grant of awards covering an
aggregate of 300,000 PVG common units to employees and directors of PVG’s general partner and employees of
its affiliates who perform services for PVG. Awards under the PVG long-term incentive plan can be in the form
of PVG common units, restricted PVG units, PVG unit options, phantom PVG units and deferred PVG common
units. The PVG long-term incentive plan is administered by the compensation and benefits committee of the
board of directors of PVG’s general partner. As of December 31, 2006, the general partner of PVG had granted
no awards under its long-term incentive plan.

PVG Comman Units

We granted 39,500 PVG common units at a weighted average grant-date fair value of $18.73 per unit to our
officers and employees in 2006. The PV(G commeon units vested on the date of grant but bear a restrictive legend.
We recognized compensation expense of $0.7 million in 2006 related to the grant of PVG common units.

.

PVR Long-Term Incentive Plan

The general partner of PVR has a long-term incentive plan that permits the grant of awards covering an
aggregate of 600,000 PVR common units to employees and directors of the general partner and employees of its
affiliates who perform services for PVR. Awards under the PVR long-term incentive plan can be in the form of
PVR common units, PVR restricted units, PVR unit options, phantom PVR units and deferred PVR common
units. The PVR long-term incentive plan is administered by the compensation and benefits committee of the
board of directors of PVR’s general partner. Compensation expense related to the PVR long term incentive plan
totaled $1.9 million, $1.4 million and $0.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004,

PVR Common Units, The general partner of PVR granted 1,795 PVR common units at a weighted average
grant-date fair value of $26.01 per unit to non-employee directors in 2006. The general partner of PVR granted
876 PVR common units at a weighted average grant-date fair value of $25.36 per unit to non-employee directors
in 2005. The general partner of PVR granted 9,922 PVR common units at a weighted average grant-date fair
value of $17.42 per unit to non-employee directors in 2004,
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PVR Restricted Units. PVR restricted units vest upon terms established by the compensation and benefits
committee of PVR’s general partner. In addition, all PVR restricted units will vest upon a change of control of
PVR’s general partner or us. If a grantee’s employment with, or membership on the board of directors of, PVR’s
general partner terminates for any reason, the grantee’s unvested PVR restricted units will be automatically forfeited
unless, and to the extent that, the compensation and benefits committee provides otherwise. Distributions payable
with respect to PVR restricted units may, in the compensation and benefits committee’s discretion, be paid directly
to the grantee or held by PVR’s general partner and made subject to a risk of forfeiture during the applicable
restriction period. Restricted units granted in 2006 and 20053 vest over a three-year period, with one-third vesting in
each year. Restricted units granted in 2004 vested on the first anniversary of the date of grant.

A summary of the status of nonvested PVR restricted units as of December 31, 2006, and changes during
the year then ended, is presented below:

*Weighted

Nonvested Average

Restricted Grant-Date

Units Fair Value
_ Nonvested at January 1, 2006 ...................................... 113,624 $18.81
Granted . oottt e e e e 82,320 28.83
VSt o s e e e e (81,116) 26.64
Forfeit ......... e ettt e e e (614) 27.99
‘Nonvested at December 31,2006 ... ... .oooveiinioin..! S 114214  $20.42

© At December 31, 2006, PVR had $2.2 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related 10 nonvested
restricted units. PVR expects to reimburse its general partner for that cost over a weighted-average period of (.9
years. The totat grant-date fair value of restricted units vested was $2.2 miltion in 2006, $0.4 million in 2005 and
$0.4 million in 2004, ’ '

' Deferred PVR Common Umts A portion of the compensation to the non-employee directors of the general
partner of PVR is paid in deferred PVR common units. Each deferred PVR common unit represents one PVR
Common unit, Wthh vests immediately upon issuance and is available to the holder upon termination or
retirement from the board of directors of PVR’s general partner. PVR common units delivered in connection with
deferred PVR common units may be PVR common units acquired by PVR’s general partner in the open market,

. PVR common units already owned by the general partner, PVR common units acquired by PVR’s general partner
directly from PVR or any other person, or any combination of the foregoing. PVR's general partner is entitled to
reimbursement by PVR for the cost incurred in acquiring PVR common units. Deferred PVR commeon units
awarded to directors receive all cash or other distributions paid by PVR on account of its common units.

The following table summarizes acuvny for the most recent fiscal year with respect to deferred PVR
common units awarded:

Deferred
) Common

1 Units
Outstanding at January 1,2006 ... ... .. ... 21,710
Granted . .. e e e e e 23,636
Converted (0 COMIMON BAILS ..o\ttt e a e e e it ei et naane s ann (6,439)
Outstanding at December 31,2006 . ....... ... ... ... i 38,907

The aggregate intrinsic value of deferred PVR common units converted to PVR common units in 2006 was
$0.2 million. No deferred PYR common units converted to PVR common units in 2005 or 2004.
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19. Other Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income represents certain changes in eq.l'.lity during the reporting period, including net
income and charges directly to equity which are excluded from net income. For the three years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, the components of other comprehensive income were as follows: )

Cash Minimum
Flow Pension
Hedges Liability Total
a (in thousands)

Hedging unrealized loss, netof tax of $321 ......... .. ....... ... .. ..., 8 597 $— $ 597
Hedging reclassification adjustment, netof tax of $335 . .................. 622 — 622
Pension adjustment, netoftaxof $10 .. .. ... ... ... ... oL —. (19} (19)
Other comprehensive income for the year ended December 31,2006 ......... $ 1,219 $(19) § 1,200
Hedging unrealized loss, netof tax of $8,726 . ...... ... ... ... ... . .... $(16,206) $— $(16,206)
Hedging reclassification adjustment, net of tax of $4,897 . ... ......... .. ... 9,094 — 9,094
Pension plan adjustment, netoftax of $9 . . .. ...... .. .. L. L = 1 16
Other comprehensive income for the year ended December 31,2005 ... .. e $ 7,112y %16 $ (7,096) -
Hedging unrealized loss, netof tax of $1,214 ... ... ... . .... P $ 2,254y $— $ (2,254) .
Hedging reclassification adjustment, net of tax $2,060 .................... I3,826 = 3,826,
Pension pian adjustment, netoftax of $30 ... ... .. ... ... ... — 42) {42)
Other comprehensive income for the year ended December 31,2004 ... .. .. ... 8 1,572 %42y % 1,530
20. Segment Information . ' .

Segment information has been prepared in accordance with SFAS No. 131, Disclosure about Segments of an -
Enterprise and Related Information. Under SFAS No, 131, operating segments are defined as components of an
enterprise al_)oui which separate financial information is available and is evaluated regularly by the chief
operating decision maker, or decision-making group, in assessing performance. Qur chief operating decision-
making group consists of our Chief Executive Officer and other senior officials. This group routinely reviews and
makes operating and resource allocation decisions among our oil and gas operations, PVR’s coal operations and
PVR’s natural gas midstream operations. Accordingly, our reportable segments are as follows: ’ '

« Oil and Gas—crude oil and natural gas exploration, development and production.

+ Coal (the “PVR coal” segment}—management and leasing of coal propeﬁies and subsequent collection
of royalties; other land management activities such as selling standing timber and real estate rentals;
leasing of fee-based coal-related infrastructure facilities to certain lessees and end-user-industrial
plants.

» Natural Gas Midstream (the “PVR midstream” segment)—natural gas processing, natural gas gathering
and other related services.
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The following table presents a summary of certain ﬁnanelal mformatlon relatmg to our segments

Oil and PVR Corporate
Gas PVR Coal Midstream (1} and Other Consolidated

H

(in thousands)

As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2006 ,
Revenues ...........0 . ... .. 00 i, P $236 238 $ll2 981 $404,628 $ 82 % 753,529
Intersegment revenues (2) ...... D (282) 282 - —
Operating costs and expenses ....... e 04,886 ‘19, 138 358,440 16,716 ~ 489,180
Depreciation, depletion and amortization ., ...... ... 56,237 20,399 17,084 487 94217
Operating income (10S8) . ... ....... S, ... 84833 % 73444 § 29376 $(17,121) 170,532
Interest expense .. .. ......... e i . . (24,832)
Interest income and other . ........... P . SR - ‘ 3,718
Derivatives ............... e e, o : . 19,497
Income before minority interest andtaxes ........... ‘ : $ 1680915
Total ASSEIS ..\ vvvovveieerr it e ... $885,550 $409,709 $304,314 $33576$I633149
Equity investments .................. S — 257295 60 — 25,355
Additions 1o property and equipment and acqmsmons ' . ' '
" netofcashacquired (3) ...................7.... 331,551 92,697 37,015 ° 3,676 464,939
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2005 o ' , '
R L [ $226,819 $ 95,755 $350,593 $ 697 § 673,864
Operating costs and expenses ................ ..., 80,669 16,121 321,509 11,826 430,125
Impairment of oil and gas properties .. .............. 4,785 — — — 4,785
Depreciation, depletion and amortization ............ " 45,885 17,890 12,738 - . 424 76,937
Operating income (loss) .......... o e $ 95480 % 61,744 $ 16,346 $(11,553) 162,017
Interest expense ........... e e ) - . (15,318)
Interest income and other .. ........... e . - o 1,332
Derivatives . it e e e ) {14,885)
Income before minority interest and taxes ........... : $ 133,146
Total assets ... .. e . $576,634 $372,322 $285,557 §$ 17,033 $1,251,546
Equity investments . ..........coooiiiiiiineenn. — 26,612 60 — 26,672
Additions to property and equipment and acquisitions, ‘ . ) .

netof cashacquired (4) . ... ... ... ... ... ... 171,301 112,497 206,811 350 490,959
As of and for the Year Ended Decemher 31, 2004
REVEIUIES - oot i e et et e e $151,672 $ 75,630 $ — $§ 1,123 § 228425
Operating costs and expenses ..................... 57.668 16,479 — 10,334 " 84,481
Impairment of oil and gas properties . ............... 655 — — .= - 655
Loss onassets heldforsale ......... ... ... . ... 7,541 — — — 7.541
Depreciation, depletion and amortization ............ 35,886 18,632 — 434 54,952
Operating income (10S8) .........oiviiiniiiinnn.. $ 49022 % 40,519 § — 3 (9.645) 80,796
Interest expense . e (7,672)
Interest income and other ........... PR 1,101
Income before minority interest and taxes ........... 5 74225
Total 88588 . . .. e $482,343 $284,435 % — $16,557 § 783,335
Equity investments ........... ... ..., — 27,881 — — 27,881

Additions to property and equipment and acquisitions,
net of cashacquired (5) ....... ... ... ... ... ... 123,977 2,148 — 176 126,301
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{1) Represents the results of opem\ions'i)f the natural gas midstream segment since March 3, 2003, the closing
date of the Cantera Acquisition.

(2) Represents agent fees paid by the oil and gas segment to the PVR midstream segment for marketing certain
natural gas production. _

(3) Oil and gas segment includes deferred tax assets of $32.3 million and acquisition of net liabilities other than
property or equipment of $29.1 million related to the Crow Creek Acqu151t|0n Coal segment includes
-acquisition of assets other than property or eqmpment of $1.2 million.

(4) Coal segment excludes noncash expenditures of $14.4 million related 1o acquisitions.

(5) Coal segment excludes noncash expenditures of $1.1 million related 1o acquisitions.

Operating income is equal to total revenues less cost of midstream gas purchased, operating costs and
expenses and depreciation, depletion and amortization. Operating income does not include certain other income
items, interest expense, interest income and income taxes. Identifiable assets are those a%qets used in our
operations in each segment.

For the year ended December 31, 2006, one customer of the natural gas midstream segment accounted for
$129.1 million, or 17%, of our consolidated net revenues. Intercompany railcar rental revenues were $0.8 million
in 2006 and are included in the PVR coal segment. The offsetting railcar rental expense and the elimination of
the revenue and expense are included in the corporate and other column of the preceding table. In 2006, the oil
and gas segment paid $0.4 million to the PVR midstream segment for marKeting a portion of the oil and gas
segment’s natural gas producuon The marketing agreement was effective September 1, 2006. ‘

For the year ended December 3], 2005, two customers of the natural gas midstream segment accounted for
approximately $81.9 million and $77.1 million, or 12% and 1%, of consolidated net revenues. In June 2005, one
of our subsidiaries began leasing railcars from a subsidiary of PVR. Railcar rental revenues were $0.4 million in
2005 and are included in the PVR coal segment. The offsetting railcar rental expense and the elimination of the
revenue and expense are included in the corporate and other column of the preceding table. -

For the year ended December 31, 2004, two customers of the cil and gas segment accounted for
approximately $32.3 million and $28.2 million, or 14% and 12%, of our consolidated net revenues,

21. Commitments and Contingencies
Rental Commitments

Operating lease rental expense in the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $10.0 million,
$5.8 million and $4.2 million. Minimum rental commitments for the next five years under all non-cancelable
operating leases in effect at December 31, 2006 were as follows (in thousands):

200 o e e $ 6,449

L 4,143
2000 e - 1,657
2000 o e e 1,546
0 1,515
Total MinimMUM PAYMENS . .. ... e e i $15,310

QOur rental commitments primarily relate to equipment; building and coal reserve-based properties which
PVR subleases, or intends to sublease. to third parties. The obligation expires when the property has been mined
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to exhaustion or the lease has been canceled. The timing of mining by third party operators is difficult to estimate
due to numerous factors. We believe that the future rental commitments cannot be estimated with certainty;
however, based on current knowledge and historical trends, PVR believes that it will incur approximately $0.9
million inrental commitments annually until the reserves have been exhausted. | .

Drilling Commitments

We have agreements to purchase oil and gas well drilling services from third parties for terms ranging from
two to three years. The agreements include early termination provisions that would require us to pay penalties if
we terminate the agreements prior to the end of original terms. The amount of penalty is based on the number of
days remaining in the contractual term and declines as time passes. As‘of December 31, 2006, the penalty amount
would have been $17.2 million if we had terminated our agreements on that date.-Management intends to utilize
drilling services under these agreements for the full terms and has no plans to terminate the agreements early.
Our obligation for drilling commitments in effect at December 31, 2006 for the next five years and thereafter is
as fotlows (in thousands):

2007 e e e e $10,875
2008 i e 8,395
2000 L e 8,395
Total drilling COMMUILMENTS . .. ..ot ra s $27,665

Firm Transportation Commitments

In 2004, we entered into contracts which provide firm transportation capacity rights for specified volumes
per day on a pipeline system for terms ranging from one to !0 years. The contracts require us to pay
transportation demand charges regardless of the amount of pipeline capacity we use. We may sell excess capacity
to third parties at our discretion. Our obligation for firm transportation commitments in effect at December 31,
2006 for the next five years and thereafter is as follows (in thousands):

2007 L e e e s $1.885
2008 L e e 1,160
2000 e i e 1,081
2000 e e e 1,081
2§ 1 1,081
Thereafter . . .. ... i e 3.153
Total firm transportation COMMIMENES .. ... c .. .. iiniiiiar e $9,44]

Legal

We are involved, from time (o time, in various legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business.
While the ultimate results of these proceedings cannot be predicted with certainty, management believes these
claims will not have a material effect on the financial position, liquidity or operations.

Environmental Compliance

Extensive federal, state and local laws govern oil and natural gas operations, regulate the discharge of
materials into the environment or otherwise relate 1o the protection of the environment. Numerous governmental
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departments issue rules and regulations to implement and enforce such laws that are often difficult and costly to
comply with and which carry substantial administrative, civil and even criminal penalties for failure to comply.
Some laws, rules and regulations relating to protection of the environment may, in certain circumstances, impose
“strict liability” for environmental contamination, rendering a person liable for environmental and natural
resource damages and cleanup costs without regard to negligence or fault on the part of such person. Other laws,
rules and regulations may restrict the rate of oil and natural gas production below the rate that would otherwise
exist or even prohibit exploration or production activities in sensitive areas. In addition, state laws often require
some form of remedial action to prevent pollution from former operations, such as closure of inactive pits and
plugging of abandoned wells. The regulatory burden on the oil and natural gas industry increases its cost of doing
business and consequently affects its profitability. These laws, rules and regulations affect our operations, as well
as the oil and gas exploration and production industry in general. We believe that we are in substantial
compliance with current applicable environmental laws, rules and regulations and that continued compliance
with existing requirements will not have a material adverse impact on us. Nevertheless, changes in existing
environmental laws or the.adoption of new environmental laws have the potential to adversely affect our
operations.

The operations of PVR’s coal lessees and natural gas midstream segment are subject to environmental laws
and regulations adopted by various governmental authorities in the jurisdictions in which these operations are
conducted. The terms of PVR’s coal property leases impose liability for all environmental and reclamation
liabilities arising under those laws and regulations on the relevant lessees. The lessees are bonded and have
indemnified PVR against any and all future environmental liabilities. PVR regularly visits coal properties under
lease to monitor lessee compiiance with environmental laws and regulations and to review mining activities.
Management believes that the operations of PVR’s coal lessees and natural gas midstream segment will comply
with existing regulations and does not expect any material impact on its financial condition or results of
operations.

As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, PVR’s environmental liabilities included $1.6 million and $2.5 million,
which represents our best estimate of the liabilities as of those dates related to the coal and natural gas midstream
businesses. PVR has reclamation bonding requirements with respect to certain unieased and inactive properties.
Given the uncertainty of when the reclamation area will meet regulatory standards, a change in this estimate
could occur in the future.

Mine Health and Safety Laws

There are numerous mine health and safety laws and regulations applicable to the coal mining industry.
However, since PVR does not operate any mines and does not employ any coal miners, PVR is not subject to
such laws and regulations. Accordingly, we have not accrued any related liabilities.
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22, Quarterly Financial Iﬁformation (lUnaudited)

Summarized Quarterly Financial Data

. . . K

First . Second ’ Third Fourth

: - B s ' Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
{in thousands, ey&cept share data}

2006
Revenues .......... .. .. .. . e .. $200,907 $179,150 $188,393 §185.479
Operaling INCoOmME . ... vvnnet i, $ 48,666 § 49939 § 44644 § 27,283
Netincome .............. e $ 24,108 $ 18,217 § 22,881 $ 10,703
Net income per share (1): - g

BASIC .+ oottt P $ 129 % 098 $ 122 §$ 057

Diluted .............. e $ 128 % 09 $ 121 $ 057
Weighted average shares outstanding

CBASIC L e e e . 18,652 18,677 18,679 18,746

CDiluted L. e e 18,873 18,913 18,895 18,936

2005 (2) L et . C
Revenues ............. PRI A $ 88,210 $157,965 $186,965 $241,296
Operating income ... ... e $ 27,704 $ 26417 $ 46,808 % 61,088
NEtINCOME .ottt ettt et e et e et e et e % 7040 $ 7,647 § 19990 § 27411
Net income per share (l) S Lo ' : T :

Basic ... .. 0 e PP SRR, % ‘038 $ 041 $ -108 § 147,

Diluted .. ...t '8 038 0% 04108 107 % L46
Weighted average shares outstandlng: .

BASIC -0 T .. 18490 - 18,517 18,560 18,613

Diluted .........oooeeeiinns RS " 18694 18719 18,760 183818

(1) The sum of the quarters may not equal the total of the respective year’s net income per share due to changes
in the weighted average shares outstanding throughout the year,

(2) Includes the results of operations from the natural gas midstreamn segment since March 3, 2003, the closing

* . date of the'Cantera Acquisition.
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NOTES.TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continied)

23. Supplemental Information on Oil and Gas Producing Activities.(Unaudited)

The follow'ing supplemental information regarding the oil and gas producing activities is presented in
accordance with the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) and SFAS No. 69,
Disclosures about Oil and Gas Producing Activities. The amounts shown include our net working and royalty
interest in all of our oil and gas operations. -

Capitalized Costs Relating to Oil and Gas Producing Activities -

‘December 31,

2006 2005 2004
R (in thousands) , :

Proved Properfies . ... .. cceeoe ot e $ 213,017 $126,286 $ 120,742
Unproved properties ... ... iuu it it i e . 100,008 66,727 - 61,013
Wells, equipment and facilities ............ e e .. 706,860 502,877, -392.230
Support eqUIPIMENE . ... ... i e 2,713 4,088 3461

- 1L,022598 699978 577446
Accumulated depreciation and depletion .. ......... ... . oo . (245,463) (191,860) (148,212)
Net capitalizéd,éosts (D) $ 777,135 3 508,118, § 4297234 -

(1) Net capitatized costs of $19.9 million at December 31, 2006, $16.4 million at December 31, 2005, and $13.7
million at December 31, 2004, relating to a transmission pipeline and compression in the Appalachian. Basin
placed into service from 2004 to 2006 were excluded from net capitalized costs.

In accordance with SFAS No. 143, during 2006, 2005 and 2004, an addmonal $1.4 mllhon $0 4 mllllon and
$0.3 million were added to the cost basis of oil and gas wells for wells drilled. :

+ . . T
Costs Incurred in Certain Oil and Gas Activities

December 31,
2006 2005 2004

{in thousands}
Proved property acquisition costs . ......... e $7272¢4 § — § —
Unproved property acquisiion costs . ................ e 56,563 26,360 13,046
Exploration COStS . ... ..ot - 51,665 30,335 26,429
Development costs andother (1) .. ....... ... ... ... .. .. 184,675 109,066 82,048
Total COSts INCUITEd .. ..ottt et et et et et $365,627 $165,761 $121,523

(1) Development costs of $5.1 million in 2006, $3.8 million in 2005 and $13.7 million in 2004 reiating to a
transmission pipeline and compression in the Appalachian Basin placed into service during from 2004 to
2006 were excluded from costs incurred.

Costs for the year ended December 31, 2006 include deferred income taxes of $32.3 million provided for the
book versus tax basis difference related to the acquired Crow Creek properties.




PENN VIRGINIA CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
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. Results of Operations for Oil and Gas Producing Activities

The following schedule includes results solely from the production and sale of o0il and gas and a non-cash
charge for property impairments. It excludes corporate related general and administrative expenses and gains or
losses on property dispositions. The income tax expense is calculated by applying the statutory tax rates to the
revenues after deducting costs, which include depletion allowances and giving effect to oil and gas related
permanent differences and tax credits. K

December 31,
2006 2005 2004
(im thousands) .
REVEIIUES . o oottt e e e e e e e e e e $234,156 $226,219 $151,786
Production expenses .. ... ... . i e 39,681 30,940 23,728
Exploration eXpenses . ........... . it e ~ 34330 40,917 26,058
Depreciation and depletionexpense (1) . ..., . .. i 55,252 44,865 35,772
Impairment of il and gas properties . ........... ... ... .. ... . ... . .. ... 8517 4,785 635
96,376 104,712 65,573
INCOME taX EXPENSE . ..ttt et e 38,165 41,466 25,967
Results of Operations .. ...... ...ttt i, $ 58211 § 63246 § 39,606

(1) Depreciation expense of $1.0 million in 2006, $0.9 million in 2005 and $0.! million in 2004 relating to a
transmission pipeline and compression in the Appalachian Basin placed into service from 2004 to 2006 were
excluded from depreciation and depletion expense.

In accordance with SFAS No. 143, the combined depletion and accretion expense related to asset retirement
obligations that were recognized during 2006, 2005 and 2004 in depreciation, depleuon and amortization expense
was approximately $0.2 million, $0.2 million and $0.5 million.

Oil and Gas Reserves

The following schedule presents the estimated oil and gas reserves owned by us. This information includes
our royalty and net working interest share of the reserves in oil and gas properties. Net proved cil and gas
reserves for the three years ended December 31, 2005, were estimated by Wright and Company, Inc. All reserves
are located in the United States. '

There are many uncertainties inherent in estimating proved reserve quantities, and projecting future
production rates and the timing of future development expenditures. In addition, reserve estimates of new
discoveries are more imprecise than those of properties with a production history, Accordingly, these estimates
are subject to change as additional information becomes available. Proved oil and gas reserves are the estimated
quantities of crude oil, condensate and natural gas that geological and engineering data demonstrate with
reasonable certainty to be recoverable in future years from known reservoirs under existing economic and
operating conditions at the end of the respective years. Proved developed oil and gas reserves are those reserves
expected to be recovered through existing wells with equipment and operating methods.
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Net quantities of proved reserves and proved developed reserves during the periods indicated are set forth in
the tables below:

! : ' . Qil and Natural Total
. Condensate Gas Equivalents
Proved Developed and Undeveloped Reserves ) (MBbls) (MMef) (MMcfe)
December 31, 2003 ... .. 6,634 283,069 322,873
Revisions of previous estimates . ...t rennnennas (418) (13,669) (16,177)
Extensions, discoveries and other additions .. ..................... - 532 70,010 73,202
Production ... ....... ... {(396) (22,079 (24,455)
Purchase of TeServes . . ... ... i — — —_—
Sale of reservesinplace . .. ... .. . . e 9 {1,279) (1,333)
December 31, 2004 . ... e 6,343 316,052 354,110
Revisions of previous estimates ............ ... .o, (35) (13,859 (14,07D)
Extensions, discoveries and other additions . ........... ... ... ... ... 554 87,860 91,184
ProduCliOn . .ottt ettt e e (306) (25,676) (27,515)
Purchase of TeServes .. ..o v it it e crnee e — — —
Saleof reservesinplace ............. e (3,659) (5,196) (27,148)
December 31, 2008 ... i e e s 2,897 359,181 376,560
Revisions of previous estimates . ........ .. .ovininnn ... 396 (10,182) (7,807)
Extensions, discoveries and other additions . ................... .. 597 . 97,286 100,867
Production .. ... .. (382) (28,967) (31.260)
Purchase Of Te8eIVES . . . . oot e e e 1,402 30,928 48,346
Saleofreservesinplace ... .. ... L — — —
December 31,2006 ....... P T R [ 4910 457,246 486,706
Proved Developed Reserves:
December 31, 2004 ... e 2,895 243,480 260,850
December 31,2005 . ..... . ... .. ... B 2,017 266,970 279,070
December 31,2000 .. ... e 3,049 326,480 344,775

The following table sets forth the standardized measure of the discounted future net cash flows attributable
to our proved oil and gas reserves. Future cash inflows were computed by applying year-end prices of oil and gas
to the estimated future production of proved oil and gas reserves. Natural gas prices were escalated only where
existing contracts contained fixed and determinable escalation clauses. Contractually provided natural gas prices
in excess of estimated market clearing prices were used in computing the future cash inflows only if we expect to
continue to receive higher prices under legally enforceable contract terms. Future pnces actually recewed may
materially differ from current prlces or the prlces used in the standardized measure.
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Future production and development costs represent the estimated future expend:tures (based on current
costs) to be incurred in developing and producing the proved reserves, assuming continuation of exmtmg
economic conditions. Future income tax expenses were computed by applying statutory income tax rates to the
difference between pre-tax net cash flows relating to our proved oil and gas reserves and the tax basis of proved '
oil and gas properties. In addition, the effects of statutory depletion in excess of tax basis, available net operating
loss carryforwards and alternative minimum tax credits were used in computing future income tax expense. The
resulting annual net cash inflows were then discounted using a 10% annual rate. K

Year ended December 31,

2006 2005 . 0 2004
. : : . . (in thousands)
Future cashinflows . ... ... . .. i i $2,848,046 $ 3,902,546 $2,310,163
Future productioncosts . .......... ... ........ e - (775,561) (637,907) (460,729
Fulure development costs . .. ... ... . ... . (321,338) (192,938)  (123,928)
Futurc net cash flows before i incomé tax ...... L 1,751;147 - 3,071,7;01 1,725,506
Future income tax expense . ... .......... e (435,299) (834,774)  (455,328)
Future net cash flows . . e P 1,315,848 2,236,927 1,270,178
10% annual discount for estimated timing of cash flows ............ (711,248) (1,200,481)  (680,525)

Standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows . . .. .. .. ... $ 604600 $1,036446 $ 589,653

Changes_ in Standardized Measure of bfscouméd Future Net Cash Flows

Year ended Decemﬁcr M,

) . 2006 2005 2004 .
Sales of oil and gas, net of productions costs . ........ e $ (196,284) $ (236,809} $(128,058)
Net changes in prices and productioncosts . ....:.................. © (720914). 516,662 46,269
Extensions, discoveries and other additions . .................. e 142,007 327,287 177,914
Development costs incurred during the period . ..................... 50,629 25725 14,705
Revisions of previous quantity estimates ................ovvivia.. (24,460) (54,479) (38,771)
Purchase of minerals-in-place ... ............. ... ... .. . 51,810 — -
Sale of minerals-in-place ............ ... . . ... ... — (59,864) (3,722)
Accretionof discount ............ ... . . i e 141,165 79,459 69,585
Net change in income EAXES ... 192,370 ' (170,261 (20,779},
Other Changes ..o it e i et e {68,169) 19,073 (39,182
Netincrease (decrease) . ... vttt ittt e s (431,846) 446,793 77,961
Beginningof year .. ... ... ... e 1,036,446 589,653 511,692
Endof year ... ... ... . . ... ... $ 604,600 $1,036446 § 589,653

As required by SFAS No. 69, changes in standardized measure relating to sales of reserves are calculated
using prices in effect as of the beginning of the period and changes in standardized measure relating to purchases
of reserves are calculated using prices in effect at the end of the period. Accordingly, the changes in standardized
measure for purchases and sales of reserves reflected above do not necessarily represent the economic reality of
such transactions. See the disclosure of “Costs Incurred in Certain Oil and Gas Activities™ earlier in this Note and
the statements of cash flows in the consolidated financial statements. o
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Item 9  Changes in anid Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None. . : : : . . "

Item 9A  Controls and Procedures
(a) Disclosure Controls-and Procedures 1

, Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer
and our Chief Financial Officer, we performed an evaluation of the design and operation of our disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(¢) of the Exchange Act) as of December 31 2006. Our
disclosure controls and procedures are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us.in the
reports we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported accurately
and on a tlmely basis. Based on that evalvation, our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer
concluded that, as of December 31, 2006, such disclosure controls and procedures were effective.

(b) Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Repomng

Our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Fmanaal Officer, is resp0n51ble for
establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over our financial reporting. Our management assessed the
effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006. This evaluation was
completed based on the framework established in Internal- Control—lntegrated Framework issued by {he
Committee of Sponsormg Organlzatlons of the Treadway Commission. :

Our management has concluded that, as of December 31, 2006, our mtemal control over financial reporting
was effective. KPMG LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, has issued an attestatlon report on
our management’s assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2006, which is included in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

(c) Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

No chanoes were made in our internal control over financial reporting, that occurred dunng our last fiscal
quarter that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect our internal control over
financial reportmg :

Item 98 Other Informatzon

There was no information that was required to be disclosed by us on a Current Report on Form 8-K durmg
- the fourth quarter of 2006 which we did not disclose.
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PART 111

Item 10 Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Except for information concerning our executive officers inciuded Item | hereof, in accordance with
General Instruction G(3), reference is hereby-made to the, Company’s definitive proxy statement to be filed
within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Item 11 Executive Compensation

In accordance with General Instruction G{3), reference is hereby made to the Company’s definitive proxy
statement to be filed within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Shareholder
Matters

In accordance with General Instruction G(3), reference is hereby made to the Company’s definitive proxy
statement to be filed within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

In accordance with General Instruction G(3), reference is hereby made to the Company’s definitive proxy
statement to be filed within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

Item 14 Principal Accounting Fees and Services

In accordance with General Instruction G(3), reference is hereby made to the Company’s definitive proxy
statement to be filed within 120 days after the end of the fiscal year covered by this Annwval Report on
Form 10-K.
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PART IV

Item 15  Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

The foliowing documents are filed as exhibits to this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

(N

@

3)

3.1

(3.2)

(3.3)

(3.4)

4.0

4.2)

(10.1)

(10.2)

(10.3)

(10.4)

(10.5)

" Financial Statements—The financial statements filed herewith are listed in the Index to Financial

Statements on page 70 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K,

All schedules are omitted because they are not required, inapplicable or the information is included in
the consolidated financial staiements or the notes thereto.

Exhibits

Articles of Incorporation of Penn Virginia Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to
Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1999).

Articles of Amendment of Articles of Incorporation of Penn Virginia Corporation (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.2 to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 1999).

Articles of Amendment of Articles of Incorporation of Penn Virginia Corporation (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended
June 30, 2004).

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Registrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Registrant’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 26, 2007).

Rights Agreement dated as of February 11, 1998 between Penn Virginia Corporation and American
Stock Transfer & Trust Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1.1 to Registrant’s
Registration Statement on Form 8-A filed on February 20, 1998).

Amendment No. | to Rights Agreement dated as of March 27, 2002 by and between Penn Virginia
Corporation and American Stock Transfer & Trust Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
4.1 to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 28, 2002).

Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of December 4, 2003 among Penn Virginia
Corporation, the lenders party thereto, Bank One, NA, as Administrative Agent, Wachovia Bank,
National Association, as Syndication Agent, Royal Bank of Canada, BNP Paribas and Fleet National
Bank, as Documentation Agents, and Banc One Capital Markets, Inc, and Wachovia Capital Markets,
LLC, as Co-Lead Arrangers and Joint Book Runners (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003).

First Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of December 29, 2004 among
Penn Virginia Corporation, the lenders party thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. (incorporated by
reference 1o Exhibit 10.2 to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2005).

Second Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of December 15, 2005
among Penn Virginia Corporation, the lenders party thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2005).

Third Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of April 14, 2006 among
Penn Virginia Corporation, the lenders party thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period
ended March 31, 2006).

Fourth Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of August 25, 2006 among
Penn Virginia Corporation, the lenders party thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period

ended September 30, 2006).




(10.6)

{10.7)

(10.8)

(10.9)

(10.10)

(10.11)

(10.12)

(10.13)

(10.14)

(10.15)

{10.16)

(10.17)

(10.18)

(10.19)

(10.20)

Fifih Amendment to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of November 1, 2006 among
Penn Virginia Corporation, the lenders party thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period

~ ended September 30, 2006).

Omnibus Agreement dated October 30, 2001 among Penn Virginia Corporation, Penn Virginia
Resource GP, LLC, Penn Virginia Opérating Co., LLC and Penn Virginia Resource Partners, L.P.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
November 14, 2001). ’

Amendment No. | to Omnibus Agreement dated December 19, 2002 zimong the Penn Virginia
Corporation, Penn Virginia Resource GP, LLC, Penn Virginia Operating Co., LLC and Penn Virginia
Resource Partners, L.P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to Registrant’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002},

Penn Virginia Corporation and Affiliated Companies’ Employees’ 401(k) Plan, as amended
{(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year

.ended December 31, 2001).*

Penn Virginia Corporation Supplemental Employees Retirement Plan, as amended (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.7 to Registrant’s. Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2005).* '

-Penn Virginia Corporation Non-Employee Directors Deferred Compensation Plan (incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.8 10 Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2005).*

Penn Virginia Corporation 1994 Stock Option Plan, as amended (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.5 to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form [0-K for the year ended December 31, 1999).*

Penn Virginia Corporation 1995 Fourth Amended and Restated Directors’ Stock Compensation Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2004).*

Penn Virginia Corporation Second Amended and Restated 1999 Employee Stock Incentive Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
February 27, 2006).*

Form of restricted stock award agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to Registrant’s
Annual Repert on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004).*

Form of deferred common stock award agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to
Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004).*

Executive Change of Control Severance Agreement dated February 28, 2006 between Penn Virginia
Corporation and A. James Dearlove (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on March 2, 2006).*

Executive Change of Control Severance Agreement dated February 28, 2006 between Penn Virginia
Corporation and Frank A. Pici (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 10 Registrant’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on March 2, 2006).*

Executive Change of Control Severance Agreement dated February 28, 2006 between Penn Virginia
Corporation and Nancy M. Snyder (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Registrant’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on March 2, 2006).*

Executive Change of Control Severance Agreement dated February 28, 2006 between Penn Virginia
Corporation and H. Baird Whitehead (incorporated by reference 1o Exhibit 10.4 to Registrant’s
Current Report on Form 10-Q filed on March 2, 2006).*
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(10.21)

(10.22)

(12.H)
eIRD
23.1)
(23.2)

3L

31.2)
(32.1)

(32.2)

Executive Change of Control Severance Agreement dated March 9, 2006 between Penn Virginia

. Resource GP, LLC and Keith D. Horton (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s

Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 14, 2006).*

Executive Change of Control Severance Agreement dated March 9, 2006 between Penn Virginia

' Resource GP, LLC and Ronald K. Page (incorporated by reference 1o Exhibit 10.2 to Registrant’s

Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 14, 2006).*

Statement of Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges Calculation. -
Subsidiaries of Registrant.

Consent of KPMG LLP. .

Consent of Wright & Company, Inc.

- Certification Pursuant to 18 UL.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. :

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. '

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,

* Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

PENN VIRGINIA CORPORATION

By: /s/  FRANK A. Pici
March 1, 2007 Frank A. Pici
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
By: /s/  FORREST W. MCNAIR
March 1, 2007 Forrest W, McNair

Vice President and Controller

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by
the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

/s/ ROBERT GARRETT Chairman of the Board and March 1, 2007
(Robert Garrett) Director
fs/  JOE N, AVERETT, JR. Director March 1, 2007

(Joe N. Averett, Jr.)

/s/ EbwaRrD B. CLOUES, 1] Director March 1, 2007
(Edward B. Cloues, II)

fs/ A. JAMES DEARLOVE Director and President and Chief March 1, 2007
(A. James Dearlove) Executive Officer
/s/  Kerrd D. HorRTON Director and Executive Vice March 1, 2007
(Keith D. Herton) Prestdent
/s/ STEVEN W, KRABLIN - ‘ Director March 1, 2007

(Steven W. Krablin)

/s/  MARSHA R. PERELMAN Director March [, 2007
(Marsha R. Perelman)

/s/ PHILIPPE VAN MARCKE DE LUMMEN Director March 1, 2007

(Philippe van Marcke de¢ Lummen)

/s GARY K. WRIGHT Director March 1, 2007

(Gary K. Wright)
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Directors

Robert Garrett 22

Chairman of the Board; Director of

PVG GR LLC, general partner of Penn
Virginia GP Holdings, L.P. and Founder and
Managing Director of AdMedia Partners, Inc.

Joe N. Averett, Jr.
Former President, CEO and
Director, Crystal Gas Storage, Inc.

Edward B. Cloues, 1122

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
of K-Tron International, Inc. and Director
of Penn Virginia Resource GF LLC,
general partner of Penn Virginia
Resource Partners, L.P

A. James Dearlove

President and Chief Executive Officer;
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and
President of PVG GP LLC, general partner

of Penn Virginia GP Holdings, L.P. and Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of Penn Virginia
Resource GF, LLC, general partner of Penn
Virginia Resource Partners, L.R

Keith D. Horton

Executive Vice President and Co-President and
Chief Operating Officer—Coal of Penn Virginia
Resource GP LLC, general partner of Penn
Virginia Resource Partners, L.P

Steven W. Krablin +?
Former Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer, National Qitwell, Inc.

Marsha Reines Perelman®?
Founder and Chief Executive Officer of Woodforde
Management, inc. and Director of Penn Virginia

. Resource GP LLC, general partner of Penn
Virginia Resource Partners, LP
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A. James Deariove. Robe arre a Pe

Philippe van Marcke de Lummen *
Advisor to Cheniere Energy, Inc., and former
President and Chief Executive Officer of
Tractebel LNG Lid.

Gary K. Wright ?

Former President, LNB Energy Advisors,
former Southwest Managing Director for
Chase Manhattan Bank Global Oif and Gas
Group and former Manager of Chemical
Bank Worldwide Energy Group

Management

A. James Dearlove
President and Chief Executive Officer

Frank A. Plci
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

H. Baird Whitehead
Executive Vice President

Keilth D. Horton
Executive Vice President

Nancy M. Snyder
Executive Vice President, General
Counsel and Corporate Secretary

Ronald K. Page
Vice President

Forrest W. McNair
Vice President and Controller

Dana G Wright
Vice President, Business Planning

Steven A. Hartman
Vice President and Treasurer
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Annual Meeting

Penn Virginia Corporation’s
Annual Meeting wili be held

10 a.m. May 8, 2007

Marriott Philadelphia West

111 Crawford Avenue

West Conshohocken, PA 19428
(610) 941-5600 phone

(610} 941-1060 fax

Transfer Agent and Registrar

American Stock Transfer
and Trust Company
Mailing Address:

59 Maiden Lane

New York, NY 10038

(800) 937-5448 phone
(718) 236-2641 fax

Certifications

In 2006, we submitted our Section 303A.
12(a) chief executive officer certification
to the New York Stock Exchange. We
have also filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, as an exhibit to
our most recently filed Annuat Report

on Form 10-K, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
Section 302 certifications.

{1) Member of the Nominating and
Governgnce Committee

{2} Member of the Compensation and
Benefits Committee

(3) Member of the Audit Committee




Penn Virginia Corporation

Three Radnor Corporate Center
Suite 300

100 Matsonford Road
Radnor, PA 19087
(610} 687-8900 phone
(610} 687-3688 fax
www.pennvirginia.com




